Public Document Pack

Licensing (Hearings) Sub-

Committee
Agenda

Date: Thursday, 16 September 2021

Time: 12.30pm

Venue: Conference Hall - City Hall, College Green,
Bristol, BS1 5TR

Distribution:

Councillors: Marley Bennett, Lorraine Francis and Fi Hance

Copies to:

Issued by: Norman Cornthwaite, Democratic Services
City Hall, College Green, Bristol BS1 5TR

Tel: 0117 922 2390 or 07824354271

E-mail: democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk

Date: Wednesday, 8 September 2021

www.bristol.gov.uk



mailto:democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk

Licensing (Hearings) Sub-Committee - Agenda

Agenda

1. Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information
(Pages 4 - 6)

2. Apologies for Absence and Substitutions
3. Declarations of Interest

4. Public Forum

The petition or statement must relate to the terms of reference and role and
responsibilities of the Committee or Sub-Committee concerned.

Any member of the public or Councillor may participate in Public Forum. The
detailed arrangements for so doing are set out in the Public Information Sheet at
the back of this agenda. Public Forum items should be emailed to
democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk and please note that the following deadlines
will apply in relation to this meeting:-

Questions - Written questions must be received 3 clear working days prior to the
meeting. For this meeting, this means that your question(s) must be received in
this office at the latest by 5 pm on 10t September 2021.

Petitions and Statements - Petitions and statements must be received on the
working day prior to the meeting. For this meeting this means that your
submission must be received in this office at the latest by 12.00 noon on
Wednesday 15% September 2021.

Licensing Act 2003 Information for local residents making representations to
applications is located here

5. Procedure for a hearing
(Pages 7 - 19)

6. Central Chambers, 9 - 11 St Stephen's Street - Application for
the renewal of a Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence

(Pages 20 - 189)

7. Feeder Studios Productions Ltd, 39 - 46 Feeder Road -
Application for the grant of a Premises Licence



mailto:democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/documents/20182/33219/Information+for+local+residents+making+representations+to+applications.pdf/c3a59271-7e99-c204-3237-77de0ba14812

Licensing (Hearings) Sub-Committee - Agenda

(Pages 190 - 237)




Agenda ltem 1

www.bristol.gov.uk

Licensing Public Information Sheet

Inspection of Papers - Local Government

(Access to Information) Act 1985

You can find papers for all our meetings on our website at www.bristol.gov.uk.

Other formats and languages and assistance

For those with hearing impairment

You can get committee papers in other formats (e.g. large print, audio tape, braille etc) or in
community languages by contacting the Democratic Services Officer. Please give as much notice as
possible. We cannot guarantee re-formatting or translation of papers before the date of a particular
meeting.

Committee rooms are fitted with induction loops to assist people with hearing impairment. If you
require any assistance with this please speak to the Democratic Services Officer.

Covid-19: changes to how we hold public meetings

Following changes to government rules, public meetings including Cabinet, Full Council, regulatory
meetings (where planning and licensing decisions are made) and scrutiny will now be held at City Hall.

Covid Safety Measures for Attendance at City Hall

Due to Covid Safety requirements we have put the following measures in place:

e All attendees to this meeting are asked to have a Covid lateral flow test 24 hrs prior to the day
of the meeting and show the results of a negative test. It's important that you report the results of
your test and that you get confirmation sent to your phone. Reception staff may ask to see this on the
day of the meeting. If you have a positive test or if you develop any Covid 19 symptoms - high
temperature, a new continuous cough, or a loss or change to your sense of smell or taste, you
should book a test on GOV.UK and self-isolate while you wait for the results.

e You are required to wear a face mask at all times unless you are exempt. Social distancing
rules remain in place.

o Members of the press and public who wish to attend City Hall are advised that you may be
asked to watch the meeting on a screen in another room as due to the maximum occupancy of
the venue.



http://www.bristol.gov.uk/
https://www.gov.uk/get-coronavirus-test

www.bristol.gov.uk

Public Forum

Residents who are affected by the business of the Committee, may present a petition of submit a
statement at ordinary meetings of the Licensing Committee and at Licensing Sub-Committee meetings.
Petitions, questions and statements presented to the Licensing Sub-Committee can be received only in
respect of hearings already decided and licence applications not subject to a hearing.

The petition or statement must relate to the terms of reference and role and responsibilities of the
Committee or Sub-Committee concerned.

Further information on representations is available from the Licensing Office email address:
Licensing@bristol.gov.uk or from Democratic Services.

Your submission will be sent to the Committee and statements, questions and answers will be
available in the meeting room one hour before the meeting. Please submit it to
democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk or Democratic Services Section, City Hall, College Green, Bristol
BS1 5TR. The following requirements apply:

e The statement is received no later than 12.00 noon on the working day before the meeting and is
about a matter which is the responsibility of the committee concerned.
e The question is received no later than three clear working days before the meeting.

Please see www.bristol.gov.uk and https://www.bristol.gov.uk/licences-permits/premises-licence-
appeals-and-review

Any statement submitted should be no longer than one side of A4 paper. If the statement is longer
than this, then for reasons of cost, only the first sheet will be copied and made available at the
meeting. For copyright reasons, we are unable to reproduce or publish newspaper or magazine articles
that may be attached to statements.

By participating in public forum business, we will assume that you have consented to your name and
the details of your submission being recorded and circulated. This information will also be made
available at the meeting to which it relates and placed in the official minute book as a public record
(available from Democratic Services).

We will try to remove personal information such as contact details. However, because of time
constraints we cannot guarantee this, and you may therefore wish to consider if your statement
contains information that you would prefer not to be in the public domain. Public Forum statements
will not be posted on the council’s website. Other committee papers may be placed on the council’s
website and information in them may be searchable on the internet.

Process during the meeting:

e Public Forum is normally one of the first items on the agenda, although statements and petitions
that relate to specific items on the agenda may be taken just before the item concerned.
e There will be no debate on statements or petitions.



Licensing@bristol.gov.uk%20
mailto:democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk
http://www.bristol.gov.uk/
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/licences-permits/premises-licence-appeals-and-review
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/licences-permits/premises-licence-appeals-and-review

www.bristol.gov.uk

o The Chair will call each submission in turn. When you are invited to speak, please make sure that
your presentation focuses on the key issues that you would like Members to consider. This will
have the greatest impact.

e Your time allocation may have to be strictly limited if there are a lot of submissions.

e [f there are a large number of submissions on one matter a representative may be requested to
speak on the groups behalf.

e [f you do not attend or speak at the meeting at which your public forum submission is being taken
your statement will be noted by Members.

Webcasting/ Recording of meetings

Members of the public attending meetings or taking part in Public forum are advised that all Full
Council and Cabinet meetings and some other committee meetings are now filmed for live or
subsequent broadcast via the council's webcasting pages. The whole of the meeting is filmed (except
where there are confidential or exempt items) and the footage will be available for two years. If you
ask a question or make a representation, then you are likely to be filmed and will be deemed to have
given your consent to this. If you do not wish to be filmed you need to make yourself known to the
webcasting staff. However, the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 now means
that persons attending meetings may take photographs, film and audio record the proceedings and
report on the meeting (Oral commentary is not permitted during the meeting as it would be
disruptive). Members of the public should therefore be aware that they may be filmed by others
attending and that is not within the council’s control.

The privacy notice for Democratic Services can be viewed at www.bristol.gov.uk/about-our-
website/privacy-and-processing-notices-for-resource-services



http://www.bristol.public-i.tv/site/
http://www.bristol.gov.uk/about-our-website/privacy-and-processing-notices-for-resource-services
http://www.bristol.gov.uk/about-our-website/privacy-and-processing-notices-for-resource-services

Agenda Item 5

Chairing Licensing Committee for a SEV
renewal application

1. Clerk welcomes and informs those present who has
been elected Chair

2. Chair takes over - housekeeping:

(@) turn off mobile phones

(b) fire alarm tested on a Fri. In event of alarm - assembly
point on College Green

(c) toilets — either side of reception

3. Introductions around table

4. Declarations of interest

5. Public Forum - To hear if any submitted and to formally note
if none received.

6. Procedure —

(@) Licensing Officer informs Committee of any formal
objections if submitted and asks Committee if they wish
to hear from objectors if in attendance

(b) Licensing Officer briefly introduces report;

(c) Applicant presents;

(d) Questions / clarification from members/officers;

(e) Committee hears from Police if comments received,

(H  Questions/clarification from applicant / members /
officers

(g) Applicant’s sum up

7. Parties withdraw for Committee to deliberate

Page 7



PROCEDURE TO BE FOLLOWED AT HEARING

The procedure to be followed at hearing (information provided in
accordance with regulation 7 (1)

In accordance with regulation 21 the following procedure has been
determined for this hearing, subject to the provisions of the regulations and of
the council's Licensing Procedure Rules:

General

The hearing will take place in public. The sub committee may exclude the
public from all or part of the hearing but may only do so where it considers
that the public interest in so doing outweighs the public interest in the hearing,
or that part of the hearing, taking place in public. Any party considering that
the greater public interest is served by the public (which can include another
party or parties) being excluded from all or any part of the hearing should
make this view known to the Licensing Authority (in writing to the Licensing
Manager) as soon as possible and in any event not less than two working
days before the hearing is due to commence. The party asserting this should
provide in writing full reasons supporting the request.

The Authority will make a record of the hearing. The form of that record is a
matter of choice for the Authority and may include the hearings being subject
to digital or tape recording.

The hearing will take the form of a discussion led by the Authority. The
Authority has taken steps to ensure it is well placed to lead the discussion, for
example by seeking clarification on certain points and requesting that this
clarification be provided in writing and in advance of the hearing. All parties
are asked to give full co-operation in ensuring the hearing can proceed
smoothly and as anticipated in the regulations and under the Council's
procedure rules.

All parties are reminded that, whilst this hearing will be conducted fairly and
the decision will be made by Councillors who are committed to acting
judicially, these are not court proceedings and should not be treated as such.
This is a meeting of the local authority; the sub committee will conduct the
hearing in accordance with the governing legislation. Parties must bear in
mind that the hearing is not intended to be adversarial and this is reinforced in
the regulations, for example the general prohibition on cross-examination
contained in regulation 23. The Authority can only permit cross-examination
where that would be required for it to "consider the representations,

Page 8



application or notice as the case may be". If at any stage of the hearing the
Authority considers cross-examination to be necessary on this ground the
Chair will so rule, give directions for the conduct of that part of the meeting
and the procedure set out below will be varied accordingly. The Authority
expects all parties and their representatives to fully co-operate in ensuring the
discussion it is bound to lead proceeds in an appropriate manner; it is
expected that the parties will deal with the sub committee and each other with
mutual respect. The parties and their representatives are informed that any
disruptive behaviour may result on the person responsible being required to
leave the meeting.

Appointment of Chair
The sub committee will appoint one of its number to Chair the meeting;

Outlining the procedure
The chair will explain the procedure the sub committee proposes to follow at
the hearing (as set out in detail in the following paragraphs).

Administrative announcements

The Chair will make necessary announcements (e.g. reference to the
evacuation procedure, requiring all present to switch of any mobile
telephones or other equipment which may disturb the meeting).

Identification of persons participating in the hearing

The chair will ensure that all members of the sub committee, the parties and
their representatives identify themselves for the record and for the benefit of
those present.

Withdrawal of Representations [Regulation 10.]

The Licensing Manager will inform the sub committee if any Party has given
Notice under regulation 10 withdrawing the representations they have made
(Regulation 10 permits a party to withdraw their representations by giving
notice to the authority no later than 24 hours before the day the hearing is
due to commence).

The Chair will then ascertain if any Party wishes to exercise their rights under
regulation 10 (b) to withdraw any representations they have made and, if so,
will permit the Party to do so at this stage of the hearing.

Non appearance of parties

If any party fails to attend or to be represented at the hearing the Licensing
Manager will inform the sub committee whether or not the party had informed
the authority in accordance with regulation 8 of his/her non-attendance. The
sub committee will consider how to proceed in consequence of that non-
attendance in accordance with the rules indicated above.

Page 9



Appearance of other persons at the hearing

The Licensing Manager (or his representative) will advise the sub committee
if any request has been made by any Party, in accordance with and within the
time provided for in regulation 8, seeking permission for any other person
(other than a person the party intends to represent him/her) to appear at the
hearing. Where such a request has been made it will be considered in
accordance with regulation 22.

Additional material

The Licensing Manager (or his representative) will inform the sub committee if
any documentary or other information has been produced by a party prior to
the hearing in support of their application, representations or notice
(applicable); if so, the sub committee will decide (in accordance with
regulations 18 and 19) whether or not to take the material into account.
Where such material has been provided at the hearing (rather than prior to it)
the Chair will ascertain if all parties consent to the material being taken into
account.

Identifying who will be addressing the sub committee

The Chair will ascertain which parties seek to exercise their right to address
the sub- committee during the hearing and whether those party will personally
exercise that right or will appear by their representative. Where a large
number of interested parties are involved in a hearing, the Chair will inform all
parties of their rights under regulation 24 and will ascertain if the interested
parties are agreeable to the appointment of a spokesperson/spokespersons
so as to avoid duplication and prevent the hearing becoming unnecessarily
prolonged.

Exercise of other rights/other preliminary business

If there is a preliminary issue remaining to be determined (e.g. if the Authority
considers a decision remains to be made concerning the relevance of any
representations from interested parties) then the Chair will ensure the sub
committee deals with the issue at this stage of the hearing.

The Chair will then ascertain if any party has any procedural point to raise
before the hearing gets underway. It is anticipated the parties will have
notified this in advance so that the sub committee can review the procedure if
necessary prior to the beginning of the main part of the meeting. Parties are
therefore discouraged from raising procedural points at this late stage and
should only do so where they consider that they would otherwise not be likely
to receive a fair hearing if the sub committee proceeded in the manner
indicated here. When raising any point at this stage Parties will be asked to
explain why they have not given prior notice to the sub committee.

Page 10



Maximum time for parties to exercise their rights under section 16

The Chair will indicate the maximum time allowed for each party to exercise
their rights under section 16 (set out in detail above in this Notice — in
summary: provide clarification on points notified by the Authority, if permitted,
guestion any other party and address the authority. See the Notice of hearing
for the time provisionally directed by the sub committee).

Points of clarification

The Licensing manager (or his representative) will inform the meeting of any
written responses received in response to any requests for clarification made
by the Licensing Authority prior to the hearing. The Chair will indicate
whether or not those written responses have been read by the members of
the sub-committee. The Chair may adjourn the meeting for a sufficient period
S0 as to enable those responses to be read where appropriate. The chair,
assisted by the licensing manager (or his representative), will ensure that any
responses which ought to have been provided to any other party have in fact
been received by them. Where appropriate the Chair will ask the Licensing
Manager (or his representative) to summarise the responses received for the
benefit of the public hearing.

The Licensing Manager (or his representative) will inform the sub committee if
any parties have not responded in writing to the points of clarification sought
from them.

Where points of clarification remain outstanding the parties will be asked to
give the further information at this stage of the hearing. The time taken to do
so will be deducted from the maximum time allowed for that party to exercise
its regulation 16 rights (and as this rule is binding on the sub committee
parties are strongly urged to take the opportunity afforded to them to provide
any points of clarification (as set out in the next section of this document) in
writing prior to the meeting)

Opening address

The Chair will ascertain if the applicant (either in person or through a
representative) wishes to utilise any of his/her maximum allocated time to
make an opening address and if so how much of it is to be used in this
manner. If the Applicant decides to make an opening speech the same
facility will be afforded to the other parties should they wish to avalil
themselves of it, but otherwise the meeting will move directly to a discussion
of the relevant issues.

Questions
Once any opening speeches are completed are completed the Chair will
begin the discussion by posing any relevant questions which have been

Page 11



brought forward by any of the Parties in response to the Authority’s request
for clarification.

The Chair will then ask any questions s/he wishes to pose to any of the
parties. When questions concern matters of fact the sub committee requires
the party (and not their representative, if any) to provide the response in
person. Where the question focuses upon issues concerning law, statutory
guidance or local policy, a party may either respond directly or through his/her
representative but, particularly where some other parties are unrepresented,
not both.

The other members of the sub committee will then each have an opportunity
to put any further questions they may have to any of the parties present.

The Chair will then ask the Licensing Manager (or his representative) and the
Committee’s legal advisor if there are any further questions they consider the
sub committee may need answers to in order to make their decision.

The Chair will ascertain if the parties agree that all areas which can be
explored questioning of the parties have been dealt with; if the Chair is
satisfied that some relevant questions have not been put then this will be
done at this stage.

Closing speeches

The chair will then ask each of the parties in turn if they wish to make a
closing speech to the sub committee. Any party making a closing speech
must not exceed the maximum allocated time remaining to them. The order
in which the closing speeches may be made shall be a matter for the chair to
determine but where there are a large number of parties present s/he will
indicate if asked why the particular order has been chosen (e.g. order of the
date of receipt of the representations, or by reference to the particular points
or licensing objectives they principally relate to). In any event the Chair will
ensure that the Applicant, if using some or all of his/her maximum allocated
time to make a closing speech, is the last party to make such an address and
therefore has the final word.

Once any closing addresses are completed the Chair will bring the hearing to

a conclusion. The committee will then proceed to deliberate in accordance
with Rule 20.3 of the Council’s licensing procedure rules

Page 12



APPENDIX A - RIGHTS OF PARTIES AT HEARING

Rights of a party at the hearing. [Regulation 15]

1. A party may attend the hearing and may be assisted or represented by
any person whether or not that person is legally qualified, subject to
points 2. and 3. below.

2. The licensing authority may exclude the public from all or part of a
hearing where it considers that the public interest in so doing outweighs
the public interest in the hearing, or that part of the hearing take place
in public.

3. For the purposes of point 2 above a party and any person assisting or
representing a party may be treated as a member of the public.

4. A party shall be entitled to:

(a)In response to a point upon which the authority has given notice
to a party that it will want clarification, give further information in
support of their application, representations or notice.

(b)If given permission by the authority, question any other party; and

(c) Address the authority.

Representations and supporting information. [Regulation 16]
1. At the hearing a party shall be entitled to-

(a)in response to a point upon which the authority has given notice to a
party that it will want clarification under regulation 7(d), give further
information in support of their application, representations or notice,

(b)if given permission by the Authority, question any other party; and

(c)address the Authority.

Consequences of not attending or not being represented. [Regulation
20]

1. If a party has informed the authority that he does not intend to attend or
be represented at a hearing, the hearing may proceed in his absence

2. If a party who has not so indicated fails to attend or be represented at a
hearing the authority may:

(a)where it considers it to be necessary in the public interest, adjourn
the hearing to a specified date, or
(b)hold the hearing in the parties absence.

3. Where the authority holds the hearing in the absence of a party, the
authority shall consider at the hearing the application, representations
or notice made by that party.

4. Where the authority adjourns the hearing to a specified date it must
notify the parties of the date, time and place to which the hearing has
been adjourned.

Withdrawal of Representations [Regulation 10.]
A party may withdraw representations they have made either by giving notice

Page 13



to the authority no later than 24 hours before the day on which the hearing is
to be held or orally at he hearing

Behaviour during Hearing [Regulation 25]
The Authority may require any person attending the hearing who in their
opinion is behaving in a disruptive manner to leave the hearing and may-

a) refuse to permit that person to return, or

b) permit him to return only on such conditions as the Authority may

specify,

but such a person may, before the end of the hearing, submit to the Authority
In writing any information which they would have been entitled to give orally
had they not been required to leave.

Page 14



APPENDIX B
POINTS FOR CLARIFICATION

Please note: All parties are asked to provide clarification on these points in
advance of the hearing. Ideally the sub committee would wish to receive the
response at the same time as you serve the Notice required under regulation
8, or as soon as possible thereafter. You are reminded that if you do not
provide the response in writing and in advance then the time you take to
exercise your regulation 16 rights will be reduced by the time you take to
provide the clarification sought at the meeting. The sub committee is keen to
narrow the issues as much as possible in advance of the hearing, in the
interest of ensuring a properly focussed discussion and to ensure that the
hearing itself is not unduly prolonged. Your co-operation is appreciated.

1. Points of clarification sought from all Parties

1(a) Guidance issued by the secretary of state

(i) Are there any parts of the Secretary of States Guidance that you consider
to be relevant to your application/representations/notice as appropriate?

(ii) If so please specify the paragraph(s) of that Guidance and the relevance
to the point(s) you are making.

(i) If you are asking the Licensing Authority to depart from (that, is, not to
apply) any of the guidance that you consider to be relevant, please clarify the
reasons why you think it should do as you wish

1(b) Statement of Licensing Policy for the City of Bristol

(i) Are there any parts of the Council’s policy that you consider to be relevant
to your application/representations/notice as appropriate?

(i) If so please specify the paragraph(s) of that policy and the relevance to
the point(s) you are making. If you are asking the Licensing Authority to
depart from (that, is, not to apply) any of the policy please clarify the reasons
why you think it should do as you wish

1(c) Questions of other parties

(i) Having considered the application/representations/Notice of each of the
other parties, are there any questions you consider should be answered by
any one or more of them at the hearing? If so, please provide a list of such
questions and identify the party you consider should answer them

1(d) Exclusion of the public

(i) Having first considered the procedure set out in Appendix B and the
relevant regulation, do you consider the meeting or any part of it should be
conducted in private? If so, please set out what part of the hearing should be
held in private and why you consider that should be permitted under the

Page 15



regulations (please note the sub committee cannot promise that any request
for all or part of the hearing will be held in private will be conducted in private
as each such request will have to be considered on its merits and in
accordance with the regulations. The usual rule is that the hearing will be
conducted in public)

2. Points of clarification sought from the applicant
2(a) Agreed/disputed matters of fact
In respect of each and every allegation made in the representations/notice as
appropriate of the other Parties, please state
e whether you agree or disagree with the details contained in the
representation
e whether you consider it affects your application
e whether there are any conditions you have offered, or would be willing
to offer, in support of your application and which you consider should
address any of the concerns raised by the other Parties.

Points of clarification sought from the Chief Officer of Police (where
representations have been made)

e In respect of each part of your representations please provide
particulars / evidence in support;

e State in each case your assessment of the impact on any / all of the
licensing objectives (identifying those objectives you consider to be
relevant) in each case state whether the matter(s) are such that you
consider it necessary for the Licensing Authority to refuse the
application for that reason, or whether you consider the particular
matter could be addressed through an appropriate condition.

e Where you consider conditions may be appropriate and you have not
already done so, please indicate the conditions you would suggest.

Points of clarification sought from the Local Planning Authority (where
representations have been made)

e In respect of the representation that the application is contrary to the
provisions of the local plan, please provide details of the section it is
said the application contravenes.

e State your assessment of the impact on any/all of the licensing
objectives (identifying those objectives you consider to be relevant).

e Provide any specific evidence supporting that assessment and/or a
general summary of the reasoning behind the planning policy insofar as
it relates to the licensing objective(s) you have identified,;

e State whether a planning consent would be required to enable the
licence to be lawfully implemented;

if so, state:
(a) whether such an application has been made or indicated;

Page 16



(b) if appropriate, whether a failure to secure consent could

ultimately result in the commission of any criminal offences should

the licence be granted and implemented in the terms sought in

the application; and

(c ) identify the offences, if any, referred to in your response to (b)
above.

Points of clarification sought from the Child Protection Authority (where

representations have been made)

In respect of each part of your representations please provide
particulars / evidence in support;

State in each case your assessment of the impact on any / all of the
licensing objectives (identifying those objectives you consider to be
relevant) in each case state whether the matter(s) are such that you
consider it necessary for the Licensing Authority to refuse the
application for that reason, or whether you consider the particular
matter could be addressed through an appropriate condition.

Where you consider conditions may be appropriate and you have not
already done so, please indicate the conditions you would suggest.

Points of clarification sought from the Pollution Control Authority

(where representations have been made)

In respect of each part of your representations please provide
particulars / evidence in support;

State in each case your assessment of the impact on any / all of the
licensing objectives (identifying those objectives you consider to be
relevant) in each case state whether the matter(s) are such that you
consider it necessary for the Licensing Authority to refuse the
application for that reason, or whether you consider the particular
matter could be addressed through an appropriate condition.

Where you consider conditions may be appropriate and you have not
already done so, please indicate the conditions you would suggest.

Points of clarification sought from the Health and Safety Authority

(where representations have been made)

In respect of each part of your representations please provide
particulars / evidence in support;

State in each case your assessment of the impact on any / all of the
licensing objectives (identifying those objectives you consider to be
relevant) in each case state whether the matter(s) are such that you
consider it necessary for the Licensing Authority to refuse the
application for that reason, or whether you consider the particular
matter could be addressed through an appropriate condition.

Page 17



e Where you consider conditions may be appropriate and you have not

already done so, please indicate the conditions you would suggest.

Points of clarification sought from the Trading Standards Authority

(where representations have been made)

In respect of each part of your representations please provide
particulars / evidence in support;

State in each case your assessment of the impact on any / all of the
licensing objectives (identifying those objectives you consider to be
relevant) in each case state whether the matter(s) are such that you
consider it necessary for the Licensing Authority to refuse the
application for that reason, or whether you consider the particular
matter could be addressed through an appropriate condition.

e Where you consider conditions may be appropriate and you have not

already done so, please indicate the conditions you would suggest.

Points of clarification sought from the Fire Authority (where

representations have been made)

In respect of each part of your representations please provide
particulars / evidence in support;

State in each case your assessment of the impact on any / all of the
licensing objectives (identifying those objectives you consider to be
relevant) in each case state whether the matter(s) are such that you
consider it necessary for the Licensing Authority to refuse the
application for that reason, or whether you consider the particular
matter could be addressed through an appropriate condition.

Where you consider conditions may be appropriate and you have not
already done so, lease indicate the conditions you would suggest.

Page 18



Page 19



Agenda Item 6

AGENDA ITEM NO.

BRISTOL CITY COUNCIL
LICENSING COMMITTEE
16 September 2021

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISONS) ACT 1982
APPLICATION FOR THE RENEWAL OF A SEXUAL ENTERTAINMENT VENUE
LICENCE MADE BY REEDBED LTD IN RESPECT OF PREMISES TRADING AS
CENTRAL CHAMBERS, 9-11 ST STEPHENS STREET, BRISTOL, BS1 1EE.

Report of the Director of Growth and Regeneration

Purpose of Report

1.

To seek consideration of an application for the renewal of the Sexual
Entertainment Venue (SEV) licence in respect of premises trading as Central
Chambers, 9-11 St Stephens Street, Bristol, BS1 1EE.

Background

2.

The Council has adopted the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act
1982, as amended; therefore, subject to limited exceptions and exemptions, or in
the absence of a waiver, premises offering relevant entertainment require a SEV
licence to operate in the City of Bristol.

There is a presumption in the legislation that applications for a licence will be
granted unless there is a statutory ground for refusal. Some refusal grounds
require the Council to refuse an application (mandatory grounds for refusal) and
some grounds enable the Council to refuse an application but do not require the
Council to refuse (discretionary grounds for refusal).

. Where a licence is granted any standard conditions in regulations made by the

Council will automatically be imposed unless expressly excluded or varied by the
Council. The Council, through this committee, has made regulations and has also
adopted policy to facilitate consideration of applications. Guidance is provided to
the committee in subsequent paragraphs of this report.

The applicant states that relevant entertainment is to be:

*Male and female performers involving full or partial nudity. Full nude pole
dancing and topless and full nude lap dancing, fully nude live lap dancing and
topless and fully nude lap dancers in designated areas”

The proposed relevant entertainment to include live performance, live displays of
nudity, male exposure of the pubic area, genitals and anus, female exposure of
nipples, pubic area, genitals and anus. A copy of the previous SEV licence is
attached for member’s information at Appendix A.

A copy of the location map is attached as Appendix B. A copy of the plan of the
premises layout is attached as Appendix C.

A copy of the company logo is attached as Appendix D. Copies of the house rules
and code of conduct for daft@ge€az( attached as Appendices E and F

Page 1 of 9



10.

11.

12.

13.

respectively.

The applicant has given additional information which they wish the Council to take
into account when considering this application. This is attached at Appendix G.

Observations and objections

In considering this application the Council must have regard to any observations
submitted to them by the Chief Officer of Police and any objections of which notice
has been sent to them under paragraph 15 of the adopted legislation. Paragraph
15 provides that:

“Any person objecting to an application for the grant, renewal or transfer of a
licence under this Schedule shall give notice in writing of his objection to the
appropriate authority stating in general terms the grounds of the objection, not
later than 28 days after the date of the application.”

This application was made on the 25 August 2020. The last date for objections be
was 22 September 2020. A total of sixty-seven objections were received within
that period and the committee must have regard to them. The Council must not
disclose the identity of any objectors without their consent.

A copy of all objections, with personal details redacted where appropriate, is
attached at Appendix H. One comment was received within the relevant period in
support of the application and is attached as Appendix I.

Late Objections

It used to be thought that the legal position was that objections could not be
received and considered after the statutory deadline in consultation, but case law
has now clarified the position that there is discretion to take late objections into
account. A late objector cannot require that their objection be taken into account
however they do acquire the anonymity that objections properly made would
receive. If any late objections were to come forward a copy would be provided to
the applicant so that they would be able to make representations regarding
whether or not the sub-committee should exercise its discretion to consider them.

One objection was received outside of this period and is attached as Appendix J.
Covid-19 restrictions

As a result of the Covid-19 pandemic premises offering relevant entertainment
were required to close due to the national lockdown on 26 March 2020. Since that
time premises of this nature have not been permitted to reopen at all, until all
remaining national restrictions were lifted on 19 July 2021.

Premises were permitted to reopen at certain points during national restrictions if
they operated without relevant entertainment being undertaken, and the authority
were advised that the licence holder intended to reopen in line with these
restrictions in October 2020.

Observations of the Neighbourhood Enforcement Team
Due to the closure of the premises for significant parts of the year, and the focus
of enforcement officers being diverted to Covid-19 restrictions and enforcement,

no visits have been undertakenp'awg@ thg renewal application was submitted in

Page 2 of 9



respect of this premises.

The Neighbourhood Enforcement Team therefore have no comments in respect of
this application.

14.Observations of the Chief Officer of Police.

At the time of writing no comments had been received from the Chief Officer of
Police.

15. Equalities Impact Assessment and Public Sector Equality Duty

(i) Before making a decision, section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 requires that each
decision-maker considers the need to promote equality for persons with the
following “protected characteristics”. age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation. Each
decision-maker must, therefore, have due regard to the need to:

I) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other
conduct prohibited under the Equality Act 2010.

i) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and those do not share it. This
involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to:

- remove or minimise disadvantage suffered by persons who
share a relevant protected characteristic.

- take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic that are different from the needs of
people who do not share it (in relation to disabled people, this
includes, in particular, steps to take account of disabled
persons' disabilities);

- encourage persons who share a protected characteristic to
participate in public life or in any other activity in which
participation by such persons is disproportionately low.

iii) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and those who do not share it. This involves
having due regard, in particular, to the need to tackle prejudice and
promote understanding.

(i) This duty places an obligation on the Licensing Committee to ensure that the need
to promote equality is taken into consideration with regard to every aspect of its
decision making. This will include the circumstances of each individual
application, the findings of fact once the application has been considered,
including the taking into account of any objections and any response the applicant
may choose to make.

(iif) The following paragraphs identify issues that may be considered relevant to the
determination of the application. It is not intended to be an exhaustive list but
aims to highlight issues that are anticipated to arise in applications for SEV
licences, although it should be born in mind that each application must be
considered on its own merits.

(iv) Suitability of the applicant
The SEV Policy sets out a numbpra@éisz@tionary grounds under which a licence

Page 3 of 9



(V)

can be refused. The application process requires details of any convictions held
by the applicant to be made known to the Licensing authority. This requirement is
particularly relevant as it is imperative that the licence holder is a suitable person
to hold such a licence. Should any SEV licence be granted a set of robust
conditions will cover all aspects of the operation, including the protection of
workers providing any activity allowed under the licence. In addition to convictions
it is equally important to consider whether the applicant has committed any
relevant offences, for example breaches of any conditions on licences held under
similar regulatory regimes. The applicant’s experience is also an important factor
as the committee needs to be satisfied of the person’s ability to ensure the safety
and wellbeing of performers, employees and members of the public. The
committee also need to be confident of the applicant’s ability to understand and
adhere to any conditions imposed should any licence be granted.

Character of the locality

This venue is located on St Stephens Street adjacent to the main transport hub for
the city centre and is in the heart of Bristol’'s night time economy which attracts
higher levels of violent crime than other areas of the city. For this reason, following
requests from the police due to the high levels of alcohol fuelled crime, this locality
has been designated as a Cumulative Impact Area as defined within the Licensing
Act statutory guidance. Members should consider, on the basis of the application
before them, whether this is remains a suitable operation at this particular
location. Factors to take into consideration could include the impact of the
proposal on persons with protected characteristics who may be in the vicinity of
the premises bearing in mind the high footfall at this location.

(vi) The Premises

16.

Members will have had the opportunity to visit the premises and view plans of the
layout. The type of operation undertaken at the premises can reasonably be
described as a lap dancing club and it would not be unreasonable to assume that
the performers at the premises will generally be women. Members are therefore
required to have due regard to the duties described above. In particular members
should be satisfied that the layout of the premises provides a high level of safety
for performers. Consideration should be given to CCTV coverage of the premises
including the quality of the images and the monitoring arrangements. Of equal
importance is the external appearance of the premises. Members need to be
satisfied that any frontages are appropriate and do not undermine the duty to
foster good relations between persons who share a relevant characteristic and
those who do not.

Mandatory Grounds of Refusal

A licence shall not be granted:

a) to a person under the age of 18; or

b) to a person who is disqualified by reason of prior revocation of a licence;

C) to a person, other than a body corporate, who is not resident in an EEA state
or was not so resident throughout the period of six months immediately
preceding the 4 July 2011,

d) to a body corporate which is not incorporated in an EEA state, or

e) to a person who had, within a period of 12 months immediately preceding the
date when the application was made, been refused the grant or renewal of a
licence for the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall in respect of which the
application is made, unless the refusal has been reversed on appeal.

Page 23
Page 4 of 9



17.These are mandatory refusal grounds. Having considered the information
provided through the application process your officers advise that none of these
grounds appear to apply in this case. Members should therefore focus their
considerations on whether any of the discretionary grounds for refusal arise in
respect of this application. These are dealt with in turn in the following paragraphs.

18. Discretionary Grounds of Refusal, paragraph 12(2)(a):

The Council may refuse the grant of a licence on one or more of four statutory

grounds which are referred to in the following paragraphs:

Grounds a) and b):

a) That the applicant is unsuitable to hold the licence by reason of having been
convicted of an offence or for any other reason;

b) That if the licence was to be granted the business to which it relates would be
managed by or carried on for the benefit of a person, other than the applicant,
who would be refused the grant of such a licence if he made the application

himself.

19.The Council’s policy identifies a number of factors that the Council may take into
account in considering the suitability of such persons, these are set out on page 6
of the policy under the heading ‘Discretionary grounds a) and b)’ as follows:
In considering the suitability of those persons referred to in (a) and (b) above the
factors the Council may take into account include:

relevant experience,;

relevant criminal convictions;

whether the person has committed relevant offences;

relevant observations or findings by public authorities, including licensing

authorities, in connection with the conduct of the person or their ability to

manage and control premises;

relevant findings by courts and tribunals in connection with the treatment of

protected groups (within the meaning of the Equalities Act 2010)

information germane to the person’s ability to, among other things:

ensure the safety and wellbeing of performers;

ensure the proper protection of the public;

ensure the suitability of employees, performers and others using the
venue;

prevent performance by or for those who may thereby be harmed,
including minors;

understand and adhere to conditions imposed on any licence
granted and ensure they are observed by others on the premises;
engage constructively with the Council and other relevant regulators

20.The application process requires applicants to provide comprehensive information
about any convictions and a range of other information that may be relevant to
consideration of grounds A and B. In regard to this applicant there is no evidence
of convictions deemed to be unspent under the Rehabilitation Of Offenders Act,
cautions, discrimination cases or pending allegations at the date the application
was made that would cast any doubt on the suitability of the applicant to hold the
licence by reason of having been convicted of an offence or for any other reason.

21.Ground c)
That the number of sex establishments, or of sex establishments of a particular
kind, in the relevant locality at the time the application is determined is equal to or
exceeds the number which the authority considers is appropriate for that locality.

22.The Licensing Committee has d?@@&s@4ound that the relevant locality for the

Page 5 of 9



purpose of the Central Chambers premises is the City Centre locality. The full
Licensing Committee has adopted policy on behalf of the Council for the City
Centre locality under which the appropriate number of sex establishments, or of
sex establishments of a particular kind for the City Centre locality is:

Sex shops — 2

Sex cinemas — 0

Sexual entertainment venues (SEV) — 2

23.There are currently two licensed SEV'’s in the City Centre locality of which this
renewal application is one. Therefore if the sub-committee follows the Councils
policy this ground for refusal would not arise.

24.Ground d)
That the grant or renewal of the licence would be inappropriate having regard —
(i) to the character of the relevant locality; or
(i) to the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put; or
(iii) to the layout, character or condition of the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall
in respect of which the application is made.

25.Ground d)(i)
That the grant or renewal of the licence would be inappropriate having regard to
the character of the relevant locality.

At first glance this ground might appear to be a repetition of ground c) but the
committee is reminded that whilst ground c) decisions concern sex
establishments, or sex establishments of a particular kind, generally, ground d) is
concerned with appropriateness of granting the particular licence applied for
having regard to the relevant locality.

Accordingly, simply because ground c) does not apply to a particular application, it
does not follow that ground d)(i) cannot arise. This is because, if granting what is
sought in this particular application were considered to be inappropriate having
regard to the character of the relevant locality, then this ground may be relied
upon to found refusal notwithstanding that other types of relevant entertainment,
or premises of a different appearance, or in a different part of the relevant locality
etc. may not be deemed to be inappropriate in that same locality.

In other words the test in d)(i) is focussed on the particular application and its
appropriateness in the locality.

26.The adopted policy expects the character of the locality to be considered and the
following factors to be taken into account:
(i) the size and appearance of the premises
(i)  their proximity to places where the public congregate for purposes other
than use of the premises, such as bus stops and taxi ranks.
(i) the nature and style of the relevant entertainment that is proposed
(iv) the nature of the clientele it is likely to attract and their number
(v) the duration of the proposed licence / activity
(vi) the manner in which the relevant entertainment is likely to be managed
(vii) the risk of nuisance to others engaged in legitimate activity
(viii) the proposed hours of operation

27.Ground d)(ii).
The use to which other premises in the vicinity are put.

Members will note that this grourmagérgg vicinity and not locality. Members will

Page 6 of 9



have conducted a site visit prior to considering this report and have the benefit of
that together with information in this report and their own local knowledge to help
in the consideration of the factors the policy expects to be taken into account in
considering this ground, as follows:

Whether premises in the vicinity are put to any of the following uses:

(i

(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(V)
(Vi)

(vii)
(vii)
(ix)
)
(xi)
(xii)

Residential, in particular homes occupied by families
leisure,

educational establishments

churches and other places of worship

family friendly facilities

other sex orientated / adult premises (whether or not they are licensed /
licensable)

youth clubs

women’s refuges

community centres

parks and other open spaces

swimming pools

public transport.

28.Ground d)(iii).
That the grant of the licence would be inappropriate having regard to the layout,
character or condition of the premises in respect of which the application is made.

The policy expects the following to be taken into account:

()  Whether the premises are fit for the purpose proposed
(i)  their planning status
(i)  the general appearance to others using the locality
(iv) whether premises are self-contained
(v) means of access and egress, whether shared with other building users (if
any)
(vi) accessibility
(vii) sightlines
(viii) ‘hidden’ areas and other places where effective monitoring may be
hampered
(ix) standard decoration and ‘fit out’
(x)  visibility from the street
(xi) facilities for smokers
(xii) facilities for performers (changing, washing, wc, smoking areas, etc) and
whether they are adequately separated from those provided for customers.
APPENDICES
Appendix A Current Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence
Appendix B Locality map
Appendix C Plan of premises
Appendix D Applicant logo to be displayed on the exterior of the premises
Appendix E House rules
Appendix F Code of conduct for dancers
Appendix G Additional information from applicant
Appendix H Objections received
Appendix I  Comment received
Appendix J Late objection received
RECOMMENDED:

1. That the sub-committee determinep@g@oggaﬂon after affording a hearing to the

Page 7 of 9



applicant.

2. That, if members were minded to grant the application before them, a one year
licence is issued to expire on 15 September 2022. This takes into consideration the
delays in hearing the application caused in the main by the Covid-19 pandemic.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
The relevant key statutory provisions are reflected in the main body of the report.

1. The sub-committee should consider whether or not any of the grounds for refusal arise
in this case. The report accurately sets out those grounds. It will be a matter of fact and
judgement in respect of each ground whether they may be applied in the particular
application under consideration. Where a discretionary ground is judged to apply in this
application the sub-committee must consider whether or not to exercise its discretion to
rely upon that ground (or grounds) to refuse the application. The applicant must be given
the opportunity to persuade the subcommittee either that the ground is not available in
the particular circumstances of this case or, even if it is, that the council ought not to rely
upon it to decide to refuse this application.

2. Subject to acting within the statutory constraints referred to in this report and subject to
adherence to the Council“s own procedure rules the sub-committee is able to set its own

procedure for the conduct of the meeting. As the report makes clear in considering the
application the subcommittee must have regard to any observations submitted to the
Council by the Chief Officer of Police. The legislation does not impose any time limit on
the ability of the Chief Officer to make observations and the Chief Officer of Police is not

limited to objecting.

3. The sub-committee must also have regard to any objections of which notice has been
sent to the Council under paragraph 8(15) of the Third Schedule to the 1982 Act. The
Act requires that an opportunity of appearing before and being heard by a committee or
sub-committee must be afforded to an applicant before refusing to renew a licence.
There is no requirement to allow objectors to be heard although this may be permitted.
Case law makes it clear that in exercising discretion to afford objectors a hearing the
Council must consider the risk of unfairness to the applicant. The meeting should be
conducted as a hearing of the applicant’s case for the grant of a licence and not as an
adversarial contest between the opposing views of the applicants and the objectors. If
hearing from objectors the committee must ensure that the applicant’s opportunity to
deploy all appropriate arguments to the committee remains unimpeded.

It is recommended that before the meeting gets underway the committee chair should set
out the arrangements for enabling objectors to address the meeting and for affording a
hearing to the applicants. Standing orders should be suspended for this part of the
meeting to facilitate this.

4. Case law establishes that an applicant cannot expect that a licence will automatically
be renewed. Within the constraints of the grounds for refusal there is a wide margin of
discretion. Subject to the obligation to give adequate reasons and to have due regard to
its earlier decisions, this subcommittee is entitled to take a fresh look and is not bound in
any way by the views of earlier subcommittees. In order to be adequate, reasons would
need to be, among other things, intelligible and rational, that is to say properly relevant to
the ground or grounds relied upon for refusal. Guidance on the general principles
applying will be available to the subcommittee throughout the hearing and during
deliberations.

Page 27
Page 8 of 9



5. The Council is under a duty in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 to have due regard
to the matters set out in relation to equalities when exercising the function of determining
this renewal application (Public Sector Equalities Duty). Accordingly Members must have
due regard to the need to —

e eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct
prohibited in relevant equalities legislation;

e advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it;

o foster good relations between persons who share a relevant characteristic and
persons who do not share it.

The protected characteristics are set out in the report

5. Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between persons
who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it involves
having due regard, in particular, to the need to —

(a) Remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic:

(b) Take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it

(c) Encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to participate
in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is
disproportionately low.

6. There is no prescribed manner in which the equality duty must be exercised. However,
the Council must have adequate evidence to inform its decision making. This can be in
various forms, including engagement with the public and interest groups and by
gathering details, statistics impact assessments and similar documentary evidence
relevant to the statutory function engaged in this regulatory process.

Kate Burnham-Davies
Regulatory lawyer, Community Litigation Regulatory Team
For Service Director — Legal Services

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
Background papers: Application and supporting documents.
Contact Officer: Abigail Holman, Licensing Team Leader
Regulatory Services
Telephone: 01173574900

Page 28
Page 9 of 9



LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS ) ACT 1982

Part Il Schedule 3
SEXUAL ENTERTAINMENT VENUE

Bristol City Council
Licensing Team (Temple Street), PO Box 3176, BRISTOL BS3 9FS

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder
of licence:
Reedbed Ltd, Murrills House, 48 East Street, Portchester, Fareham, PO16 9XS

Address of premises:
Central Chambers

9 - 11 St Stephens Street
Bristol

BS1 1EE

The licence is granted for one year commencing on: 17 September 2019 (to expire
16 September 2020)

Premises Licence Number: 19/04692/SEV

The licence is granted on the terms, conditions and restrictions set out in the Schedule of
Conditions.

Description of Permitted Relevant Entertainment
(Relevant entertainment has the meaning given in the Act and Permitted Relevant
Entertainment has the meaning given in regulations referred to in the Schedule of
Conditions)

(i) Full nude lap dancing

(i) Full nude striptease on stage

(i) Fully nude live stage shows

(iv)  Fully nude pole dancing

(V) Topless and fully nude lap dances in a designated area

SCHEDULE OF CONDITIONS

Save where they have been expressly excluded or varied, as particularised in paragraph 1
of this schedule, the licence is granted subject to the terms, conditions and restrictions
prescribed by the Authority in regulations (“Standard Conditions”) and also to any
additional terms, conditions and restrictions set out in paragraph 2 of this schedule.

Paragraph 1 — Exclusion and variation of Standard Conditions.

G20



1.1 Standard Conditions that have been excluded: None
1.2 Standard conditions that have been varied: None

Paragraph 2 — Additional terms, conditions and restrictions;
2.1 Relevant entertainment may only take place on the following days and times:
Monday to Sunday 12:00 — 06:30 the following day

2.2 CCTV.

(i) There shall be clear signage indicating that CCTV equipment is in use and recording at
the premises during all trading hours

(i) If relevant entertainment is specifically provided for an audience of one (for example
what is sometimes referred to as a private dance) the camera must be positioned and
operated so as to ensure that both parties are clearly identifiable from the captured
images.

(iii) All monitors shall be positioned so that customers may not observe images.

(iv) That the CCTV system be modernised/upgraded in accordance with the requirements
of Bristol City Council and the Police by end of November 2013.

2.3 Relevant entertainment shall not include any word, action or imagery that endorses or
depicts, or might reasonably be taken as endorsing or depicting, or be promoted as
including, any conduct which, if taking place in reality, would amount to a criminal offence;
for the avoidance of doubt this imposes a prohibition on any performer being clothed in a
school uniform or otherwise attired or presented as being a school student or a child or
being promoted as such in any media.

Signed:

|-
—73 e

Jonathan Martin
Regulatory Compliance Unit manager

Enclosures

R0



City Council of Bristol (The Council)
Regulations prescribing standard conditions applicable to licences for

sexual entertainment venues
Made on the; 25 day of February 2011.
Coming into force on the: 1 day of July 2011

1. The Council makes these regulations pursuant to its power under paragraph 13 of the
Third Schedule to the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (“The Act”).
2. In these conditions

‘Audience’; ‘Sexual Entertainment Venue’; and ‘Relevant Entertainment’; each have the
meaning given in the Act .

‘Performer’ means any individual who performs or actively participates in Relevant
Entertainment (whether or not they are an employee) and “Performance” and

“Performing” shall be construed accordingly.

‘Permitted Relevant Entertainment’ means entertainment falling within the

description specified on the licence as being permitted at the licensed premises

‘Relevant Offence’ means

1. An offence under the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982

Schedule 3.

2. A sexual offence, being an offence listed in Part 2 of Schedule 15 to the Criminal Justice
Act 2003, other than the offence mentioned in paragraph 95

(an offence under section 4 of the Sexual Offences Act 1967 (procuring others

to commit homosexual acts));

3. Every Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence granted, renewed or transferred by the
Council shall be presumed to have been so granted, renewed or transferred subject to the
standard conditions contained in the schedule unless they have been expressly excluded
or varied by the Council.

Schedule
A. Only Permitted Relevant Entertainment is authorised under this licence.

B. Permitted relevant entertainment may only take place on those parts of the premises as
are identified on the plan annexed to the licence.

C. Relevant entertainment shall not occur in private rooms, cubicles or other enclosed
areas. For these purposes a room, cubicle or other area is private unless it is completely
open on one side so that activities within may be supervised from the exterior.

D. The Council shall be provided with a Code of Conduct for Performers and Rules to be
observed by members of the audience.

E. The Code and Rules referred to in Condition D above shall be brought to the
attention of all performers and members of the audience and reasonable measures shall
be taken to ensure that they are complied with.

F. 1. At no time during the performance may there be any contact between a performer
and a customer. Prior to the performance or at the completion of the performance there
may be hand-to-hand payment for the performance.

2. At no time except during the performance may a performer or employee be

Fadsal



unclothed. Immediately following the performance, the performer must dress, so that (for
example) the performer may not be unclothed when seeking payment for a performance.
3. No performer or employee may at any time (and whether or not performing):
a. sit or lie on the lap or any other part of any customer;
b. kiss, stroke, fondle, caress or embrace any customer;
c. engage in any other contact of a sexual nature with any customer.
4. In these conditions:
a. “customer” means any person visiting the premises other than employees or
performers, whether or not they have paid for or intend to pay for services provided;
b. “employee” means any person working at the venue whether under a contract of
employment or some other contract;
c. “unclothed” means when breasts and/or genitals and/or anus are fully or
partially uncovered.
d. “other contact of a sexual nature” means contact which must reasonably be
assumed to be provided solely or principally for the purpose of sexually
stimulating the customer.

G. As soon as is reasonably practicable, and in any event within seven days, the

Council shall be notified of any material change in the management structure, where a
material change means one which is at variance with the information provided in the most
recent application for a license, or its renewal or variation as the case may be;

H. No person shall be employed or shall perform at the premises who has unspent
convictions for any Relevant Offence;

|. Copies of the license and the conditions applicable to it shall be displayed on the
premises in a place where it is likely to be seen by every member of the audience;

J. The licensee shall retain control over all parts of the licensed premises when used for
Relevant Entertainment;

K. Customers shall be made aware of any charge for admission to the premises, and of
any further charges that may be levied in connection with the provision of Relevant
Entertainment, before being admitted to the premises;

L. There shall be no display either upon or outside of the licensed premises (in such a way
that it is visible on the exterior) of photographs or other images which indicate or suggest
that Relevant Entertainment is provided upon the premises, with the exception of any
registered trade mark, trading name or trading symbol that has been provided to the
Council in connection with the most recent application for licence, its renewal or variation
as the case may be;

M. The licensee shall ensure that no area where Relevant Entertainment may take
place can be viewed from outside the licensed premises at any time;

N. The licensed premises shall be sufficiently illuminated to ensure that usable CCTV
images can be captured,;

0O.1. Performers shall not be permitted to share the following facilities with any

members of the audience and suitable separate provision must be made;
(i) water closet;

32



(i) washing facilities;
2. Performers and Audience shall not be permitted to share any smoking area
3. No Member of the audience shall be permitted to enter any changing area
used by Performers

P. All external doors affording access to the licensed premises shall be fitted with a
device to provide for their automatic closure and such device shall be maintained in good
working order;

Q. The availability of relevant entertainment shall not be marketed or advertised in any of
the following ways:-
(a) by means of personal solicitation in the locality of the licensed premises;
(b) by means of leafleting in the locality;
(c) by means of externally displayed advertisement (such as on billboards) in any
part of the Council’s administrative area

R. The following shall be made available without charge to performers and the
Audience:
Literature and contact names and telephone numbers of organisations that provide advice
and counselling on matters relating to:-
(i) sexual problems;
(i) family planning;
(iii) sexually transmitted diseases
(iv) rape and sexual assault.

S. (i) No telephone number, residential address, email address or other information that
may facilitate further contact between performers and members of the Audience is passed
from audience to performer, or vice versa; and

(i) This prohibition shall be brought to the attention of all members of the Audience

T. (i) Performers may perform only in accordance with written contracts, which

define their rights and obligations, including terms as to the nature of their

performance and payment. No deduction shall be made from such payment unless
permitted by the contract, and no deduction by way of penalty shall be permitted;

(i) No relevant entertainment shall be provided by any performer unless sufficient checks
have been made of documents evidencing the performer’s age, identity and right to work
in the United Kingdom;

(iii) Copies of all documents referred to in (i) and (ii) above shall be retained for not less
than 12 months after the last provision of Relevant Entertainment by the said Performer
and shall be produced to an authorised officer of the Council or a Constable upon request
at any reasonable time.

U. The licensee shall exercise all due diligence and take all reasonable steps to ensure

that the terms and conditions imposed on the licence are observed and complied with at all
times.

33



Appendix B — Locality map

1puUnog Ao [oisug “sBuipaadoid i o) pes| Aew pue yBuAdod umoin sabuuyul uonanpoidal pasuoyINeun "9orEZ000k

210z WbuAdon umoid @ ejep SO abejusy ysibul @ Aisbewl jeuse g6 “Aijawolld wolg @ Aisbew [euse 710z 0SZ'L:L

slaquey) [enus)

Gyipl ¥e 0gog Aenuer yi,  Aepsan] uo pajesald juswndoq

Page 34



Appendix C — Plan of premises

1NOAYT HOOTd ANNOYED ONILSIX3

L) Nvoe 0

Pee—— - ARGE ADNIOHINE ONILSIXT

WS TTAYYaE SN

e — S

WAL N A

TP Ll

W08 el

TP N b

HOLTIU) ICevs

OLL SOVLLY IMOGady

T R SN0 IR

R e

X (:’ : ,i'::*‘" N IR

\Y/
AL

M_er 1o esama

AMONT BNORLE YTV e

~

WAIOT KV B

'._/ o
J

=

BT i

N\

{39 | MDY B

/

~ LU al
| | e a0 auwesa

LAVEN IR T e

.i/ \‘.A

NOUYLS DNAMOLINON
ALID T A0

ol B R

——
r

| MR | N BICALT T

pooone@umi® aem

DML Dy
FRE LB AAD0EE SNV

R ROCRRST T LT I
e FHOLS uva

ST MO YT lu E

‘SI" = "ﬁ“\‘.\!"r'/ }

e ‘;\3/

VIV )
JONVA ILVAINL _
MO YONOT T O A A Wi

VBV WD At O AR OU
SRR 00000 20 OO Wl

[ STOSRAS OL ASH

Page 35



LBV AN W ddd

i
i
e

§
by
-
3
g
ecoexe@UESe 4

ST08NAS OL A3

LNOAVT LN3INISVL ONILSIX3

Page 36



Appendix D — applicant logo

APPENDIX D

APPLICANT LOGO (NOT DISPLAYED ON THE EXTERIOR OF THE PREMISES)

A _(\JQ.O.C(.M o
ron 2 m:.ﬂf\_ re
=ad

C & :
TA L nul)rngamqw

Ly

10792—3\0
- - AﬂO.F}I-A

Page 37



Appendix E

ENTRAL

CHAMBERS

HOUSE

RULES

We hope you have a great experience here ot Central Chambers
but pelitely remind you of some house rules ...

Please beware that CETY camaras sre irstalled throughout the club and private dance arcas
for the protection of both staff and customers.

The exchange of telaphone nurmbiars, amail addresses ar ather personzs| details betweon
performers and customers |5 atrictly prohibited,

Phones must not be wsed inside the club but they may b= usad qutside, On arrival you will
b asked to switch your phone off whilst inside the premises, Anybady found to be
ignoring this rale will be asked to leave the club immediately.

AL no time dusing the performance of & lap dance may there be any contact between a
performar and customer. Any cusbomer atbempling bo make physical contact
with performars will be asked te leave the premises.

Randem search palicies operate in this club. Pleass do nok Lesve ary
belongings unattended.

Although we are opan till Gam there is no re entry after 4.30am,
This includes customers -Hlilli:-l smiske and use cash machines.

Performers must be treated with respect at sl times. banagement, Security and
Parfarmars reserve the right to stop a dance at anytime or ask you te Leave the premises if

they feel your behaviour is inconsiderate.

Aryy parsen found either possessing, using or distributing any type of drug will
be bannad from these premises and reported te the police.

Page 38



Appendix F — Code of conduct

CENTRA

@]ﬁ@@h@mﬁg% CHAMBERS

Code Of Conduct For Performers/Performers Contract for Urban Tiger & Central Chambers,

o All performers must have a valld form of photo 1D thet management shall take a copy of to keep with
all dancer contracts to prove their ientity and age. &l non UK residents will need to produce
dacurmentation that proves their eligiiity to work in the UK. Only & UK driving licence or passport will
be classed a5 sultable photographic ID. A copy of D and docunents shall be retained for no less than
12 months after the lest provision of refevant entertainment by the sald performer and produced fo an
authorised officer of the cound| or 8 constable upon request.

o Mo person shall be employed or shall pesform at the premizses that have unspant convictions for amy
redevant offence. You will be required to have a CRB check done to prova this.

o Performers may perform only in accordance with written contacts, which define thes rights and
chligations, Including terms as to the nature of thelr performance and payment.

o Parformers will ba required to pay a fee to club each evening that they work. The maximum house fee
for each night is: Tue £30, Wed £40, Thur £60, Fri £100 & Sat £1200 A 4 week notice will be ksued for
ary increase In house fees or changes bo dub prices.

o Perfonmers will receive payment from customers for each dence that they perform and work as @ self-
employed conbractor. Dance prices are sat and can nok be aitered by the parformer at any tirme, Dances
are efther tophess or fully nude must be at beast 3 ménutes long. Topless dences are £10 and & full pude
dance |s £20, Payment 8 hand to hand payrmeant. Customers are permitted to band the perfonmer cagh
or dance chips by way of hand to hand payment prior to the performance or af the completion of the
perfarmance.

o Parformers are permitted to inform managament or security of their arrval at the starl o the shilt and
make sure they are signed in for every shift. Dancers must inform managament when they beave the
premises 5o that management can sign them out. Security will escort any performer bo Cars, car parks
or taxi's at the end of the shift I requested for your own safety,

o When requested, performers may be required to do @ pole dance on the stage area. The first song s
performed clothed and the end of the $scond Song 5 lopless,

o Good conduct must be maintained gt all times, and all sbeps must be teken to awold Injury to persans
or demage o property, All relevant health and sefety and fire procedures for the venwe must be
Follomied.

o Audience participation is strictly prohibited and custaomers must remain clothed and seated at all imes
during the parformance.

o Customers must adhere to the clubs strict no fouching policy. Performers ara required to report all
incidents as soon as reasenably practical, Any customer who ignores: this policy will be remowed from
the club: immediately. Al incidents must be reparted to club management andor security, Should a
custormer touch oF sttempt to touch the pesformer must with draw mmediately and report the incident,
Management and security reserve the right to stop 8 dance at anytime if thay feel the customers
behavicur i inconsiderate or pases a potential Ask of breaking the venues Boence conditions,

o Parformance off stage Is only parmitted when customers are seated in the designated dance area.

Relevant entrainmant may only ke place in designated dance areas as ldeptifled on the plan enpexed
to the venwes licence.

Page 39



e

No sex acts shall take place or contact of a sexual nature which must reasonably be assumed to be
provided solefy or principally for the purpose of sexually stimulating the customer, There shall be no
contact between the customer/dancer and between the dancer/customer at any time during the
performance. No petformer will sit or lie on the lap or any other part of the customer. Dancers are not
permitted to fondle, kiss, caress or embrace any customer. Performers may biow the customer a kiss
at the end of a dance or hand to hand contact is acceptable such as & hand shake or a Hi Flve at the
end of the dance.

CCTV comeras are installed threughout the venue and private dance areas for the protection of
customers and performers. CCTV shall be retained for a minimum of 31 days and made avadable to an
authorised officer of the police or licensing autherity upon request. This Includes dance area foatage.
Husbands, boyfriends, wives, girifriends and friends of dancers are not permitted on the premises at
any time except with prior permission of the management, Pesformers are not to permitted to visit the
venue off duty with out prior permission from the management,

When not performing, performers must not enter the other licensed aress In a state of undress.
Performers can only be fully nude In designated dance areas during a pesformance.

Performers must not dividge telephone numbers, residential address, emal address or other
Infoemation that may faclitate further contact between customers and dancers or vice versa,
Performers must only use the staff designated tollets and changing area provided. They are not
permitted to share talets or washing faciities will members of the public.

Performers and customers are not permitted to share any smoldng area.

Any performer that appears to be drunk or under the influence of drugs will be asked to leave the
premises immediately. The company operates a zero tolerance to drugs and any dancer found to be
using or distributing any form of drugs will be Instantly dismissed and reported to the police.
Random search palicies are carrled out by management and security.

Literature, contact names and numbers of organisations that provide advice and courselling on matters
relating to: sexual problems, family planning, sexually transmitted diseases, rape and sexual assaults
are made avallable free of charge to every performer, Information and Bterature can be found i the
performers changing rooms.

All dancers are self employed dancers and are responsible for their own PAYE and Tax.

Please be aware that the majority of these restrictions are laid down as part of the conditions of the clubs SEV
licence and are therefare not negotiable In any way, shape or form. If any dancer is unsure of any of these
procedures or licence conditions, please speak to a member of management immediately for darification,
There is a copy of the new SEV licence in the changing rcom which must be read and understood. Every
performer shall exerdse 3 due diligence and take all reasonable steps to ensure that the terms and conditions
imposed on the venues licence are cbsarved and complied with at all times,

A copy of this contract has to be kept by Urban Tiger/Central Chambers for 12 months after the last provision
of entertainment by the dancer and produced to any council officlal or police officer on request.

I have read and understand the above conditions and sign below to accept these conditions

Print Name Signature
Date of Birth
Tel. Number
Address
Date Commenced, Date Contract Endied

Page 40



Appendix G — Additional information from applicant

OF AN APPLICATION
T RENEW A SEV LICENCE FOR CENTRAL CHAMBERS,
211 ST STEPHENS STREET. BRISTOL. BSI IEE

L THE BUSINESS AND ITS OFERATION

IE The Applicant operntes o Chollenge 21 Policy.  All customers who the Management
consider 10 leok under the age of 21 will bave 1o produce photographie [D te prove that they
are B years or older, The Applicand only sccepts o UK Driving Liceos, Pasaport or Prove
It Card as valid forms of idestificatbon. Theve is a strict pole that if there is no idenfification
thers is no endry, Challenge 21 signs will be displayed ot the entrarcs b the venae.

3G Management will monflor all OCTV images by way of several moniters kept behind the
bar, The COTY shall meniar the vutside of the venee, inside the public bar area, inside the
dasce aren, behind the bar, dhe stnirs down to the toil=ts and also slafl aens. All
Mamagement have meezived training on e recording aystem and will be able to show all
authorised hodies the regquired images. [F such authorised bodies require a copy of the
impges o ke away with them this can be dose from the premises by Managemenl. Images
will b copied on to & memory stick thot the authorised bodies can ke away with therm.
COTY toctage will be kept for o minimum of 3 days, [naddition to the above a new PFTE
camera system has been inatalled the security staff can monitor the CCTV system on rpads
whilst warking.

JH  The proposed relevant entertainment is full nude lap dancing, full sude sirg tease on atage,
anndd Tully rede Jive stape shows and fully nude pole daneing.

4, GENERAL MANAGEMENT OF PREMISES

45 Al dancers will be briefed on the Code of Cenduet For perfermers by Management.
Dramcers will sign a declaration that they have read and understood pll licence conlitiens

ol code of conduct for performers.  Moniloring will be by Management and Security
petrolling the damce area at regular intervals and monitoring  dancers om CCTV,
Enforcemerit will be ng per ow disciplinary procedurs which inchudes two wamings and if a
third affence is commidbed wie wall end the dancer™s Contract at the Clab.

4B Customers will be made aware of the Code of Condwet by means of signage and a briefing
from Sesunly before estering the premises.  Monitoring will be by Managesment nml
Seeurity patrolling the Club ansd menitaring images en COTY, Customers i beeach of this
Code of Conduct will be asked o beave the premises, Signs will alse be displayed inside
the precwises vo remind all customers of the Code of Conduct and specifically of the no
conlacd rubs,

5 ADDITIONAL DETAILS

34 The Applicant has been ruandng Cendral Chambers a5 a Lap dancing Club for over 17 years,

Mamagement are very experienced in nmning this {ype of venue and have always worked
very closely with the Local Authaniy and Police 10 mabe aune that all erma of the Licencea

are met. The Applicant also goes beyond what is required of them So ansure that the

Page 41



premises is well run and performers and staff have a safe and enjoyable working
environment,

Page 42



LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS ) ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

Appendix H

Information in this table is to be kept strictly confidential

Detail of application

Name of applicant:

Reedbed Ltd, Central Chambers
(Reference: 20/03326/SEV)

Address of premises:

9 - 11 St Stephens Street, Bristol, BS1 1EE

Application date:

25" August 2020

Date by which objections must be
received:

22" August 2020

Please enter the detail of your objection below. Please note however that objections
based on moral grounds cannot be accepted. Objections may be continued overleaf or

on separate sheets of paper.

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX objects to the renewal of the SEV licence to the above applicant on a
number of grounds including the location of the applicant’s premises, the Council’s duties

under Equalities Law and its obligations under Crime and Disorder legislation.

| do not wish this objection to be summarised as | would prefer the Committee to read a

copy of it in its entirety.

Why we ask you to refuse the application

Safety and Equality of women in Bristol

1. As a signatory of the European Charter for Equality of Women and Men in Local Life,
Bristol City Council must recognise that “gender-based violence arises from the idea, on the
part of the perpetrator, of the superiority of one sex over the other in... an unequal
relationship of power” (Article 22.2). SEVs reflect and contribute to a popular culture in
which women’s bodies are objectified and seen as available for men’s use, while the
opposite is not the case. This culture perpetuates the notion of “the superiority of one sex

Page 1 of 5

Page 43



over the other” as identified in the Charter'. The Council’s duty under the Equality Act 2010
and the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) includes the need to have due regard to the need
to eliminate discrimination and harassment of women and advance equality of opportunity
for women, as well as foster good relations between men and women. The claims made by
Sexual Entertainment Venues in Bristol to be champions of equality are not only
extraordinary but irrelevant to SEV applications with regard to the PSED. It is the local
authority which must meet the requirements of the Public Sector Equality Duty.

2. The presence and operation of this club promotes discrimination against women and
harassment of women, stands in the way of the advancement of equal opportunities for
women, and fosters bad relations between men and women. All of these effects are the
very opposite of what Bristol City Council is required to aim for under our equality laws.
Central Chambers promotes harmful attitudes towards women as a group who share the
legally protected characteristic of the female sex. Research demonstrates that the sexual
objectification of women, which is encouraged and practised within SEVs in the context of
our sexist society, acts to reinforce gender inequality and the attitudes that support and
encourage violence against women, which is in itself a cause and consequence of gender
inequality. Gender inequality and violence against women are “two sides of the same coin”.”

3. Harmful social norms and practices that permit some women to make a living while
disadvantaging women as a group remain harmful. Our reasons for requesting a refusal of
this licence are based on the impact upon all women and girls in Bristol and who number
over 230,000m. By the club’s own account, consideration of the work created for the women
who currently perform in Central Chambers and who may, by their representations, be said
to benefit (in the short term) cannot by any measure compare with the negative impact
upon all women and girls We want to see all women employed in good jobs that suit their
circumstances. Those jobs should not be (and are not) confined to the sex trade. For as long
as SEVs were allowed to operate in Bristol many of us have fought for conditions that would
make the women working there as safe as possible. But there is no evidence that these
conditions work and there is no evidence at all that the trade goes ‘underground” when
licences are refused.

4. It is not “sex” that is the problem. It is the fact that in our society men as a class are
dominant and more powerful than women, and women’s sexuality is seen as existing for,
and being in the service of, men’s desires to do what they want when they want. This self-
proclaimed “Gentlemen’s Club” quite deliberately reinforces this message and perpetuates
the financial and social inequality of women compared to men in our society. It is entirely
irrelevant whether there are also men stripping or showing off their bodies to customers in
the premises: research shows us that it is only the sexual objectification of women that is
related to gender inequality and to violence against women. The context is our unequal
society.

5. The continued licensing of SEVs, in this case specifically Central Chambers, by Bristol City
Council means that the Council fails to meet obligations under the Charter and fails to
engage with the purpose of our national equalities legislation. This diminishes the status of
Bristol as a modern European City where both women and men should be able to lead
fulfilled lives in a safe and fair society. Bristol as a city is committed to the eradication of
violence and abuse of women and girls. In 2012 the city was awarded White Ribbon City

Page 2 of 5 Page 44




status which requires cities to work towards a status of zero SEVs. Bristol City Council is
supportive of the xxxxxxxxxxxxxxx Bristol Zero Tolerance initiative and both previous and
current Mayors have also pledged their support. The Bristol Zero Tolerance initiative has
sought to address all forms of gender-based violence, abuse, harassment and exploitation in
the city and achieving a nil cap policy on SEVs is a part of this work. There are other current
approaches to addressing violence and abuse in the city including public health campaigns,
school campaigns and university campaigns all dedicated to changing social norms around
gender inequality, attitudes to women and the acceptability of violence towards women.
The Bristol Against Violence and Abuse Strategy 2015-2020 led by the Council includes an
objective to reduce the opportunities for sexual exploitation and negative perceptions of
women connected to SEVs." These projects are supported by or run by Bristol City Council.
We believe that the continued licensing of SEVs directly undermines this work and is not
compatible with the wider outcomes and aims that the city hopes to achieve in terms of
gender equality and gender-based violence. We have numerous local policies and strategies
which highlight the importance of equality, safety and addressing gender-based violence,
however, there are no local policies which see the presence of SEVs in the city as positive.

6. We know from research that the sexual objectification of women is a feature of the link
between men’s alcohol use and their perpetration of sexual violence. This research was
published in 2014, long after parliament had clamped down on SEVs and passed the
responsibility for whether they should be present in our cities to local councils. SEVs trade
in sexual objectification of women in an environment where alcohol is free-flowing. It is
obvious to those of us who are knowledgeable in this area that the presence of this SEV in
Bristol clearly impacts negatively on the safety as well as the hopes for equality of women
and girls. A local authority which grants the licensing of SEVs contributes to the
normalisation of exploitation and gender-based violence which initiatives such as Bristol
Zero Tolerance have tried to combat.

7. Central Chambers is in the central Cumulative Impact Zone. Bristol’s Statement of
Licensing Policy states that this area “has a significant concentration of alcohol led late night
venues, witnesses a high number of assaults and other related crime and disorder including
public nuisance and risk to public safety”. In 2017 Avon and Somerset Police submitted a
report that detailed a number of reports of crime and disorder directly related to the
premises and also reported 40 sexual offences within the area in a 12-month period. How
many sexual crimes are too many? That year, representatives for the club tried to whittle
this number down and tried to downplay our police’s view, but in previous years before the
police had begun to object, you were asked to pay attention to the police’s view as “your
experts on crime and disorder”. Whether you believe that these sexual offences are directly
related to the presence of the club, or that the club happens coincidentally to be situated in
a hotspot for violent and sexual crimes against women, it is clear that this is an
inappropriate location for a SEV.

8. Bristol women themselves express concern over the levels of harassment that are linked
with having an SEV in a central location in Bristol.

9. A number of local authorities in the UK have stopped granting licenses to SEVs. They have
implemented their policy approaches to achieving women’s equality, which includes
acknowledging and acting on the links between SEVs and gender-based violence and

Page 3 of 5 Page 45




inequality.

10. Itis shocking that every year you hear what we think are irrelevant arguments such as,
there is no “tacky lighting” or “seedy facades”, there are no “dancers skulking around the
entrance chatting away”", which have nothing to do with why we ask you to refuse this
application. It is also in my view irrelevant to hear lists of people who have not objected, or
to hear times when the venue is not open. What we are concerned with is the very fact of
the presence of the venue in our historic city centre, and the impact of the activities that go
on inside its doors. We are concerned with gender equality. We don’t believe that you
think a list of things that could be worse should be weighed up as though they are more
important or relevant than our city’s progress towards equality between our women and
men, girls and boys.

The sub-committee has a clearly-granted ability or prerogative to make this decision

11. The sub-committee are the representatives of the people, and guidance from the Home
Office 2010 states that the purpose of the legislation is “to give local people a greater say
over the number and location of lap dancing clubs [SEVs] in their area”. The possibility of a
judicial challenge from establishments may be a concern for local authorities but there is no
appeal on the grounds of locality and there is no case law that suggests action that
prioritises gender equality made in good faith and based on the ever-developing advice of
expert local women’s organisations could be considered anything other than entirely
appropriate.

12. Case law also notes that licensing authorities can have a ‘fresh look’ at applications for
renewal of an SEV license and may refuse to renew a licence even if there is no change in
circumstances at all. Refusal to renew is also not a breach of human rights.

13. In practice, the sub-committee considering this application for renewal will be differently
constituted to the first sub-committee that granted the application when the new legislation
came into force a number of years ago. Meanwhile, further evidence has emerged
confirming the links between sexual objectification, violence and inequality. With every new
residential development and every new policy that puts equality at the heart of what Bristol
strives for, the case for refusal has grown stronger and case law sees that a different
decision can be made based on such “consideration of dynamic matters”.

Unsuitability of premises and location

14. The prime city centre location of Central Chambers is a constant reminder, to women
and men, girls and boys, of Bristol’s tolerance of sexism and inequality in the city. The
proximity to bus stops, residences and public buildings, such as churches, as well as public
perception has not to date been taken appropriately into consideration with the location of
Central Chambers in Bristol City Centre. It’s very clear from the City Council’'s own policy that
the location is unsuitable given the grounds that sub-committees are directed to take into
account when deciding whether to allow an SEV to operate.

Page 4 of 5 Page 46




15. The Council have received various objections in the past to the renewal of SEV licenses
including details of sexual harassment that some women have experienced in the vicinity of
SEVs and specifically that of Central Chambers. Women also report feeling unsafe,
unwelcome and intimidated when near these establishments. As Philip Kolvin QC notes, “the
fears of women using the vicinity of premises may be reflected in decisions as to the
location of such facilities... These concerns are directly reflected in the Royal Town Planning
Institute’s Gender and Spatial Planning Good Practice Note, which states: ‘...ensure that the
views of women are considered. Evidence shows that in certain locations, lap-dancing and
exotic dancing clubs make women feel threatened or uncomfortable.””""

16. Residential Character: The premises are also close to residential homes, inhabited by
families as well as by impressionable young people and by women living alone.

17. Character of the locality including leisure and family friendly facilities and churches:
People visiting Baldwin Street, St Nicholas Market, and other shops and businesses may
have to pass Central Chambers. The premises are not “discreetly located” but are close to
family-friendly restaurants, shops, cafes and on a public transport route that are accessed by
a huge proportion of people including children. The historic area is also a “first impression”
for many visiting the city. Based on these venues, the street is a highly inappropriate
location for a venue that perpetuates inequality.

18. Further, Bristol women have expressed concern over the levels of harassment that are

linked with having an SEV in a central location in Bristol and they have made it clear that
they avoid the area.

On all these grounds | object to this application.

T XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX, Sexual Entertainment Venue Policy Statement, Licensing Special
Purposes Sub Committee, 6" November 2014

" https://www.unwomen.org/en/news/stories/2017/10/speech-ed-phumzile-five-days-of-
violence-prevention-conference
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/documents/20182/33904/Population+of+Bristol+August+2019.
pdf/96d16bad-49f6-c535-ba7d-a11f24b8d3b3

Y https://www.bava.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/Bristol-Against-Violence-and-Abuse-
Strategy-2015-2020.pdf

Y These are direct quotes from last year’s hearing.

¥ Kolvin, P. (2010) Sex Licensing.

Page 5 of 5 Page 47




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA LETTER AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 21 Sept 2020

RE: Central Chambers

Details of my objection:

1. | object to this application on the grounds that it devalues women and experts’
studies show that this degradation leads to violence towards women and girls. It
doesn’t matter how much the venue owners comply with the requirements
internally or externally, the fact remains that men pay to watch women take all
their clothes off and dance naked in front of them. Until women are treated with
respect by Bristol City Council and councils all over the country, women in
general will still be treated with disrespect. Bristol is supposed to be a city of
equality. Please exercise your power to make this a no.

. | object to this venue on the basis of its location. It is opposite a church. It is
within a residential area. Central Quay North, Baldwin Street, Bristol
Backpackers — Electricity home and many more apartments that are nearby.
When you do your walk to the inspection, why not take a few minutes to see how
the area has changed? It's now residential, traffic is restricted in the old city and
its pavement café culture is growing. It's very modern now and certainly not the
place for a strip club. Please do not renew the licence for Central Chambers.




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

Detail of application

Name of applicant: Reedbed Ltd, Central Chambers

(Reference: 20/03326/SEV)
Address of premises: 9 - 11 St Stephens Street, Bristol, BS1 1EE
Application date: 25 August 2020

Date by which objections must | 22 September 2020
be received:

Please enter the detail of your objection below.

| would like my objection to be shown in full to the committee please. | would like to
retain my anonymity.

| am objecting on the following grounds and would like to remind the licensing sub-committee
that they are entitled to take a fresh look at applications each year and there is no presumption
to grant a licence because it has been granted previously.

1 |Inappropriate location

| would like to draw the licensing committee’s attention to the case of Selfridges, the
department store, who employed Philip Kolvin in September 2020, to fight the licence
application for a lap dancing club that had applied to open opposite the store’s entrance.

Mr Kolvin stated that:
"This proposal for a lap dancing club is entirely inimical to the character of this

area. It has no place here... This is not [an application] for a corner store.
"It's a 6am sexual entertainment venue licence and nightclub in a highly sensitive

1

Page 49




location.”

In arguing the case for the licence application, | would like to understand how it is
inappropriate for a lap dancing club to open opposite a department store but, in Bristol, it
is entirely appropriate for it to open in an area that is:

¢ close to St Stephen’s church. Those attending the church for services or for other
groups may have to walk past the club when it is open. At a previous hearing,
the church said that many people who attended their groups were vulnerable.
next to a backpacker’s hostel which will be used by single female travellers.
heavily residential with numerous apartment blocks surrounding it.

close to Westlea Housing — student halls of residence

situated on a busy pedestrian road, linking Broad Quay to Corn Street

The club invites groups of men to consume alcohol and participate in sex entertainment
during the afternoon. As this club is offering sex entertainment for most of the working
day and evening, it is hard to understand how it does not have an impact on the
surrounding area. | am aware of someone who moved away from the area because of
the continual sexual harassment she faced from the clientele of Central Chambers when
passing by. The adverts below are taken from Central Chambers’ social media.

chambersbristol @CCs_Bristol

Page 50




BRISTOL
www.bristolstagandhen.co.uk @:
0117 960 10 N E&at&@

@Hen_Stog_Info and

stogsandhensbristol

This inappropriate city centre location impacts on the image that Bristol sends out to both
residents and visitors alike. It sends out the overt message that, despite its White
Ribbon and Zero Tolerance status, Bristol City Council is content to licence an activity
that objectifies women and that has been linked to violence against women and girls. It
implies that the city council, despite its commitments and aspirations, does not value
women and girls as it should.

In addition to this message, there is also the tangible feeling of threat and intimidation
that women and girls feel at having to walk past these establishments — when open: from
the men going in and out of the club, and when shut: knowing what the places are there
for and how insignificant the city council deems the impact on women.

Incompatibility with Bristol's commitment to being a ‘White Ribbon city’
Sex entertainment venues contribute to negative attitudes against women and girls.

Numerous studies have established that, when a man views a woman as a sexual object,
he sees her as less than fully human. There is a wide range of work showing that
objectified women are also perceived as less competent. Research has shown that,
when men view sexualised pictures of women, they subsequently view a female
experimenter as doing a worse job'. In other words, men “carry over” their views of the

1

Heflick, NA & Goldenberg, JL (2009). Objectifying Sarah Palin: Evidence that objectification of women

causes women to be perceived as less competent and less fully human. Journal of Experimental Social

3

Page 51




sexualised women to another woman who was not scantily dressed. In the ‘real world’,
consider the impact on a man who has been to a lap dancing club on a corporate event
with his male peers interacting with his female colleagues the next day; or consider the
impact on a member of a stag party who will be interacting with his partner after visiting a
lap dancing club.

A study, “Street Harassment — It's Not Ok™, published on 8th October 2018 by the
children’s charity, Plan International UK, revealed that: “Two-thirds of the girls we
surveyed — 66% — had experienced sexual attention or sexual or physical contact in a
public place, while 38% had experienced verbal harassment at least once a month. 15%
reported being touched, groped or grabbed every month.” The media picked up the story
with the headline: “a third of girls had been harassed while wearing their school
uniform’®,

The charity is calling on the government to recognise street harassment as a type of
"gender-based violence" and is asking for there to be support for boys and men to
change their attitudes and challenge harassment. The report contained interviews with
girls, one of whom said: "It's just become normal." | hope the licensing sub-committee
understands the connection between lap dancing clubs which objectify women and the
sense of entitlement over women’s bodies that leads men and boys to sexually harass
women and girls with impunity. (A quick glance at the social media of Central Chambers
shows photo after photo of headless sexualised women, a practice which perpetuates
the idea of women as objects.)

As noted above in the Plan International UK study, the sense of entitlement does not just
happen; it is a consequence of culture in which women are sexually objectified.

In terms of possible incidents inside the club against the dancers, Central Chambers self-
polices and it is not in its interest to report assaults on the dancers to the police. This
point was well made by a member of the licensing sub-committee in March 2018 and by
the Licensing Inspector. If the club were to report sexual assaults, it could be risking its
SEV licence. Incidents are therefore managed by the club itself, for example: ejecting
the offending client into the street which can have consequences for those in the vicinity.

In September 2019, a man was jailed for committing a sexual assault against a lap
dancer at Bristol Crown Court. The club itself wasn’t named but, as the perpetrator was
convicted in Bristol, it is likely that it was a Bristol club. The licensing committee is
repeatedly told that there is not a shred of evidence that sexual assaults can be linked to
the lap dancing clubs in Bristol. However, this is an assault that was known about before
the previous licensing committee hearing at which the SEVs were granted and was not
mentioned. Representatives of the club claim that assaults don’t take place and that the
club is safe yet here is clear evidence that assaults can and do happen in lap dancing

Psychology,, 45, 598-601 and Loughnan, S. Haslam, N, Murmane, T., Vaes, J., Reynolds, C., & Suitner, C (2010).
Objectification leads to depersonalisation: The denial of mind and moral concern to objectified others. European
Journal of Social Psychology, 40, 709-717.

2 https://plan-uk.org/file/plan-uk-street-harassment-reportpdf/download?token=CyKwYGS)

3 https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-45777787

Page 52



clubs.

The applicants will claim that the club is open to all in an attempt to minimise the focus
on men but marketing a sex entertainment venue to women and couples is merely a
cynical way of normalising the sex industry to women.

3 Incompatibility with Bristol’s commitment to the European charter for equality of
men and women in local life (‘Zero Tolerance’)

Granting such a licence is incompatible with Bristol's commitment to the European
charter for equality of men and women in local life to which the Mayor of Bristol put his
signature on behalf of the city in 2013.

The charter states that “the Signatory recognises that gender-based violence arises from
the idea, on the part of the perpetrator, of the superiority of one sex over the other in the
context of an unequal relationship of power.” The Zero Tolerance action plan contains a
commitment to review the SEV policy in Bristol, an action that was due to be completed
by Autumn 2015 but, which four years later, is still outstanding®.

It was reported by the police at the hearing in March 2018 that, in the previous twelve
months, there had been around 20 sexual assaults in the vicinity of the club and six of
these were serious. Whether this is a large number relative to other cities is irrelevant as
any assaults at all are incompatible with the city’s aspiration to ‘Zero Tolerance’. In order
to mitigate against sexual assaults happening at all to either the dancers in the club or
women outside the club, the best preventative measure would be to not grant the licence
at all. This was one of the reasons given by the High Court for refusing a licence to
Vimac Leisure in Durham in 2007 which had applied for a licence for a lap dancing club
in the city.

As | have done in previous years, | would like to remind the licensing sub-committee that
the White Ribbon status which it was awarded in 2013 includes the commitment to
having no sex entertainment venues in the city because White Ribbon recognises
that the presence of SEVs results in negative attitudes towards women and girls. It is not
good enough for the city to be ‘working towards’ this status; ‘working towards’ could be
open ended. The City Council needs to actively demonstrate its commitment by fulfilling
this part of the requirements.

Bristol City Council should be proud of its White Ribbon city status but | would argue that
it should not continue to enjoy this status while refusing to acknowledge the impact of
SEVs on the lives of women and girls.

4 Inadequacy of current equality impact assessment

| request that the licensing committee commissions an equality impact assessment for

http://www.ccre.org/docs/charte_egalite_en.pdf, article 22, (2)

https://www.bristol.gov.uk/documents/20182/33055/EU+Charter+for+equality+between+men+and+wo
men%2C+Bristol%27s+Action+Plan.pdf/ddb9bbe0-1e78-4af8-b65f-82870cd53519, page 14

5

Page 53


http://www.ccre.org/docs/charte_egalite_en.pdf
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/documents/20182/33055/EU+Charter+for+equality+between+men+and+women%2C+Bristol%27s+Action+Plan.pdf/ddb9bbe0-1e78-4af8-b65f-82870cd53519
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/documents/20182/33055/EU+Charter+for+equality+between+men+and+women%2C+Bristol%27s+Action+Plan.pdf/ddb9bbe0-1e78-4af8-b65f-82870cd53519

the licence applications before making a decision.

The City Council may be aware that Sheffield City Council admitted at a judicial review in
June 2018 that it had failed in its Public Sector Equality Duty to consider the impact of its
SEV policy on all women. It has now been forced to reconsider its policy in the light of the
court case®.

To support the EIA, the QC for the club is likely to discuss the facilities in place for
disabled people and (in their opinion) the small number of children likely to be affected.
The focus will only be on the impact of removing the SEV licence on the small number of
women who perform in the club, a point which | address in the next section, but the
significant impact that SEVs have on the lives of all women will not be addressed or will
be dismissed. | ask the licensing sub-committee to consider the bigger picture and to
show its commitment by, at the very least, following the Sheffield example and
commissioning an in-depth EIA.

5 Further points for consideration
5.1 “Independent” compliance reports

The club is likely to put forward “independent” reports to support its claims that it is
compliant with its licence conditions. The legal representative for the club will generally
use one of three “independent” inspectors to visit the many clubs for which he acts.
Apart from the Bristol clubs, these inspectors have visited numerous clubs over the past
few years for which the QC for Central Chambers has also acted’, most recently in
Sheffield in September 2019. There may be a small number of recommendations as a
sop to demonstrate the clubs’ commitment to meeting their licence conditions but the
inspectors have always offered a favourable report on the clubs’ compliance and
contribution to the night-time economy.

Evidence presented by Central Chambers which it has commissioned directly can never
be judged as truly independent and these reports cannot be taken seriously by the
licensing sub-committee. It is obviously not in the club’s interest to present evidence that
could put its SEV licence at risk.

5.2 Impact on women performing in Central Chambers if the SEV licence was
removed

| recognise the potential impact on women working in the club if the SEV licence was not
granted. However, | ask the licensing sub-committee to note that the women pay a
house fee to work in the club and they do not enjoy the same rights and benefits as

6 https://www.theguardian.com/uk-news/2018/jun/29/sheffield-strip-club-protesters-triumph-in-judicial-

review-spearmint-rhino

4 Clubs for which one of three “independent” consultants have provided favourable reports to licensing

sub-committees for SEV applications alongside Philip Kolvin QC include: Elegance — Portsmouth, January, 2018;
Windmill - Westminster, January 2018; Vanity Bar — Westminster, October 2014; Fridge Bar — London, April 2015;
Hawkes — London, July 2017; The Banc — London, April 2018; Club 791 — Croydon, March 2016; Coyote Ugly —
Swansea, April 2018; Spearmint Rhino — Sheffield, September 2019 plus several others including the two Bristol
SEVs.

Page 54



someone who is formally employed.

A former SEV in the city centre of Bristol now operates as a very successful tapas bar -
Pata Negra. A club that loses its SEV licence can still operate with its alcohol licence
and a venue like Pata Negra offers more secure employment opportunities for women
and is open and welcoming to all (I would suggest that the clientele is split on a 50:50
ratio rather than the 75 (men):25 (women) ratio put forward by Central Chambers at the
March 2018 hearing).

5.3 Opening hours

The club has applied to offer sex entertainment from midday. It is always claimed that
this club is part of the night time economy and therefore doesn’t impact on the area
during the day (despite the obvious sex entertainment that | have highlighted in point 1).
The club will be operating as part of the daytime economy if it is granted a licence to offer
sex entertainment from midday.

To conclude, | object to this licence application renewal on the basis of:

o Suitability of applicant to adhere to the licence conditions

¢ Residential and city centre nature of the location

o Public sector equality duty and incompatibility with Bristol City Council’'s White
Ribbon and Zero Tolerance status

e Impact on crime and disorder

| would also like to note that my preference has always been for the city council to adopt
a nil cap for SEVs in the city but, while we have them, | have via the SEV licence process
campaigned for better working conditions for the dancers, for example: by pressing for
CCTV coverage, separate entrances and exits for customers and dancers, and
enforcement of the one metre rule during private dances.

My objection is not a moral objection. | am not objecting because | “just don't like it”.
The legitimate concerns in mine and other objections have been dismissed on this basis
for many years. Violence against women and girls is not - and should never be
considered - a moral issue.

Page 55




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 17 Sept 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) because of:-

Inappropriate locality — they are near numerous places deemed inappropriate in your
own licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that several legal
precedents have shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to challenge
a refusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. It is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this. SEVs
promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.
The harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until they leave)
and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of harm to some
in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose it, it is their
right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

Further, it is not pro-equalities to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in

work’ or ‘out of prostitution® or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact a
large body of evidence, including that from the Home Office, shows that the strip
industry itself drives prostitution. Similarly its high street presence fosters the
normalising of stripping in other ‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not obliged to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully
entitled to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held
annually. Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material

change whatsoever in order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly
Covid means there are very material changes currently in existance.

That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment.




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS ) ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

Information in this table is to be
kept strictly confidential

Detail of application

[Name of applicant: Reedbed Ltd, Central Chambers[](Reference:
20/03023/SEV)

Address of premises:[] 9 - 11 St Stephens Street, Bristol, BS1 1EE

Application date:[] 25/8/20

Date by which objections must be received: [] 22/9/20

Please enter the detail of your objection below. Please note however that objections1based on
moral grounds cannot be accepted. Objections may be continued overleaf or(Jon separate
sheets of paper.[]

Although | currently live in xxxxxxx, | was a resident of Bristol for over 20 years up until a few
years ago. | was a property owner, landlady and mother in Bristol, and | am still a frequent visitor
to the city to visit friends and family members. Because | still have close ties with Bristol | am
writing to object to the the above application for a sex entertainment venue (SEV) licence for
adult entertainment for the above premises on the basis of inappropriate location and because of
the impact of the club on women and children.

Location

The Council’s policy states that it will consider whether premises in the vicinity are put to any of
the following uses:

residential, in particular homes occupied by families
leisure

educational establishments

churches and other places of worship

family friendly facilities

other sex-oriented/adult premises (whether or not they are licensed/licensable)
youth clubs

women’s refuges

community centres

parks and other open spaces

swimming pools

public transport

In considering the application, please note that Central Chambers is situated near to the
following:

A backpacker’s hostel that is used by single travellers. The club is a threat to the young

Page 57



women who stay there, and an unpleasant example to set for the young men. The
messages sent to young men by the presence of a such venues can lead to attitudes
which in extreme cases can result in many different sorts of violence against women and
girls, and promote attitudes which contravene the Council's obligation to gender equality.
The links between the sex industry and violence against women and girls has been
proved conclusively and attitudes of objectification are proven to increase the likelihood
of men inflicting violence on other women in their lives.

The Bristol office of the Samaritans - used by vulnerable sections of the community,
possibly including women who have been victims of sexual violence, or adults who are
dealing with their experiences of childhood sexual abuse. These would be directly
relevant considering the links between such crimes and the sex industry.

St Stephen’s Parish Church — a busy church which carries out weddings, baptisms,
funerals and many other community activities.

It is situated in a busy area of the city which disregards BCC's duty of care to the women
and children who pass by, by putting them at risk of noise, disorder, and possibly even
danger of violence and sexual harassment.

Impact on women and children*

* (NB: In previous applications, the Council have appeared to categorise grounds for objecting
that are based on issues of violence against women and girls as 'moral' arguments and have
therefore discounted them. It is highly inappropriate to categorise concerns on the impact of
women and girls as “moral” - being as they are solely arguments of public safety, and women's
risk of sexual violence. | hope that Bristol City Council will finally take these concerns seriously,
upheld as they are by all current research. Discounting these risks will be seen as indicative of a
lack of commitment to women and children's safety, and to gender equality in the wider context.)
There is an increased risk of social disorder that disproportionately impacts on women and girls
in areas in which these clubs are situated. Women and children find these places particularly
difficult to deal with, finding them threatening and offensive. Women know that they are likely to
suffer from verbal harrassment from users of such clubs while walking past; at worst they can be
at risk of sexual assault, as incidents of this are more likely in areas which host clubs like this.
The reasons for this are:

The clientele likely to be attracted are stag parties, made up of often large groups of men
who will probably be drinking heavily.

Management of adverse behaviour can only be reactive, i.e. CCTV only records crimes;
it cannot prevent a crime such as a sexual assault taking place, particularly outside the
club where security guards have no control. Club security may enforce the code of
conduct to protect the performers inside the club but does not protect the public outside
the club, and in effect puts the problem it has just created outside, for the general public
to deal with.

| register my strong objection to granting a SEV license for this club, and to ask BCC to take this
opportunity to demonstrate that it is a progressive and forward thinking city that is committed to
improving the quality of life for the women and girls of Bristol.[1 | would like to call on BCC for a
full policy review on the existence of Sex Entertainment Venues in Bristol, in accordance with the
stated aims of the new mayor, and in light of the representations of the police - who know these
places harbour socially disruptive, and at worst criminal, elements which have a detrimental
effect on life in Bristol.

[Continued from page 1:

Page 58



LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 17" September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge arefusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility withEquality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as
SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.

Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
you leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of
harm to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose
it, it is their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

Further, it is not pro-equalities to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in
work’ or ‘out of prostitution® or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact a
large body of evidence, including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry
itself drives prostitution, similarly its high street presence drives the normalising of
stripping in other ‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully
entitled to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held
annually. Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material

Page 59




changewhatsoever in order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly
Covid means there are very material changes now at play.

That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment.

Women are being trafficked and bought to rape by men across the country, there’s no
better example than Holbeck in Leeds, a so called managed zone where residents and
their children are propositioned daily. You cannot ensure the safety of Bristolian women
by allowing this or of the women who are dragged in by the need for money, food for
themselves and/or children and addictions. | know | can speak for many women who
have had the help to exit the sex trade, can you? Will you stop encouraging men to
view women as objects to be leered at in YOUR city? Do you want Bristol to be the go
to place for sexism and misogyny?

Please listen to the concerns and act accordingly.




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 19" September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| OBJECT to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) on the
following grounds:

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge arefusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as
SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.

Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
they leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of
harm to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose
it, it is their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

It is not 'pro-equalities' to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in work’ or ‘out
of prostitution’ or ‘stop the industry going underground’. A large body of evidence,
including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry itself drives prostitution,
similarly its high street presence drives the normalising of stripping in other ‘less safe’
venues, such as private parties.

The council should also be aware that it does not have to relicense these clubs just
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. The council is fully entitled
to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held
annually. Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material
change whatsoever in order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly
Covid means there are very material changes now at play.




Hence | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus on
supporting alternative, equality law-compliant businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment.




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 18" September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge arefusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as
SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.

Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
you leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of
harm to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose
it, it is their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

Further, it is not pro-equalities to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in
work’ or ‘out of prostitution’ or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact a
large body of evidence, including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry
itself drives prostitution, similarly its high street presence drives the normalising of
stripping in other ‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully
entitled to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held
annually. Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material

change whatsoever in order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly
Covid means there are very material changes now at play.

Page 63




That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment.




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 19" September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| was born in bristol, and still work in the city. Stripping demeans women and men.
Stop objectifying women and girls. | have signed petitions in the past via fawcett
society, bristol womens voice, zero tolerance campaign against vawg etc. Women and
girls are vulnerable to violence and assault within the sex trade. No such thing as sex
work, only exploitation.

How can bcc sign up to zero tolerance campaign and still allow these types of
establishments? And what about your statement for bristol womens commission,
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/mayor/womens-commission

Especially;

Women's Safety

And

Women's Representation in Public Life.

| object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge a refusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all licensing
decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as SEVs
promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.

Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
you leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out‘ by the supposed lack of harm
to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose it, it is
their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

Further, it is not pro-equalities to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in work’ or
‘out of prostitution® or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact a large body of
evidence, including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry itself drives
prostitution, similarly its high street presence drives the normalising of stripping in other

Page 65



https://www.bristol.gov.uk/mayor/womens-commission

‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully entitled
to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held annually.
Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material change whatsoever in
order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly Covid means there are
very material changes now at play.

That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment.




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 14™ September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

Our charity supports survivors of the sex trade across the UK, including women who
have exited the strip industry. Such individuals also play a key role in informing our
work.

That is why we object to the relicensing of both of these strip clubs and urge the council
to refuse both licenses on the discretionary grounds of inappropriate locality.

Please note this objection is based on harm, not morality.

Regardless of whether a strip club is well run and abiding by all regulations, its inherent
harms cannot be mitigated.

These include the fact that the entire premise of the strip industry is (self)
objectification”/commodification of lap dancers. This is inherently harmful, as
psychiatrists and the many former lap dancers we work with well know. This is harmful
regardless of whether women in the industry chose to objectify themselves, feel they
are objectified or recognise this as damaging.

We would point out that ‘objectification’ is not a trivial term — it means the
dehumanising of a person, it turns a human being is a thing, an object, with no rights,
something that can be bought like any other object. That is why it is so harmful.

Lap dancing is also a key entry point into (even more harmful) prostitution — as shown
by research and the evidence of numerous survivors of the sex trade. There is also
significant coercion and lack of choice in entering and remaining in this industry — as
testified to by numerous survivors and countless bodies of research.

However, you cannot possibly know whether or not this is the case for the women in
your strip clubs. Because while women are in the industry they survive through denial,
as did all the women we work with when they were in the strip/sex trade.

We would also point out that these harms are simply not ‘balanced out’ because some
women enjoy lap dancing.

The deeply damaging effect on wider attitudes also cannot be prevented — that is of
seeing women as sexual objects. Again these harms simply are not ‘equalised out’ by
lap dancers who enjoy their work. At the moment, Bristol city council is telling survivors
of sexual abuse and the sex trade every time they walk past your city centre strip clubs,

Page 67




that the authorities see women as sexual commodities. You are also directly
normalising all aspects of the sex trade with such a visible High street presence — and
in doing so, driving its very demand.

The women in this industry are not helpless victims, who need saving or who are
incapable of alternative employment and will have to work in ‘the underground’ industry
or turn to prostitution in order to survive. These are very capable, resilient and typically
charming young women (often at university) who could find work elsewhere - and excel.

However, the council has an absolute duty to support all women who have worked in
lap dancing into safe alternative work (both in terms of practical and mental health
support). This holds true right now when, presumably, the clubs have not been able to
operate and its current dancers are very possibly entering webcamming and other
dangerous online forms of the sex trade.

The fact that strip clubs cannot operate in the foreseeable future due to Covid, makes it
even more nonsensical to continue to license this essentially non-viable business. You
are actually keeping its workers out of work. Instead, the council should ensure this
venue is put to an alternative safe use, one that is not linked in any way to any part of
the sex trade.




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS ) ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

Information in this table is to be kept strictly confidential

Detail of application

Name of applicant: Reedbed Ltd, Central Chambers
(Reference: 20/03326/SEV)

Address of premises: 9 - 11 St Stephens Street, Bristol, BS1 1EE
Application date: 25" August 2020

Date by which objections must be 22" August 2020

received:

Please enter the detail of your objection below. Please note however that objections
based on moral grounds cannot be accepted. Objections may be continued overleaf or
on separate sheets of paper.

| am submitting this objection on behalf of xxxxxxxxxx in my capacity as its representative on
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXX and in line with the xxxxxxxxxxx stated values.

| object to the renewal of the SEV licence to the above applicant on a number of grounds
including the location of the applicant’s premises, the Council’s duties under Equalities Law

and its obligations under Crime and Disorder legislation.

Why | ask you to refuse the application

Safety and Equality of Women in Bristol

1. As a signatory of the European Charter for Equality of Women and Men in Local Life,
Bristol City Council must recognise that “gender-based violence arises from the idea, on the
part of the perpetrator, of the superiority of one sex over the other in... an unequal
relationship of power” (Article 22.2). SEVs reflect and contribute to a popular culture in
which women’s bodies are objectified and seen as available for men’s use, while the
opposite is not the case. This culture perpetuates the notion of “the superiority of one sex
over the other” as identified in the Charter'. The Council’s duty under the Equality Act 2010

Page 1 of 3 Page 69




and the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) includes the need to have due regard to the need
to eliminate discrimination and harassment of women and advance equality of opportunity
for women, as well as foster good relations between men and women. The claims made by
Sexual Entertainment Venues in Bristol to be champions of equality are not only
extraordinary but irrelevant to SEV applications with regard to PSED. It is the local authority
which must meet the requirements of the Public Sector Equality Duty.

2. The continued licensing of SEVs, in this case specifically Central Chambers, by Bristol City
Council means that the Council fails to meet obligations under the Charter and fails to
engage with the purpose of our national equalities legislation. This diminishes the status of
Bristol as a modern European City where both women and men should be able to lead
fulfilled lives in a safe and fair society. Bristol as a city is committed to the eradication of
violence and abuse of women and girls, an ambition shared by UWE Bristol. In 2012 the city
was awarded White Ribbon City status which requires cities to work towards a status of zero
SEVs. Bristol City Council has been supportive of the Bristol Women’s Commission’s Bristol
Zero Tolerance initiative and both previous and current Mayors have also pledged their
support.

There are other approaches to addressing violence and abuse in the city including public
health campaigns, school campaigns and our university campaigns all dedicated to changing
social norms around gender inequality, attitudes to women and the acceptability of violence
towards women. The Bristol Against Violence and Abuse Strategy 2015-2020 led by the
Council includes an objective to reduce the opportunities for sexual exploitation and
negative perceptions of women connected to SEVs." These projects are supported by or run
by Bristol City Council. | believe that the continued licensing of SEVs directly undermines
this work and is not compatible with the wider outcomes and aims that the city, and the
university as part of the city community, hopes to achieve in terms of gender equality and
gender-based violence.

3. Central Chambers is in the central Cumulative Impact Zone. Bristol’s Statement of
Licensing Policy states that this area “has a significant concentration of alcohol led late night
venues, witnesses a high number of assaults and other related crime and disorder including
public nuisance and risk to public safety”. In 2017 Avon and Somerset Police submitted a
report that detailed a number of reports of crime and disorder directly related to the
premises and also reported 40 sexual offences within the area in a 12-month period.
Whether you believe that these sexual offences are directly related to the presence of the
club, or that the club happens coincidentally to be situated in a hotspot for violent and
sexual crimes against women, it is clear that this is an inappropriate location for a SEV.

Unsuitability of premises and location

4. The prime city centre location of Central Chambers is a constant reminder, to women and
men, girls and boys, of Bristol’s tolerance of sexism and inequality in the city. The proximity
to bus stops, student residences and public buildings, such as churches, as well as public
perception has not to date been taken appropriately into consideration with the location of
Central Chambers in Bristol City Centre. It’s very clear from the City Council’s own policy that

Page 2 of 3 Page 70




the location is unsuitable given the grounds that sub-committees are directed to take into
account when deciding whether to allow an SEV to operate.

5. The Council have received various objections in the past to the renewal of SEV licenses
including details of sexual harassment that some women have experienced in the vicinity of
SEVs and specifically that of Central Chambers. Women also report feeling unsafe,
unwelcome and intimidated when near these establishments. As Philip Kolvin QC notes, “the
fears of women using the vicinity of premises may be reflected in decisions as to the
location of such facilities... These concerns are directly reflected in the Royal Town Planning
Institute’s Gender and Spatial Planning Good Practice Note, which states: ‘...ensure that the
views of women are considered. Evidence shows that in certain locations, lap-dancing and
exotic dancing clubs make women feel threatened or uncomfortable.””™ We do not want
staff or students or other Bristol residents to be subject to this.

6. Residential Character: The premises are located directly adjacent to hundreds of
residential apartments, including student accommodation, and Bristol’s Development
Framework Core Strategy promises further residential development in the city centre
including 7400 new homes in the city centre alone. This by itself is grounds to refuse this
application.

7. Character of the locality including leisure and family friendly facilities and churches:
People, including university staff and students, visiting Baldwin Street, St Nicholas Market,
and other shops and businesses may have to pass Central Chambers. The premises are not
“discreetly located” but are close to family-friendly restaurants, shops, cafes and on a public
transport route that are accessed by a huge proportion of people including children. The
historic area is also a “first impression” for many visiting the city. Based on these venues, the
street is a highly inappropriate location for a venue that perpetuates inequality.

8. Further, Bristol women have expressed concern over the levels of harassment that are
linked with having an SEV in a central location in Bristol and they have made it clear that

they avoid the area.

On all these grounds |, on behalf of xxxxxxxxxxx, object to this application.

' Bristol Women’s Commission, Sexual Entertainment Venue Policy Statement, Licensing
Special Purposes Sub Committee, 6" November 2014

" https://www.bava.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/Bristol-Against-Violence-and-Abuse-
Strategy-2015-2020.pdf

"' Kolvin, P. (2010) Sex Licensing.

Page 3 of 3 Page 71




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 17" September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| strongly object to the relicensing of both these clubs because of several factors:

1) Positioning - inappropriate locality - they are near many places deemed inappropriate
in your own policy .

2) Equality law - incompatibility with Equality law - The council must abide by equality
law in all of its licensing decision. However it is impossible to license an SEV and not
contravene this as SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations
between the sexes as numerous experts have stated.

Please note: The Court of Appeal has ruled that the committee is fully entitled to look
with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing - that is why these are held annually. It has
also stated there need be no material changes whatsoever in order to refuse a license
that was previously granted. Please refuse both licenses. Instead the council should
focus on supporting alternative equality law-compliant businesses AND ensure former
lap dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment.

Protect women and apply the law.




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS ) ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

Information in this table is to be kept strictly confidential

Detail of application

Name of applicant: Reedbed Ltd, Central Chambers
(Reference: 20/03326/SEV)

Address of premises: 9 - 11 St Stephens Street, Bristol, BS1 1EE

Application date: 25 August 2020

Date by which objections must be received: | 22 September 2020

Please enter the detail of your objection below. Please note however that objections
based on moral grounds cannot be accepted. Objections may be continued overleaf or
on separate sheets of paper.

White Ribbon UK objects very strongly to the renewal of this license.

Bristol City Council undertook to become a White Ribbon Council in 2013 this commits the authority to working
towards a zero limit on sexual entertainment venues.

All local authorities should have regard to their public sector equality duty we believe this requires them consider
the impact on all women of the existence of this kind of establishment.

The derogatory and abusive treatment towards women in the lap dancing industry is well documented. Paying for
lap dancing normalises the practise of men paying for sexual services which has an impact on demand for other
aspects of the sex industry, and on the local community.

White Ribbon Campaign UK feels very strongly that this application is in breach of Bristol City Councils White
Ribbon status. We believe, therefore that this application is completely inappropriate and should be rejected.

Page 73




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 17" September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| object strongly to the proposal of the strip club. These venues objectify women, which
dehumanises is and makes us more vulnerable to Male violence.

The dancers are always abused in these venues; their money stolen by management
and pimps, their boundaries crossed by entitled customers, and many suffer abuse and
assault, including rape.

Women and girls in the City expect you to abuse by your Public Sector Equality Duty
and you assess the Equalities impacts of these venues on people protected by their
characteristics as “of the female sex” and “age”.

| object to the relicensing of both these clubs due to:

Inappropriate locality - they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
policy .

Incompatibility with Equality law - The council must abide by equality law in all of its
licensing decision. However it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this
as SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated.

Please note: The Court of Appeal has ruled that the committee is fully entitled to look
with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing - that is why these are held annually. It has
also stated there need be no material changes whatsoever in order to refuse a license
that was previously granted.

Please refuse both licenses. Instead the council should focus on supporting alternative,
equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap dancers are employed there
in new roles that do not involve them being bought as sexual entertainment.

Do the right thing. These venues are revolting. Refuse the license.

In disgust,




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 20th September 2020
RE: Central Chambers
| object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge arefusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as
SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.

Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
you leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of
harm to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose
it, it is their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

Further, it is not pro-equalities to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in
work’ or ‘out of prostitution’ or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact a
large body of evidence, including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry
itself drives prostitution, similarly its high street presence drives the normalising of
stripping in other ‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully
entitled to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held
annually. Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material

change whatsoever in order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly
Covid means there are very material changes now at play.

That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 19th September 2020
RE: Central Chambers
We OBJECT to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge arefusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as
SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.

Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
they leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of
harm to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose
it, it is their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

Further, it is not pro-equalities to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in
work’ or ‘out of prostitution® or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact a
large body of evidence, including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry
itself drives prostitution, similarly its high street presence drives the normalising of
stripping in other ‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully
entitled to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held
annually. Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material

change whatsoever in order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly
Covid means there are very material changes now at play.

That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment

Page 76




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 19th September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Personal experience: | have suffered Street harassment from men since | was a
teenage qirl in the 1980s. Teaching men that it is ok to objectify and sexualize women
encourages this street harassment. | have been Street harassed outside a strip venue
in a city many times, by men who were entering it, whilst | was passing by on my way
home from work. It was humiliating and intimidating. There is very clearly a connection
between men's sense of entitlement, by paying women to perform sexually for them,
and to harass women and girls in public. This is not ok.

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge arefusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as
SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.
Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
you leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of
harm to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose
it, it is their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

Further, it is not pro-equalities to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in

work’ or ‘out of prostitution® or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact a
large body of evidence, including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry
itself drives prostitution, similarly its high street presence drives the normalising of
stripping in other ‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully
entitled to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held
annually. Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material

change whatsoever in order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly
Covid means there are very material changes now at play.

Page 77




That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment.

| live in xxxxxx and regularly enjoy days and nights out in Bristol (Covid allowing),
please do the right thing for women.




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 18" September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge arefusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as
SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.
Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
you leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of
harm to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose
it, it is their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

Further, it is not pro-equalities to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in

work’ or ‘out of prostitution® or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact a
large body of evidence, including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry
itself drives prostitution, similarly its high street presence drives the normalising of
stripping in other ‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully
entitled to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held
annually. Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material

change whatsoever in order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly
Covid means there are very material changes now at play.

That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment.




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 17" September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to:
Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge arefusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as
SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.
Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
you leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of
harm to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose
it, it is their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

Further, it is not pro-equalities to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in

work’ or ‘out of prostitution® or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact a
large body of evidence, including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry
itself drives prostitution, similarly its high street presence drives the normalising of
stripping in other ‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully
entitled to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held
annually. Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material

change whatsoever in order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly
Covid means there are very material changes now at play.

That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 17" September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge arefusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as
SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.

Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
you leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of
harm to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose
it, it is their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

Further, it is not pro-equalities to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in
work’ or ‘out of prostitution® or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact a
large body of evidence, including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry
itself drives prostitution, similarly its high street presence drives the normalising of
stripping in other ‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully
entitled to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held
annually. Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material

change whatsoever in order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly

Covid means there are very material changes now at play.

That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment.




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 17" September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to:
Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge arefusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as
SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.

Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
you leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of
harm to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose
it, it is their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

Further, it is not pro-equalities to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in
work’ or ‘out of prostitution® or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact a
large body of evidence, including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry
itself drives prostitution, similarly its high street presence drives the normalising of
stripping in other ‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully
entitled to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held
annually. Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material
change whatsoever in order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly
Covid means there are very material changes now at play.

That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment.




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 17" September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to:
Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge arefusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as
SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.

Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
you leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of
harm to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose
it, it is their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

Further, it is not pro-equalities to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in
work’ or ‘out of prostitution® or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact a
large body of evidence, including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry
itself drives prostitution, similarly its high street presence drives the normalising of
stripping in other ‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully
entitled to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held
annually. Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material

change whatsoever in order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly
Covid means there are very material changes now at play.

That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment.




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 17" September 2020
RE: Central Chambers
| object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge arefusal to relicense on these grounds.

| should mention that | have direct experience of a strip club being in an inappropriate
locality. My sister, my seven year old niece and | went to a shopping centre for a lovely
family day out. We bought my niece some nice toys and got some food, then my sister
and | decided to go to a nearby pub for an hour before setting off home. We thought it
would be relaxing and the place seemed quite olde worlde and family friendly. Shortly
after - and this was still mid afternoon - a group of men came in. They made it clear
their reason for being in the precinct was to visit the strip club across the way which
was due to open soon. They then invited - in front of a seven year old girl, remember -
my sister and | to strip for them to save them the entry fee to the club. We left as soon
after as we could, both upset by this harassment, but especially disturbed because this
was my little niece's introduction to sexual harassment and misogyny.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as
SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.

Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
you leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of
harm to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose
it, it is their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

Further, it is not pro-equalities to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in work’
or ‘out of prostitution‘ or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact a large
body of evidence, including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry itself
drives prostitution, similarly its high street presence drives the normalising of stripping in
other ‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties.




The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully
entitled to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held
annually. Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material change
whatsoever in order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly Covid
means there are very material changes now at play.

That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment. Give women involved in the sex industries a realistic choice and
the vast majority will jump at the chance. They deserve the chance to thrive just as we
all do.




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 17" September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge arefusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as
SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.
Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
you leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of
harm to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose
it, it is their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

Further, it is not pro-equalities to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in
work’ or ‘out of prostitution® or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact a
large body of evidence, including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry
itself drives prostitution, similarly its high street presence drives the normalising of
stripping in other ‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully
entitled to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held
annually. Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material

change whatsoever in order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly

Covid means there are very material changes now at play.

That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment.




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 17" September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge arefusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as
SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.
Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
you leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of
harm to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose
it, it is their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

Further, it is not pro-equalities to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in

work’ or ‘out of prostitution® or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact a
large body of evidence, including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry
itself drives prostitution, similarly its high street presence drives the normalising of
stripping in other ‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully
entitled to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held
annually. Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material

change whatsoever in order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly
Covid means there are very material changes now at play.

That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment.




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 21" September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge a refusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all licensing
decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as SEVs
promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.

Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
you leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of harm
to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose it, it is
their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

Further, it is not pro-equalities to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in work’ or
‘out of prostitution® or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact a large body of
evidence, including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry itself drives
prostitution, similarly its high street presence drives the normalising of stripping in other
‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully entitled
to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held annually.
Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material change whatsoever in
order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly Covid means there are
very material changes now at play.

That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment.

Page 88




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 18th September 2020
RE: Central Chambers

| am a crisis worker for a local domestic & sexual abuse charity. | have worked with
vulnerable survivors for 5 years now, and there is plenty of proof out there that social
conditioning, including strip clubs where you can buy services of woman, has a direct
causal link to abuse.

| object to the relicensing of both these clubs due to:

Inappropriate locality - they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
policy .

Incompatibility with Equality law - The council must abide by equality law in all of its
licensing decision. However it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this
as SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated.

Please note: The Court of Appeal has ruled that the committee is fully entitled to look
with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing - that is why these are held annually. It has
also stated there need be no material changes whatsoever in order to refuse a license
that was previously granted. Please refuse both licenses. Instead the council should
focus on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former
lap dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment.




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 18th September 2020
RE: Central Chambers
| object to the relicensing of both these clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Inappropriate locality - they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
policy (the city centre, near the university, transport hubs, places of worship, family
leisure facilities etc).

Incompatibility with Equality law - The council must abide by equality law in all of its
licensing decision. However it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this
as SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated.

Please note: The Court of Appeal has ruled that the committee is fully entitled to look
with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing - that is why these are held annually. It has
also stated there need be no material changes whatsoever in order to refuse a license
that was previously granted.

Please refuse both licenses. Instead the council should focus on supporting alternative,
equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap dancers are employed there
in new roles that do not involve them being bought as sexual entertainment.




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 17th September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge arefusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility withEquality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as
SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.
Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
you leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of
harm to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose
it, it is their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

Further, it is not pro-equalities to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in

work’ or ‘out of prostitution® or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact a
large body of evidence, including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry
itself drives prostitution, similarly its high street presence drives the normalising of
stripping in other ‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully
entitled to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held
annually. Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material
changewhatsoever in order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly
Covid means there are very material changes now at play.

That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment.




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 20th September 2020
RE: Central Chambers

| object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to the
following reasons:

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities, etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge arefusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as
SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment, and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.

Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry and to all in wider society is
not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of harm to some in this industry. Nor it is
'balanced out' by the fact that some in the industry state that they chose to be in it, it is
their right, or they enjoy it and find it 'empowering'. Many women in the industry do not
fully recognise or understand the harm done to them until have exited, or are saying
these things as a coping mechanism.

Further, it is not pro-equalities to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in

work’ or ‘out of prostitution‘ or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact, a
large body of evidence, including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry
itself drives prostitution. Similarly, its high street presence drives the normalising of
stripping in other ‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties. Women should not have
to resort to working in the sex industry, where they are routinely dehumanised
and exploited, in order to be in employment.

The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber-stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully
entitled to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held
annually. Legal expertise is also very clear, that there need be no material

change whatsoever in order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly
Covid-19 measures mean there are very material changes now at play.

Page 92




That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead, the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap

dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment.

Thank you for considering this letter.




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 20" September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge arefusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as
SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.

Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
you leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of
harm to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose
it, it is their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

Further, it is not pro-equalities to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in
work’ or ‘out of prostitution® or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact a
large body of evidence, including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry
itself drives prostitution, similarly its high street presence drives the normalising of
stripping in other ‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully
entitled to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held
annually. Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material

change whatsoever in order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly
Covid means there are very material changes now at play.

That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment.

Page 94




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 19" September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge arefusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as
SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.
Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
you leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of
harm to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose
it, it is their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

Further, it is not pro-equalities to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in
work’ or ‘out of prostitution® or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact a
large body of evidence, including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry
itself drives prostitution, similarly its high street presence drives the normalising of
stripping in other ‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully
entitled to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held
annually. Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material

change whatsoever in order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly
Covid means there are very material changes now at play.

That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment

Page 95




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 19" September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge arefusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as
SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.
Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
you leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of
harm to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose
it, it is their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

Further, it is not pro-equalities to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in

work’ or ‘out of prostitution® or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact a
large body of evidence, including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry
itself drives prostitution, similarly its high street presence drives the normalising of
stripping in other ‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully
entitled to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held
annually. Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material

change whatsoever in order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly
Covid means there are very material changes now at play.

That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment.




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 18" September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge arefusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as
SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.

This is an opportunity to make a change that will benefit all women and girls in the UK,
and change negative and dangerous attitudes for the future, this has to be not about
income for the council but about health and safety for half the population.

Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
they leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of
harm to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose
it, it is their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 18" September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge arefusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as
SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.

Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
you leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of
harm to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose
it, it is their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

Further, it is not pro-equalities to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in
work’ or ‘out of prostitution® or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact a
large body of evidence, including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry
itself drives prostitution, similarly its high street presence drives the normalising of
stripping in other ‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully
entitled to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held
annually. Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material
change whatsoever in order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly
Covid means there are very material changes now at play.

That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment.




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 17" September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge arefusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as
SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.
Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
you leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of
harm to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose
it, it is their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

Further, it is not pro-equalities to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in

work’ or ‘out of prostitution® or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact a
large body of evidence, including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry
itself drives prostitution, similarly its high street presence drives the normalising of
stripping in other ‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully
entitled to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held
annually. Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material

change whatsoever in order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly
Covid means there are very material changes now at play.

That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 17" September 2020
RE: Central Chambers
| object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge arefusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as
SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.

Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
you leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of
harm to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose
it, it is their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

Further, it is not pro-equalities to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in work’
or ‘out of prostitution‘ or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact a large
body of evidence, including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry itself
drives prostitution, similarly its high street presence drives the normalising of stripping in
other ‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully
entitled to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held
annually. Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material change
whatsoever in order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly Covid
means there are very material changes now at play.

That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment.

Page 100




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 17" September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge arefusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as
SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.
Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
you leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of
harm to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose
it, it is their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

Further, it is not pro-equalities to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in

work’ or ‘out of prostitution® or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact a
large body of evidence, including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry
itself drives prostitution, similarly its high street presence drives the normalising of
stripping in other ‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully
entitled to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held
annually. Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material

change whatsoever in order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly
Covid means there are very material changes now at play.

That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment.

Page 101




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 17" September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge arefusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law - The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as
SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.

Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
you leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of
harm to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose
it, it is their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering. Further, it is not pro-equalities
to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in work’ or ‘out of prostitution‘ or ‘stop
the industry going underground’. In fact a large body of evidence, including from the
Home Office, shows that the strip industry itself drives prostitution, similarly its high
street presence drives the normalising of stripping in other ‘less safe’ venues, such as
private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully
entitled to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held
annually. Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material change
whatsoever in order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly Covid
means there are very material changes now at play.

That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment.

Page 102




Page 103



LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 17" September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| object to the relicensing of both of these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge a refusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all licensing
decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as SEVs
promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.

Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
they leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of harm
to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose it, it is
their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

Furthermore, it is not 'pro-equality’ to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in
work’ or ‘out of prostitution‘ or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact a large body
of evidence, including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry itself drives
prostitution, and similarly its high street presence drives the normalising of stripping in
other ‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully entitled
to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held annually.
Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material change whatsoever in
order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly Covid means there are
very material changes now at play.

That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment.

Page 104




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 17" September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge arefusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as
SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.

Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
you leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of
harm to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose
it, it is their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

Further, it is not pro-equalities to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in
work’ or ‘out of prostitution® or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact a
large body of evidence, including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry
itself drives prostitution, similarly its high street presence drives the normalising of
stripping in other ‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully
entitled to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held
annually. Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material

change whatsoever in order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly
Covid means there are very material changes now at play.

That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment.

Page 105




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 17" September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge arefusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as
SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.

Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
you leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of
harm to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose
it, it is their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

Further, it is not pro-equalities to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in

work’ or ‘out of prostitution® or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact a
large body of evidence, including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry
itself drives prostitution, similarly its high street presence drives the normalising of
stripping in other ‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully
entitled to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held
annually. Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material

change whatsoever in order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly
Covid means there are very material changes now at play.

Page 106




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 17" September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge arefusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as
SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.
Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
you leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of
harm to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose
it, it is their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

Further, it is not pro-equalities to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in

work’ or ‘out of prostitution® or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact a
large body of evidence, including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry
itself drives prostitution, similarly its high street presence drives the normalising of
stripping in other ‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully
entitled to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held
annually. Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material

change whatsoever in order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly
Covid means there are very material changes now at play.

That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment.

Page 107




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 17" September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge arefusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as
SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.
Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
you leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of
harm to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose
it, it is their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

Further, it is not pro-equalities to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in

work’ or ‘out of prostitution® or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact a
large body of evidence, including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry
itself drives prostitution, similarly its high street presence drives the normalising of
stripping in other ‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully
entitled to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held
annually. Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material

change whatsoever in order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly
Covid means there are very material changes now at play.

That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment.

Page 108




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 17" September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge arefusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as
SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.

Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
you leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of
harm to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose
it, it is their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

Further, it is not pro-equalities to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in
work’ or ‘out of prostitution‘ or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact, a
large body of evidence, including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry
itself drives prostitution, similarly its high street presence drives the normalising of
stripping in other ‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber-stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully
entitled to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held
annually. Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material

change whatsoever in order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly
Covid means there are very material changes now at play.

That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment.

Page 109




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 17" September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge arefusal to relicense on these grounds

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as
SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.

Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
you leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of
harm to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose
it, it is their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

Further, it is not pro-equalities to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in
work’ or ‘out of prostitution® or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact a
large body of evidence, including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry
itself drives prostitution, similarly its high street presence drives the normalising of
stripping in other ‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully
entitled to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held
annually. Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material

change whatsoever in order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly
Covid means there are very material changes now at play.

That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment.

Page 110




Page 111



LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 22nd September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge a refusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as
SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.

Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
you leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of harm
to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose it, it is
their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

Further, it is not pro-equalities to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in work’ or
‘out of prostitution‘ or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact a large body of
evidence, including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry itself drives
prostitution, similarly its high street presence drives the normalising of stripping in other
‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully entitled
to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held annually.
Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material change whatsoever in
order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly Covid means there are
very material changes now at play.

In addition to the legal and moral grounds to my objection, as a young woman and a

visitor to your city, walking past these venues makes me feel incredibly unsafe and
unwelcome.

Page 112




That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment.

Page 113




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 17" September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge arefusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as
SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.

Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
you leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of
harm to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose
it, it is their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

Further, it is not pro-equalities to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in
work’ or ‘out of prostitution® or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact a
large body of evidence, including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry
itself drives prostitution, similarly its high street presence drives the normalising of
stripping in other ‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully
entitled to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held
annually. Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material

change whatsoever in order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly
Covid means there are very material changes now at play.

That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment. Please do the right thing.

Page 114




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 22nd September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| object to the relicensing of both these clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Inappropriate locality - they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of worship,
family leisure facilities etc).

Incompatibility with Equality law - The council must abide by equality law in all of its
licensing decisions. However it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this
as SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated.

Please note: The Court of Appeal has ruled that the committee is fully entitled to look
with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing - that is why these are held annually. It has
also stated there need be no material changes whatsoever in order to refuse a license
that was previously granted.

Please refuse both licenses. Instead the council should focus on supporting alternative,

equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap dancers are employed there
in new roles that do not involve them being bought as sexual entertainment.

Page 115




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 19th September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge arefusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as
SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.
Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
you leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of
harm to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose
it, it is their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

Further, it is not pro-equalities to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in

work’ or ‘out of prostitution® or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact a
large body of evidence, including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry
itself drives prostitution, similarly its high street presence drives the normalising of
stripping in other ‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully
entitled to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held
annually. Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material

change whatsoever in order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly
Covid means there are very material changes now at play.

That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment.

Page 116




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 20th September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge arefusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as
SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.
Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
you leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of
harm to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose
it, it is their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

Further, it is not pro-equalities to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in

work’ or ‘out of prostitution® or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact a
large body of evidence, including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry
itself drives prostitution, similarly its high street presence drives the normalising of
stripping in other ‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully
entitled to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held
annually. Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material

change whatsoever in order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly
Covid means there are very material changes now at play.

That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment.

Page 117




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 21st September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge arefusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as
SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.

Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
you leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of
harm to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose
it, it is their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

Further, it is not pro-equalities to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in
work’ or ‘out of prostitution® or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact a
large body of evidence, including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry
itself drives prostitution, similarly its high street presence drives the normalising of
stripping in other ‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully
entitled to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held
annually. Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material

change whatsoever in order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly
Covid means there are very material changes now at play.

That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment.

Page 118




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 22nd September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| object to the relicensing of both these clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Inappropriate locality - they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of worship,
family leisure facilities etc).

Incompatibility with Equality law - The council must abide by equality law in all of its
licensing decisions. However it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this
as SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated.

Please note: The Court of Appeal has ruled that the committee is fully entitled to look
with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing - that is why these are held annually. It has
also stated there need be no material changes whatsoever in order to refuse a license
that was previously granted.

Please refuse both licenses. Instead the council should focus on supporting alternative,

equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap dancers are employed there
in new roles that do not involve them being bought as sexual entertainment.

Page 119




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 17th September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

Despite not being local to Bristol, this is something that concerns me, not just in Bristol,
but across the UK. Despite this seeming like a copy and paste email, | have read and
agree with the views expressed below.

So | am objecting to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant)
due to:

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge arefusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as
SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.

Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
you leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of
harm to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose
it, it is their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

Further, it is not pro-equalities to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in
work’ or ‘out of prostitution’ or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact a
large body of evidence, including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry
itself drives prostitution, similarly its high street presence drives the normalising of
stripping in other ‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully
entitled to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held
annually. Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material

change whatsoever in order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly
Covid means there are very material changes now at play.

Page 120




That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment.

Page 121




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 17th September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge a refusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. And it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this as
SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against Sheffield City
Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further indicate this.

Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
you leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out‘ by the supposed lack of harm
to some in this industry. Nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose it, it is
their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering.

Further, it is not pro-equalities to license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in

work’ or ‘out of prostitution‘ or ‘stop the industry going underground’. In fact a large body
of evidence, including from the Home Office, shows that the strip industry itself drives
prostitution, similarly its high street presence drives the normalising of stripping in other
‘less safe’ venues, such as private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not beholden to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully entitled
to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held annually.
Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material change whatsoever in
order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly Covid means there are
very material changes now at play.

That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues. Instead the council should focus
on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap
dancers are employed there in new roles that do not involve them being bought as
sexual entertainment.

Page 122




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 17th September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| wish to object to the relicensing of both these strip clubs (by the same applicant) due
to:

Inappropriate locality — they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
licensing policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of
worship, family leisure facilities etc). The council should be aware that numerous legal
precedents have now shown that strip club operators have no legal grounds to
challenge arefusal to relicense on these grounds.

Incompatibility with Equality law — The council must abide by equality law in all
licensing decisions. Furthermore, it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene
this as SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the
sexes, as numerous experts have stated. Two successful High Court cases against
Sheffield City Council (a third pending) on the grounds of breach of equality law, further
indicate this.

Please note, the harm done to many women in the industry (often not recognised until
you leave) and to all in wider society is not ‘balanced out’ by the supposed lack of
harm to some in this industry, nor by the fact that some in the industry state they chose
it, it is their right or they enjoy it and find it empowering. Nor is it pro-equalities to
license strip clubs in order to ‘keep women in work’ or ‘out of prostitution‘ or ‘stop
the industry going underground’. In fact a large body of evidence, including from the
Home Office, shows that the strip industry itself drives prostitution, similarly its high
street presence drives the normalising of stripping in other ‘less safe’ venues, such as
private parties.

The council should also be aware that it is not obliged to relicense these clubs simply
because it has in the past. On the contrary, legal experts categorically state that
relicensing should not be a rubber stamping exercise. Rather, the council is fully
entitled to look with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing — that is why these are held
annually. Legal expertise is also very clear that there need be no material change
whatsoever in order to refuse a license that was previously granted. Clearly Covid
means there are very material changes now at play.

That is why | urge you not to relicense these venues.

Page 123




Instead the council should focus on supporting alternative, equality law-compliant,
businesses AND ensure former lap dancers are employed there in new roles that do not
involve them being sold as sexual entertainment.

Page 124




Objection: 20/03326/SEV Central Chambers

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

Information in this table is to be kept strictly confidential

Detail of application

Name of applicant: Reedbed Ltd., Central Chambers
(Reference: 20/03326/SEV)

Address of premises: 9 - 11 St Stephens Street, Bristol, BS1 1EE

Application date: 25 August 2020

Date by which objections must | 22 September 2020

be received:

| write as a resident of Bristol who in normal times passes St Stephens Street
regularly for work, volunteering, leisure and family reasons. | also write as a gender
equality consultant and as an academic who specialises in the prevention of violence
against women. | advise governments, public health agencies, universities and
NGOs in the UK and internationally, on women’s rights, sexual harassment, sexual
objectification and gender equality policy. xxxxxxxx the Safety and Access task
group of the Bristol@Night board. | am a member of the Society of Gender
Professionals and hold a current appointment to the United Nations Roster of
Experts on Violence Against Women.

| object to the application to renew the licence on the following grounds, which |
would like shared in full with the Committee rather than summarised:

Safety and equality of women in Bristol

The prime city centre location of these premises is a constant reminder to me of my
place as a woman in our society and of Bristol’s tolerance of sexism in our city. We
know from research that many women and girls avoid public areas that make them
feel unsafe and that these areas include where SEVs are located. Bristol’s latest
Quiality of Life survey shows that 18% of women have been victims of sex or gender
discrimination or harassment in the last year. 29.3% f women think sexual
harassment is an issue in Bristol, rising to 42.7% of young people. Bristol women
limit their freedom of movement in the city because of feeling unsafe. It is unjust that
our public spaces include “no-go zones” for women, whether they avoid the spaces
because of safety fears, or in rejection of the sexual objectification and sexism that

Page 125




Objection: 20/03326/SEV Central Chambers

they represent. In any case, while the immediate vicinity of SEVs may well be
associated with higher risk of assault or sexual harassment, despite the mitigating
presence of door staff or CCTV cameras, the harms of SEVs to the women of Bristol
are not restricted to the immediate geographical vicinity nor to the immediate point in
time at which ‘sexual entertainment’ has taken place. To suggest that this is what
objectors say is to deliberately misrepresent what objectors and experts know about
the cultural context of sexism and violence against women.

The existence of what is unapologetically a part of the sex industry on one of
Bristol’s most prominent and historic streets causes problems for great numbers of
people for many reasons. The City Council has a duty to promote gender equality
yet in a consultation when women were asked whether decision makers take full
account of [let alone promote] women’s equality issues almost 92% of respondents
said no or were unsure. Meanwhile respondents also questioned the Council’s
failure to refuse licences for lap dancing clubs and cited feeling unsafe in the city
centre, and said that women are being excluded from enjoying the city in the same
way as men. The Royal Town Planning Institute guide on Gender and Spatial
Planning says that “lap dancing and exotic dancing clubs make women feel
threatened or uncomfortable” which is further corroborated by 2012 research
published in Criminal Justice Matters which states that: “. . . the women describe
feeling frightened, disempowered, violated, embarrassed, unsafe (particularly if men
are around), and avoid certain streets at night where they know there is a lap
dancing club.” This is evidence and there is no mitigation for this.

Personally, | am not made to feel “threatened or uncomfortable” by Central
Chambers: | am made to feel saddened and angered that our city has thus far
continued to tolerate this beacon to the inequality of women.

Central Chambers, in common with all lapdancing clubs, promotes harmful attitudes
to women and runs counter to promoting equality between women and men. | do
not say this because it is a sex-related business. It is because it reproduces and
promotes the prevailing financial and social inequality between women and men in
our society, and it reproduces and promotes the prevailing cultural assumption that
women’s bodies are objects to which men are entitled to have access. Holding pole
dancing lessons for women or engaging occasional male strippers does nothing to
alter this. Indeed, research into sexual objectification has shown that it is only
women (not men) who are seen as objects (dehumanised) when sexualised.
Academic research published in 2018 (Violence & Victims, 33(1), 23) showed that
“objectification of the other sex was associated with severe psychological
aggression and physical assault perpetration in males, but not in females”.

Dehumanisation of women makes it easier to behave violently towards women - and
dehumanisation / objectification of women is a cultural phenomenon that causes
women as a group to be subjected to violence. In other words, seeing one woman as
a sex object affects how all women are seen. Adequate safety precautions for
performers while they are at work in SEVs are important and necessary, but such
precautions do nothing to protect other women in Bristol from the harmful attitudes
that are being fostered and encouraged in the day to day operation of SEVs.

One of the most authoritative, rigorous, expensive multinational studies of male

Page 126




Objection: 20/03326/SEV Central Chambers

violence against women ever conducted was recently published by the United
Nations, in which the most common motivation of men who have admitted to rape
was found to be the belief that they are entitled to sex even without the female
partner’s consent. This study interviewed 10,000 men and 1 in 4 had raped their
wife, their partner or another woman. That is not an insignificant minority of men.
Entitlement, which is the stock in trade of lap dancing clubs, is the main motivation
given by men who rape. Appallingly, the first time this research was cited in an
objection the claim was made to the committee that this research was somehow
irrelevant because it was conducted across six countries in Asia and the Pacific, not
the UK. This attempt to undermine decades of evidence concerning why men are
violent to women, and what we can do about it, by means of what | would call dog-
whistle racism, was deeply offensive. | am struggling to believe the committee were
swayed by that intervention but for the purposes of clarity | would like to make it
clear that there is a vast and ever-growing international evidence-base regarding the
extent and causes of violence perpetrated by men and boys against women and
girls. Should the committee members be interested in recent research specifically
concerning men and boys who live in the UK | encourage them to review
Promundo’s recent (2018) study of young men including over 1000 British men, or
the EU Fundamental Rights Agency’s (2014) survey of 42,000 women including over
1500 in the UK and over 1500 in Ireland.

In a study for the Journal of Sex Research, more than half the men interviewed said
they were motivated to visit lapdancing clubs to get away from what they saw as the
rules for behaviour that constrained them - that is, treating women equally - for
example when interacting with female colleagues at work. That is not an insignificant
minority of men. One participant said of visiting a lap dancing club:
“You can go in there and shop for a piece of meat, quote unquote, so to
speak. | mean, you want to see a girl run around naked, have her come
over, pay her to do a dance or two or three and walk away and not even ask
her name. Total distancing.”

In her most recent country visit to the UK, Professor Rashida Manjoo the UN Special
Rapporteur on Violence Against Women and Girls, drew attention to the social
practices that facilitate violence against women and girls. She said that the UK has a
particular problem with sexist culture towards women and the “marketisation of their
bodies”. This observation has been reflected in the evidence-based report issued
recently by the Committee For Standards in Advertising Practice with the Advertising
Standards Authority: “Depictions, Perceptions and Harm”.

| object to the granting of this renewal therefore both on the grounds of the
Council’s Equality Duties and under the licensing objective of the prevention of
Crime and Disorder. The sexual objectification of women, as encouraged by and
practised in SEVs, acts to reinforce gender inequality. Sexual objectification
dehumanises women. Male domestic violence offenders using the sex industry use
more forms of aggressive violence and more controlling behaviours than those who
do not use the sex industry. After being exposed to images that sexually objectify
women, men are significantly more accepting of sexual harassment, interpersonal
violence, rape myths, and sex role stereotypes — all of which act to reinforce gender
inequality. Importantly, this increased acceptance of harmful attitudes is not
confined to particular women but generalises to women as a group. Recent

Page 127




Objection: 20/03326/SEV Central Chambers

research demonstrates how sexual objectification has a key mediating role in the
well-established link between men’s alcohol use and sexual violence perpetration:
“alcohol use intensifies the objectification of women in a manner that increases
sexual violence risk”. SEVs provide alcohol and encourage sexual objectification.

Sexual objectification is not the same thing as sexiness, or sexuality, or sexual
enjoyment — sexual objectification is a barrier to the development and enjoyment of
authentic mutually satisfying sexual relationships where women and men are equally
valued and in charge of their own sexuality.

Unsuitability of premises and location

Research issued by the Office for National Statistics for the year ending 2017
revealed there to be 648,000 adult victims of sexual offences in that one year, of
whom 510,000 were women. This means that an estimated 3.1% of all adult women
are subjected to sexual offences every year. The research also shows that rape and
other sexual offences remain massively under-reported to the police compared with
many other crimes, despite how serious they are. Only 17% of victims said they
reported the offence to the police. Their reasons for not going to the police included
"embarrassment", and "didn't think the police could do much to help". Meanwhile the
statistics in Bristol reflect the national picture, with Operation Balsa confirming that
sexual assaults are “massively under-reported” (CIA data presentation, 2020). Even
so, in two years there were 91 reports of rape or sexual assault at licensed premises
in Bristol City Centre. Two of these were at an SEV (Urban Tiger), bringing it into the
top 20 locations for sexual assault/rape in licensed premises. The reason there are
very stringent safety conditions (CCTV, door staff for example) in SEVs is because
of the evidence that women who work in them are highly likely to be subjected to
sexual abuse (and also extremely unlikely to ever report it to authorities). However,
sexual assaults upon women who are customers are far less likely to happen in
SEVs because there are proportionately very few female customers and the
premises are highly monitored. Rather, the SEVs create problems that they do not
take responsibility for. In the short term, men disinhibited by alcohol and encouraged
to have a sense of entitlement to women’s bodies are likely to take themselves out
into the city centre streets. In the longer term as the scholarship on violence
prevention tells us, men whose attitudes and behaviour to women are shaped,
normalised and reinforced by the business of SEVs, are an ongoing problem for their
work or study colleagues, family, and the wider community of women. The first point
- that research tells us sexual objectification and alcohol consumption together
predict sexual violence in men in general - is a very clear reason to find that the
location of the premises is unsuitable given that the city centre is a hotspot for
sexual violence.

| have set out further reasons for the unsuitability of the premises, supported by
references to studies and reports, in previous objections. | summarise them here.

| object to the renewal of this licence on the grounds of:

Residential character: premises are directly adjacent to the Bristol Backpackers
Hostel used by lone travellers many of whom are female. Premises are very close to
hundreds of residential apartments with the prospect of more to come.

Page 128




Objection: 20/03326/SEV Central Chambers

Character of the locality including leisure and family friendly facilities and churches:
People wishing to visit Corn St and the Register office, St Nicholas Market,
Stanfords bookstore are forced to pass by this sex club.

The premises are far from “discreetly located” as historically claimed: they are visible
from Broad Quay and the Centre Promenade.

The premises are extremely close to St Stephens Church which has been on St
Stephens Street since the 13" Century - this makes the street a completely
inappropriate location for this SEV.

Safety and wellbeing of women working in SEVs

| provide an example of how violence against women in clubs remains under the

radar:

This is from the police log for a Bristol SEV in 2012:
7/1/2011. AS-20110107-0050.
Council CCTV saw a male with blood on his face outside club. Police
attended and door staff stated that the male had been touching the dancers.
The male had then got behind the bar before being ejected from the club. The
male refused to give any details about the incident. There were no allegations
from either side so NFA [no further action] was taken.

The performers at the club are self-employed women. Research shows that women
who work in SEVs are subject to high levels of abusive behaviour by customers: in a
UK study published in 2011 almost half reported frequent verbal harassment and
unwanted touching from customers (in other words, sexual assault). However the
reality is that this behaviour is a) tolerated/accepted and b) not reported to the
authorities and there is a clear conflict of interest to do so. Nevertheless, the most
serious sexual offences that are captured on cctv can end up reported to police. It is
not a coincidence that in Bristol last year a customer was jailed for what must have
been a terrifying attack in an SEV which resulted in him ejaculating onto the bare leg
of a performer (https://www.thewestonmercury.co.uk/news/court/former-weston-
man-ejaculated-on-stripper-1-6283931). The licensing committee must be clear that
their objective the “Prevention of Crime and Disorder” is just that, and must not be
interpreted as the “Prevention of specific types of crime and disorder which are
reported to the police and acted on by the police”.

In a previous hearing for renewal of a licence by this applicant, objectors were
egregiously misrepresented via a suggestion from the lawyer for the premises that
objectors viewed performers (women who work in SEVs) as “a sub-class”. | regard
this as an attempt to set up a false ‘battle’ between women performers and women
who object to SEVs. The issue is one of social policy and of gender equality. It is
sexism and violence against women that must be the focus, not the work choices of
women who strip. Since the new licensing regime was introduced there has never
been any objection demonstrating anything other than respect and concern for the
performers and their welfare. This is because it is not feminists who attack and show
disdain for women working in the sex trade. Sadly it is punters who do this, as a
search for customer reviews of SEVs and other sex trade premises readily makes
clear and as academic research demonstrates. At the same time, an academic
review of how dancers manage stigma (Thompson & Harred, 1992) set out three
techniques for how this is done: 1) by denying the existence of injury or harm, 2) by

Page 129



https://www.thewestonmercury.co.uk/news/court/former-weston-man-ejaculated-on-stripper-1-6283931
https://www.thewestonmercury.co.uk/news/court/former-weston-man-ejaculated-on-stripper-1-6283931

Objection: 20/03326/SEV Central Chambers

condemning the people who condemn their work, and 3) by appealing to “higher
loyalties” for example by proffering reasons for dancing such as helping family
members with money or paying their way through education. Please do not allow
representatives to attempt to derail the focus of licensing hearings, and please
challenge them when they do because objectors have historically had no right to
reply in the way Bristol’s hearings have been designed to proceed.

A prime city centre location like this could be brilliantly redeveloped just like Pata
Negra in Corn Street which used to be a licensed SEV called the Lounge@30. When
its SEV renewal was refused, it went on to become an immensely successful thriving
business employing more staff with full proper employment status than either of the
Bristol SEVs do according to their accounts. This means that the employees there
have all the rights and benefits such as pension and sickness pay that that entails.
By contrast performers in SEVs, who bring in custom and who pay fees to work
there, are self-employed. They have no sickness or other benefits — one reason why
in Doncaster as reported in the national news, a young woman went back to work as
a stripper 4 weeks after giving birth to her first baby. On her first day back she was
propositioned for sex by a customer who would not take no for an answer, and he
punched her, breaking her face in three places. Licence conditions, which women’s
rights campaigners fought hard for at the last policy review, are very important to
signal concern for the protection of worker safety because working in the sex
industry is the most dangerous work that women can do — but at the end of the day
no amount of conditions or CCTV can make this work ‘safe’ — as other news stories
from the last year alone illustrate. A well managed premises that is a part of the sex
trade is still a part of the sex trade and still has a net very negative impact on the
city’s progress towards equality.

| object to the renewal of this licence on all the grounds listed above.

Page 130




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS ) ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

Information in this table is to be kept strictly confidential

Detail of application

Name of applicant: Reedbed Ltd, Central Chambers
(Reference: 20/03326/SEV)

Address of premises: 9 - 11 St Stephens Street, Bristol, BS1 1EE

Application date: 25 August 2020

Date by which objections must be received: | 22 September 2020

Please enter the detail of your objection below. Please note however that objections
based on moral grounds cannot be accepted. Objections may be continued overleaf or
on separate sheets of paper.

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX, established in 2001, is a Bristol-based organisation whose members
support the aims of the xxxxxxxxxx and work at a local level to:

* Raise awareness of XXXXXXXXXX

« Campaign and lobby to improve policy and services for women and girls

» Bring an informed gender equality perspective to local decision making bodies including
Bristol City Council with whom we have worked in partnership on many subjects for over a
decade.

XXXXXXXXXXXXXX Objects to the renewal of the SEV licence to the above applicant on a
number of grounds including the location of the applicant’s premises, the Council’s duties
under Equalities Law and its obligations under Crime and Disorder legislation.

We do not wish this objection to be summarised as we would prefer the Committee to read a
copy of it in its entirety, and for it to be published in its entirety, including the appendix.

Page 131




Summary of points

1.

No previous manifestation of a sub-committee has said in its decision that it had
‘particular regard to written objections concerning the location of the premises’ (see
Appendix) — but you are entitled to do this.

A local authority is a “body of changing composition and shifting opinion” (see
Appendix) — a differently constituted sub-committee may have different perceptions
from those of previous elected representatives. This is as it should be. The
existence of a licence is not the determining factor in its renewal.

We — and other women'’s organisations and service providers - are your experts in
gender equality. Others do not have this expertise. Our collective expertise surely
has definitive credibility and weight. You represent the only city in the UK to be a
signatory to the Charter for Equality of Women and Men in Public Life and one of a
small number to be a White Ribbon City who have clarified their position to you about
the requirement to end SEVs. You are the only local authority in England to have a
Cabinet Member for Women. This dedication to gender equality should be
mainstreamed throughout all your decisions.

This year our objection contains references to new research adding to the already
very strong evidence of the negative impact upon women of this SEV in our historic
city centre. The harm to women can not be ‘mitigated away’ by conditions (there is
no evidence that they make a difference) nor by however discreet the venue appears.
It is not its physical appearance, but the nature of the activity and its effects on
Bristolians, to the detriment of women, which is at issue.

Although the law says you do not need any ‘new’ changes in locality the fact is that
the locality now has an increased residential and family and student population which
your policy says you will take into account.

Please give weight to your obligations under the Equality Act, accept as authoritative
the evidence in our submission and refuse to grant this application.

Gendered violence and gender equality

Experts in gendered violence (which is one of the most significant drains on police and public
health resources) and gender equality (which BCC is quite rightly obliged to promote under
Equality legislation) are united in their consistent advice that SEVs are harmful.

Women’s groups are not profit-making businesses. If we were, we would pay to employ
expert public law barristers to talk to the members of the committee about the Public Sector
Equality Duty and how local authorities are equipped to take decisions in support of equality
and to tackle discrimination. One such barrister, Karon Monaghan QC who acted in the
recent case regarding Sheffield City Council and SEVs where the council was found to be in
breach of equality law, said in 2018 to a Parliamentary Select Committee on sexual
harassment: “what has been said in the lap dancing public sector equality duty case is that
licensing lap dancing clubs and sexual entertainment venues more generally, have an
impact on the wider community because they promote the idea that sexual objectification of

Page 132




women and sexual harassment commonly in those environments is lawful.” The QC went on
to say, “There is so much that can be done using the public sector equality duty. Planning,
environment, lighting, the way streets are organised, schools, licensing sex entertainment
venues. How are we doing that in the 21st century? We are not going to get rid of sexual
violence if we mandate the sexual objectification of women in licensed venues.” Equality law
is not less binding, or less important, than licensing law. The results of the two recent
Judicial Review cases in Sheffield highlight Local Authority shortcomings with regard to
gender equality and the licensing of SEVs. We encourage members and officers to study the
findings in those cases. We do not want to take the council to Judicial Review - we would
prefer that members act using their discretion as is their right under licensing law, in order to
meet their obligations under equality law.

The overwhelming consensus nationally, internationally, and here in Bristol among experts
and expert organisations who promote gender equality and who work to end violence against
women, is that lap dancing clubs are harmful. Scotland’s licensing legislation (2015) directs
local authorities to consider the specific impact of SEV policy upon the aim of reducing
violence against women. In 2018 The Women’s Equality Party passed a motion calling upon
the Home Office to issue new guidance helping local authorities to clearly understand their
powers to refuse SEV licences. Bristol's own strategy against gendered violence, to which
the City Council is a signatory, contains an objective to reduce the opportunities for sexual
exploitation and negative perceptions of women that are afforded by SEVs. Bristol City
Council is a signatory to the Zero Tolerance pledge, taking a zero tolerance approach to
gender-based violence, abuse and exploitation. This is enshrined in Bristol's new Corporate
Strategy. Bristol is a White Ribbon City, having pledged to prevent violence against women,
and White Ribbon status requires that cities work towards having zero SEVs. The Police and
Crime Commissioner for Avon and Somerset said about SEVs in August 2017: “If we truly
believe in equality such places have no role to play #Bristol”.

Bristol’s latest Joint Strategic Needs Assessment' now includes a chapter on women’s
health which gives the Licensing Sub-committee access to data that should concern them
greatly. There was a steep rise in sexual offences (rising in one year by 28% in Bristol
against a national average increase of 21% - 84% of victims were female). Demand for
sexual offence support services has never been higher. The Quality of Life Survey 2017-18
records that 25.2% of Bristol females reported being a victim of sex or gender discrimination
in the past year. 39.4% of Bristol women say that sexual harassment is an issue in Bristol. A
new report to Cabinet in February 2020 revealed that more than 10,000 domestic violence
and abuse incidents and an estimated 6,200 sexual offences took place in Bristol in the
previous year, with the great majority of victims being female.?

Local, national and international research and policy statements are entirely clear about the
relationship between the sexual objectification of women (as practised and promoted in

1

https://www.bristol.gov.uk/documents/20182/1655362/JSNA+Chapter+Women%27s+Health+%28V14
%29/9024901c-46fe-e13a-a194-0260ed22a3c1

2 Bristol Post, 7 February 2020 https://www.bristolpost.co.uk/news/bristol-news/were-more-10000-
domestic-abuse-3819817

Page 133



https://www.bristol.gov.uk/documents/20182/1655362/JSNA+Chapter+Women%27s+Health+%28V14%29/9024901c-46fe-e13a-a194-0260ed22a3c1
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/documents/20182/1655362/JSNA+Chapter+Women%27s+Health+%28V14%29/9024901c-46fe-e13a-a194-0260ed22a3c1
https://www.bristolpost.co.uk/news/bristol-news/were-more-10000-domestic-abuse-3819817
https://www.bristolpost.co.uk/news/bristol-news/were-more-10000-domestic-abuse-3819817

SEVs) and both gender inequality and violence against women including sexual harassment.

The World Health Organization Guidance for Policy Makers® is based on the most up to date
research evidence and explicitly identifies your responsibility to make sure your public body
is challenging (not upholding) ‘harmful gender attitudes, beliefs, norms and stereotypes that
uphold male privilege and female subordination’, because these are the causes of violence
against women. We also draw your attention to the newly updated HM Government strategy
— Ending Violence Against Women and Girls Strategy 2016- 2020*° - which makes explicit
the links between gender inequality, violence and harmful social norms. The strategy says

(p16):

“Violence against women and girls is both a cause and consequence of gender inequality.
We will continue to challenge the deep-rooted social norms, attitudes and behaviours
that discriminate against and limit women and girls across all communities”.

These are the sexist norms, attitudes and behaviours that are exemplified in SEVs. The
latest report from the UN (UNDP, 2020) names deep-seated discriminatory norms and
gender stereotypes, such as those exercised by and between male customers and female
performers in SEVs, as directly leading to inequality between the sexes.*

We also draw your attention to some of the newest peer-reviewed publications that add to
the evidence we have submitted in the past:

¢ Obijectification of the other sex is associated with severe psychological aggression
and physical assault perpetration in males, but not in females (Johnson et al. 2018)°

¢ Women’s mental health and positive emotions are negatively impacted by being
sexually objectified and by witnessing the sexual objectification of others (Koval et al.
2019)°

¢ Men use the sexual objectification of women to reinforce their position over women in
society (Bareket & Shnabel, 2019)’

The new LGA Equality Framework® standard for excellence says: “The organisation is able
to show how they have made sure that even when making difficult decisions they continue to
have clearly articulated and meaningful commitment to equality.”

3 WHO (World Health Organization) (2019). RESPECT women: Preventing violence against women. Geneva: World Health Organization.
(WHO/RHR/18.19). Licence: CC BY-MC-SA 3.0 IGO. https://www.unodc.org/documents/justice-and-prison-reform/WHO-RHR-18.19-eng.pdf

* UNDP (2020). Tackling Social Norms: A Game Changer for Gender Inequalities. 2020 Human
Development Perspectives. New York: UNDP.

http://hdr.undp.org/sites/default/files/hd perspectives gsni.pdf

> Johnson, M.R., Langille, 1., & Walsh, Z. (2018). The Role of Objectification in the Victimization and
Perpetration of Intimate Partner Violence. Violence and Victims, 33(1), 23-39.
http://connect.springerpub.com/content/sgrvv/33/1/23

® Koval, K., Holland, E., Zyphur, M.J., Stratemeyer, M., Makovec Knight, J., Bailen, N.H., Thompson,
R.J., Holland, E., Roberts, T-A., & Haslam, N. (2019). How does it feel to be treated like an object?
Direct and indirect effects of exposure to sexual objectification on women’s emotions in daily life.
Journal of Personality and Social Psychology: Attitudes and Social Cognition, 116(6), 885-898.

" Bareket, O. and Shnabel, N. (2019). Domination and Objectification: Men’s Motivation for
Dominance Over Women Affects Their Tendency to Sexually Objectify Women. Psychology of
Women Quarterly, Advance Online Publication. DOI: 10.1177/0361684319871913

Page 134



https://www.unodc.org/documents/justice-and-prison-reform/WHO-RHR-18.19-eng.pdf
http://hdr.undp.org/sites/default/files/hd_perspectives_gsni.pdf
http://connect.springerpub.com/content/sgrvv/33/1/23

As we know from a new survey published by the Fawcett Society in October last year®, public
attitudes have changed and the public say that the boundaries of what is acceptable when it
comes to gender inequality and violence against women have changed. As you will know,
the Advertising Standards Agency has responded to evidence of harm by changing its
guidelines to stop sexist advertising. The British Board of Film Classification has also
launched new guidelines in response to increased public awareness about the harm and
unacceptability of sexual violence. In their own words, “attitudes have moved on”."°

It is time to listen to women, and to listen to the advice of those who are experts in gender
equality. The effect upon gender equality of this SEV is the effect upon women who share
the protected characteristic of sex. The question is not whether a small minority of women
may be able to harness an unequal practice to their own personal advantage. On this basis
we submit that the application for renewal be rejected.

We would add that there is absolutely zero evidence whatsoever that lap dancing clubs
would exist ‘underground’ if they were not licensed as SEVs, and there is by contrast
evidence that suggests that clear public policy decisions regarding the unacceptability of
sexual exploitation reduces the demand for the sex trade, reduces any ‘underground’ activity
and contributes to culture and attitude change among citizens in favour of equality.

Inappropriate location:

Proximity to St Stephen’s Parish Church:

The premises are located opposite and very close to St Stephen’s Parish Church. This is a
busy community church which carries out weddings, baptisms, funerals and many other
community activities. Central Chambers intend to offer sexual entertainment during the
times that the Church is active. It is highly inappropriate to situate a sex entertainment
venue so close to a busy community church. Indeed two years ago, the barrister for Central
Chambers used in his argument for renewal the fact that the Committee did not have before
them an objection from the local church and implied this was because the church did not
object! We understand that the church does in fact object and we respectfully suggest that
the Committee don’t need us to tell them that absence of a formally submitted objection is
any kind of sign that people and community groups “do not object”.

In March 2011, Oxford City Council used its powers under the SEV legislation to turn down
an application for a SEV licence from an existing club. The premises were situated next to St
Ebbe’s Church, a busy church in the centre of Oxford. It was submitted that it was highly
inappropriate to situate a lap dancing club in such close proximity to a place of worship, and
near a church that was used by hundreds of young people, women and other members of
the community. In summary, the Executive Member for City Development, said: “We said it
was inappropriate in the area it was placed. There were four or five reasons, it's proximity to

8 https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/quidance%20-
%20equality%20frameworks%20-
%20Equality%20Framework%20For%20Local%20Government%20%28EFLG%29.pdf

¥ https://www.fawcettsociety.org.uk/news/majority-of-young-men-more-likely-to-challenge-sexual-
harassment-since-metoo

10 http://www.bbfc.co.uk/about-bbfc/media-centre/bbfc-launches-new-classification-guidelines-and-
calls-greater-age-rating

Page 135



https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/guidance%20-%20equality%20frameworks%20-%20Equality%20Framework%20For%20Local%20Government%20%28EFLG%29.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/guidance%20-%20equality%20frameworks%20-%20Equality%20Framework%20For%20Local%20Government%20%28EFLG%29.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/guidance%20-%20equality%20frameworks%20-%20Equality%20Framework%20For%20Local%20Government%20%28EFLG%29.pdf
https://www.fawcettsociety.org.uk/news/majority-of-young-men-more-likely-to-challenge-sexual-harassment-since-metoo
https://www.fawcettsociety.org.uk/news/majority-of-young-men-more-likely-to-challenge-sexual-harassment-since-metoo
http://www.bbfc.co.uk/about-bbfc/media-centre/bbfc-launches-new-classification-guidelines-and-calls-greater-age-rating
http://www.bbfc.co.uk/about-bbfc/media-centre/bbfc-launches-new-classification-guidelines-and-calls-greater-age-rating

the church, the shopping centre, historic and tourist destinations and a school.”

Residential character:

The premises are located directly adjacent to Bristol Backpackers hostel which is used by
lone travellers and in particular lone females. The hostel website promises a secure and
comfortable environment for visitors. The premises are also close to hundreds of residential
apartments, and Bristol’s Development Framework Core Strategy promises further
residential development in the city centre including 7400 new homes in the city centre alone.
This by itself is grounds to refuse this application — see the Court of Appeal Judgement
in Thompson at our Appendix. Major increases to the university student residential
population in the locality are also underway. This is also grounds in itself to refuse this
application.

Character of the locality including leisure and family friendly facilities:
The premises is described on its website as being “in the heart of Bristol’s city centre”. It is in
the vicinity of the main Harbourside area and is visible from Broad Quay.

Bristol’'s Development Framework Core Strategy (4.2.3) says:

“The city centre symbolises the city. It forms Bristol’s historic core”.

Not only does this area symbolise the city but it also attracts huge numbers of visitors and
families because of the very nearby leisure attractions including the Hippodrome and the
fountains where children play in the area designated by the City Council as the “Centre
Promenade”.

Bristol City Council describes the Centre Promenade thus:

“The Centre Promenade is a busy, dynamic, 24-hour city centre space with constant
pedestrian and vehicle movement and is a very popular site for commercial promotions,
advertising and markets. The Centre Promenade is the city’s main bus and pedestrian travel
hub and has a correspondingly high 24/7 footfall.”

A traffic control trial recorded the following traffic and footfall at the Broad Quay/Prince
Street Junction:

600 vehicles per hour

80-100 buses per hour

350-400 cyclists per hour

1300 pedestrians per hour.

Thousands of people every day who are attracted by business or leisure to the city centre or
who need to take public transport in the city centre are passing near to Central Chambers. A
SEV licence was refused in Leamington Spa with the reason given that a (small) number of
residents of a local cul-de-sac had no realistic alternative but to have to walk past the club on
their routes home. It has come to our attention that lawyers for an SEV in Sheffield recently
used Bristol as an example of a city where an SEV is prominently located in the city centre.
This argument was made to support the application in the other city. We do not want Bristol
to be used and regarded in this way. When Philip Kolvin QC represented residents objecting
to the renewal of the SEV that used to operate in Chester, he said "The courts have said that
you can respond to a body of feeling in the locality, merely the fact that a number of people

Page 136




are concerned about this justifies refusal". He said that the representations to the committee
were “the workings of democracy”. Mr Kolvin asserted, “Lap dancing clubs and historic city
centres trying to promote a family-friendly image are not a desirable mix, particularly with a
growing residential population on the doorstep”. The council went on to refuse the renewal."
In another case where Mr Kolvin was employed by objectors in 2020, he said that to have an
SEV in the busy shopping area in central London was “entirely inimical to the character of
this area, as it is now, and as it is becoming, and also to the uses in the vicinity”. The council
went on to refuse the licence.”

It is unacceptable that people (especially women, vulnerable people and minors) who wish to
use the city centre are forced to pass by a sex club.

Those who pass by are faced with the threat of the “patrons” who are generally in a state of
intoxication and arguably sexual excitement. A post written on Urban Tiger's Facebook page
(screenshot available) commented: “[name] and [name] left me feeling hornier than a fresian
bull”. A report this year by Plan International (2020) discussed the finding that 66% of girls
aged 14-21 have experienced unwanted sexual attention or harassment in a public place,
saying:

“Girls do not feel safe in public and they do not feel their local areas are designed for them.
They are dealing with relentless street harassment and changing their behaviour to avoid
being targeted.” Girls and women who are sexually harassed by men on the street almost
never report it to the police.

As legal proceedings elsewhere have made clear regarding SEVs, the committee is entitled
to “take a fresh look” every year at whether it is minded to grant an application. Whether
some things may have stayed the same since last year, such as the ownership of the club,
other things have in fact materially changed.

On all these grounds we object to this application.

" hitps://www.cheshire-live.co.uk/news/chester-cheshire-news/chester-platinum-lounge-lap-dancing-
9548112

https://www.standard.co.uk/news/london/selfridges-wins-fight-to-stop-strip-club-opening-
a4540431.html

Page 137



https://www.cheshire-live.co.uk/news/chester-cheshire-news/chester-platinum-lounge-lap-dancing-9548112
https://www.cheshire-live.co.uk/news/chester-cheshire-news/chester-platinum-lounge-lap-dancing-9548112
https://www.standard.co.uk/news/london/selfridges-wins-fight-to-stop-strip-club-opening-a4540431.html
https://www.standard.co.uk/news/london/selfridges-wins-fight-to-stop-strip-club-opening-a4540431.html

Appendix: Court of Appeal judgment (2014)

Before:

THE MASTER OF THE ROLLS
LORD JUSTICE LONGMORE
and
LORD JUSTICE LLOYD JONES

Between:

R (ALISTAIR THOMPSON) Appellant
-and -

OXFORD CITY COUNCIL Respondent
-and -

SPEARMINT RHINO VENTURES (UK)
LIMITED Intervener

(Transcript of the Handed Down Judgment of
WordWave International Limited
A Merrill Communications Company
165 Fleet Street, London EC4A 2DY
Tel No: 020 7404 1400, Fax No: 020 7831 8838
Official Shorthand Writers to the Court)

Gerald Gouriet QC and Jeremy Phillips (instructed by Berwin Leighton Paisner LLP)
for the Appellant
Ranjit Bhose QC (instructed by Jeremy Thomas, Head of Law & Governance of Oxford
City Council) for the Respondent
Philip Kolvin QC (instructed by Robert Sutherland of Jeffrey Green Russell Ltd) for
the Intervener
Hearing date: 27 January 2014

Page 138



LORD JUSTICE LLOYD JONES:

Introduction.

This is an appeal by Mr. Alistair Lockwood Thompson (“the appellant™) against the Order of Haddon-
Cave J. dated 28 June 2013 dismissing his claim for judicial review of Oxford City Council's ("the
Council™) refusal on 24 September 2012 to renew a licence for a sexual entertainment venue (“'the SEV
licence™) for a lap-dancing club known as "The Lodge" at Oxpens Road in Oxford.

The statutory background.

As originally enacted, the provisions in Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1982 ("LGMPA 1982") concerning the licensing of "sex establishments" were limited
to the regulation of sex cinemas and sex shops. They did not include other sexual entertainment venues
such as strip clubs or lap-dancing clubs, which were subject to the licensing regime under the Licensing
Act 2003. However in 2009 Parliament brought lap-dancing clubs within the licensing regime of
Schedule 3 to LGMPA 1982. Section 27 of the Policing and Crime Act 2009 ("PCA 2009") amended
the definition of "sex establishments" in paragraph 2 of Schedule 3 to LGMPA 1982 so as to include a
"sexual entertainment venue". Local authorities were given the option of adopting Schedule 3 as
amended so as to give effect to the new regime in their area.

By resolution passed on 19 April 2010 Oxford City Council resolved to adopt the amended Schedule 3
to LGMPA 1982. The resolution included the following statement:

"(c) That "Sexual Entertainment Venues™ are not generally appropriate near or in locations or areas
containing any of the following:

(i) Historic buildings or tourist attractions.

(ii) Schools, play areas, nurseries, children's centres or similar premises.
(iii) Shopping complexes.

(iv) Residential areas.

(v) Places of worship."

Whereas previously, under the Licensing Act 2003, licences had been of an indefinite duration, under
the LGMPA 1982 licences for lap-dancing clubs may only be granted for a maximum of a year and
therefore have to be renewed at least annually. Paragraph 8 of Schedule 3 gives appropriate authorities
the power to grant or renew SEV licences and draws no distinction between fresh applications and
renewal applications.

The statutory grounds for grant or renewal or refusal are set out in paragraph 12 of Schedule 3.
Paragraph 12(2)(a) provides that the authority may refuse an application for the grant or renewal of a
licence on one or more of the grounds specified in Paragraph 12(3) which provides as follows:

"(3) The grounds mentioned in sub-paragraph (2) above are—

(a) that the applicant is unsuitable to hold a licence by reason of having been convicted of an offence or
for any other reason;

(b) that if the licence were to be granted, renewed or transferred the business to which it relates would
be managed by or carried on for the benefit of a person, other than the applicant, who would be refused
the grant, renewal or transfer of such a licence if he made the application himself;

Page 139



10.

11.

(c) that the number of sex establishments, or of sex establishments of a particular kind, in the relevant
locality at the time the application is determined is equal to or exceeds the number which the authority
consider is appropriate for that locality;

(d) that the grant or renewal of the licence would be inappropriate, having regard—
(i) to the character of the relevant locality; or
(ii) to the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put; or

(iii) to the layout, character or condition of the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall in respect of which the
application is made.

(4) Nil may be an appropriate number for the purposes of sub-paragraph (3)(c) above.
(5) In this paragraph "the relevant locality" means —

(@) in relation to premises, the locality where they are situated; and

() ..."

Paragraph 10(2) of Schedule 3 provides:

"Where the appropriate authority refuse to grant, renew or transfer a licence, they shall give him a
statement in writing of the reasons for their decision."

The effect of paragraph 27 of Schedule 3 is that appeals against refusals on the grounds specified in
paragraph 12(3)(a) and (b) are to a Magistrates' Court and then the Crown Court, whereas refusals on
the grounds specified in paragraph 12(3)(c) and (d) are subject only to review by the High Court.

The Home Office Guidance on Sexual Entertainment Venues published in March 2010 states (at para.
3.36) that "'the relevant locality'" does not have to be a clearly pre-defined area and that local
authorities are free to conclude that it simply refers to the area which surrounds the premises.

The Pennyfarthing Place premises.

The appellant had previously operated a similar establishment, also called The Lodge, at premises at
Pennyfarthing Place in Oxford. A Public Entertainment Licence had been in force in respect of those
premises from at least 1996. From 2007 the appellant and his business partner, Mr. Opher, ran The
Lodge as a bar and nightclub as tenants of the landlord and licensee, Greene King Retailing Limited
("Greene King").

On 14 October 2009 Greene King applied for a licence variation to alter the layout of the premises in
Pennyfarthing Place and to add the licensable activities of "film, performance of dance, facilities for
making music and anything of a similar description". This variation was sought in preparation for the
operation of the premises as a lap-dancing club. Objections were made to the variation, particularly in
light of the proximity of the premises to St. Ebbe's Church. On 10 December 2009 Greene King's
application for variation of the licence was granted. An appeal against the grant of the licence by the
Rector of St. Ebbe's Church was subsequently dismissed by Oxford Magistrates' Court on 30 June
2010.

On 10 February 2010 the Council granted a licence to the claimants specifically for the operation of the
Pennyfarthing Place premises as a lap-dancing club. The Lodge operated as a lap-dancing club
continuously thereafter until March 2011 when a renewal of the licence was refused.

Following the Council resolution of 19 April 2010 adopting the new licensing regime under the
amended Schedule 3 to the LGMPA 1982, the appellant had to apply for a licence under the new
regime to enable the Pennyfarthing Place premises to continue to operate as a lap-dancing club. On 2

10

Page 140



12.

13.

14,

March 2011 the Council's Licensing and Registration Sub-Committee (“the Sub-Committee™) heard the
appellant's application for an SEV licence for the Pennyfarthing Place premises. The application was
refused. On 1 April 2011 the appellant lodged a claim for judicial review of the refusal. The premises
at Pennyfarthing Place were closed on 10 June 2011. The application for judicial review was
subsequently discontinued on 22 September 2011 following the grant of an SEV licence in respect of
the Oxpens Road premises.

The Oxpens Road premises.

The appellant decided to move the club to a new location at premises in Oxpens Road, Oxford, which

had previously been occupied by a bar called The Coven. On 19 May 2011 he made an application for
an SEV licence for those premises in Oxpens Road which are located about half a mile from the centre
of Oxford.

On 12 July 2011 the Licensing and Registration Sub-Committee of the Council heard the application in
respect of the Oxpens Road premises. The Committee was addressed by Mr. Gouriet QC on behalf of
the appellant and by a number of objectors, including Mr. John Payne, Solicitor, for St. Ebbs Church.
At the meeting Mr. Gouriet amended the application so that the licence, if granted, would permit the
premises to open at 11.00 p.m. rather than 9.00 p.m.

On 18 July 2011 the Sub-Committee published its decision granting to the appellant an SEV licence for
the premises at Oxpens Road for one year (“the 2011 decision™). It is necessary to set out the reasons in
full:

"[The Sub Committee examined all the documents submitted and considered all the representations
made at the hearing. It had particular regard to the written objections concerning the location of the
premises and the Council resolution of 19/04/2010 (the Resolution) concerning generally inappropriate
locations for sexual entertainment venues.

2. The Sub Committee noted that government guidance and case law made clear that moral objections
to sexual entertainment were not relevant to consideration of the Application. With this in mind the Sub
Committee disregarded any passages within the representations received which expressed moral
concerns.

3. The Resolution states that "sexual entertainment venues are not generally appropriate near or in
locations / or areas containing any of the following:

Historic buildings or tourist attractions,

Schools, play areas, nurseries, children's centres or similar premises,
Shopping complexes,

Residential areas,

Places of worship,"

O O O O O

4. The Sub Committee noted that relevant locality is not defined in The Resolution nor in the
applicable legislation or government guidance. Without a full assessment of the entire area The Sub
Committee felt that it had insufficient information to allow it to define the dimensions of an exact area
as the relevant locality, nor to reach a decision on the appropriate number of sex establishments in such
an area.

5. However, for the purposes of deciding the Application the Sub Committee found that the relevant
area in this case is the area near to the proposed premises. It further found that the only buildings
sufficiently near the proposed premises to engage the Resolution, and which could fall within the
categories set out, are the Oxford Ice Rink and Oxford and Cherwell Valley College. Neither fall
squarely within any of the categories but the College is similar to a school and the Ice Rink does attract
many children and tourists.

6. Despite the location of the College and Ice Rink the Sub Committee were satisfied that with the
amended hours of operation at the proposed premises the College would be closed and public skating

11

Page 141



15.

16.

sessions over well before any sexual entertainment began. There was evidence that private skating
sessions took place after 23:00 but the Sub Committee found the risk of these sessions bringing
children or vulnerable people into contact with the Premises was very low.

7. The Sub Committee noted the representations concerning proximity of the proposed premises to
residential and shopping areas but found that whilst the premises are between the residential areas of St
Ebbe's and St Thomas's they could not reasonably be considered to be in or sufficiently near them to
engage The Resolution. Nor are they sufficiently near the Westgate shopping centre.

8. The Sub Committee also considered the representations concerning incompatibility of the proposed
premises with planning policy aspirations for the west end of Oxford City. However, the Sub
Committee had to base their view on the character of the relevant locality and nearby premises at the
time of application and not as it may develop in the future. If granted any licence would in any event
require annual renewal which would take into account the character of the locality at the relevant time.

9. The Sub Committee noted the Applicant had the benefit of a good track record in operating a sexual
entertainment venue (SEV) at a similar Oxford premises and that Thames Valley Police did not object
to the application. It was significant that the Applicant appeared willing and, from his track record, able
to operate premises discreetly, anonymously and with no external indication as to the nature of
entertainment taking place. Given the location of the Ice Rink, the College and coach parking area the
Sub Committee found it particularly important that any SEV in the proposed location have no external
indication of the type of premises or entertainment being carried on.

10. In considering The Resolution the Sub Committee focused on the harm it seeks to address or
objectives it aims to achieve. In the absence of any specific detail in the Resolution on these points the
Sub Committee found that among the primary concerns should be the welfare of children and
prevention of nuisance and crime. With appropriate conditions the Sub Committee felt that the
premises could operate without aggravating these aims.

11. Taking all these factors into account the Sub Committee found that whilst the Resolution was
engaged at a low level in relation to the Ice Rink and College there were good reasons to believe the
premises would not be inappropriate in the proposed location and an exception to the general position
should be made in this case.

12. The Sub Committee found that in order to ensure the proper running of the premises it is necessary
to attach conditions to the license. The Licensing Authorities Standard Conditions for Sexual
Entertainment Venues should apply together with all conditions on the Applicant's existing premises
licence at The Lodge so far as they relate to the carrying on of sexual entertainment, also the additional
conditions offered by the Applicant during the hearing. These conditions should be combined in one
clear schedule avoiding any duplication.

13. The Sub Committee had regard to the Human Rights Act 1998 and European Convention on
Human Rights as well as its duty under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998. However, it found that it had
heard no evidence that any person's human rights would be infringed by granting the application nor
sufficient to convince it that any significant crime and disorder would be caused by the grant.

Decision: The Application as amended is granted subject to the conditions set out on the attached
Schedule."

On 17 November 2011 The Lodge opened as a lap-dancing club in the premises at Oxpens Road.

In July 2012 the appellant applied to the Council to renew the licence. On 24 September 2012 a
differently constituted Licensing and Registration Sub- Committee heard the application for the
renewal of the SEV licence. On this occasion the appellant was represented by Mr. James Rankin of
counsel who submitted that the question whether a licence for such an activity would be inappropriate
having regard to the character of the relevant locality or the use to which the premises were to be put

12

Page 142



17.

18.

19.

had been examined in detail by the Sub- Committee in July 2011 and that there had been no change of
circumstances since. He submitted that, in the light of the Sub-Committee's decision in 2011 that the
grant of the licence would not be inappropriate on these grounds, to say otherwise now would be
perverse.

A dozen objectors were present at the meeting, including a representative of the St. Ebbe's New
Development Residents' Association. The Sub-Committee also had before it a large number of written
objections to the application. A full account of those objections is given by Haddon-Cave J. in his
judgment. For present purposes it is sufficient to refer to the following matters. First, there were
objections on the ground that the renewal of the licence would be inappropriate having regard to the
character of the locality and the use to which the premises were put. These focussed on The Lodge's
proximity to the Ice Rink, the Oxford and Cherwell Valley College, the Oxpens Road Car and Coach
Park and residential accommodation. A member of the City Council, objecting on behalf of some of his
constituents, expressed the matter as follows:

"[T]he granting of such a renewal would frustrate the four licensing objectives adopted by the Council
in line with the national legislative requirements. The provision of a sexual entertainment venue at this
unsuitable location close to the city centre, to housing and to major tourist and leisure facilities, will
jeopardise the prevention of crime and disorder, public safety, and the prevention of nuisance. The
proximity of such an establishment to two distinct quiet residential areas also risks clear and egregious
conflict with all four objectives most critically, the fourth objective to secure the protection of children
from harm because of the nature of sexual entertainment to be provided."

Secondly, the Oxford Feminist Network submitted the results of a survey it had
conducted of female local residents, seeking their views and experiences following
the licensing of the Oxpens Road premises as an SEV. Some 108 responses were said
to have been received. These included allegations of harassment by individuals who
had left the club.

The judge considered that the gravamen of the objections was best summed up in the following passage
from the written objection by the chair of St. Ebbe's New Development Residents' Association:

"The Oxpens location is most inappropriate for entertainment of this sort. It is immediately opposite the
Oxford and Cherwell Valley College, which is open for use by its adolescent pupils until 10.00pm. It
abuts onto the coach park which is used regularly and frequently by school parties by all nationalities.
It is about 100 yards from the Ice Rink which has night time sessions which are much used by student
sporting groups. It would be hard to find a place in Oxford more full of impressionable young people to
be intrigued by advertisement and present in the vicinity during the hours of operation of the club."”

On 24 September 2012 the Sub-Committee published its decision refusing to renew the SEV license for
the premises at Oxpens Road. It is, once again, necessary to set out the decision and reasons in full.

"[T]he Sub Committee examined all the documents submitted and considered all the representations
made at the hearing. The Sub Committee had particular regard to the written objections
concerning the location of the premises and the Council resolution of 19/04/2010 concerning
generally inappropriate locations for sexual entertainment venues.

2. The Resolution of 19/04/2010 states that "sexual entertainment venues are not generally appropriate
near or in locations / or areas containing any of the following:

Historic buildings or tourist attractions,

Schools, play areas, nurseries, children's centres or similar premises,
Shopping complexes,

Residential areas,

Places of worship,"

O O O O O

13

Page 143



20.

3. The Sub Committee found that the relevant locality for the purposes of deciding the application is
the area near to the premises.

4. Taking into account the ground of refusal at paragraph 12 (d) of Schedule 3 of the Act the Sub
Committee found that renewal of the license would be inappropriate having regard to the character of
the relevant locality or use to which premises in the vicinity are put.

The Sub Committee reached this conclusion for the following reasons:

o [1] The premises are near to Oxford Ice Rink, Oxford and Cherwell Valley College and the
Oxpens car and coach park. The Ice Rink is a facility which attracts many children, young
people, families and tourists and the College is similar to a school. The Sub Committee
therefore felt the Resolution of 19/04/2010 on generally inappropriate locations was engaged
in respect of the Ice Rink and College.

o [2] The Oxpens car and coach car park, whilst not an ‘attraction' in itself, nevertheless brings
many tourists, visitors and local residents into the area of the premises at all hours. The
operation of a sexual entertainment venue in the locality was therefore not appropriate.

o [3] The Oxpens road is a busy transport link and pedestrian route for visitors and residents
living in the St Thomas and St Ebbs areas, a sexual entertainment venue was not appropriate
in such a well used location.

o [4] The increasing concentration of student accommodation in the area, including
development of student housing at Luther Court, Mill Street and Park End St, meant an
increased use of the locality by young and possibly vulnerable students as a route to and from
their accommodation.

o [5] Many of the representations received indicated there had been a negative change in the
character of the vicinity brought about by the opening of the premises.

o [6] Many of the representations received indicated that the operation of premises had created
a hostile atmosphere in the locality and a heightened fear of the risk of sexual violence.
Whilst acknowledging there was no evidence of any violent incidents attributable to the
operation of the premises, the Sub Committee gave weight to the representations and felt
the heightened fear reported was at least in part due to the existence of the premises and
the type of entertainment it operated. The Sub Committee were mindful of the Council's
duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to take reasonable steps to prevent
crime and disorder.

o [7] Of particular concern were reports contained in the representation of Louise Livesey
concerning incidents of harassment by users of The Lodge toward a user of the Ice Rink.
Whilst recognising these reports were both anonymous and hearsay and accordingly carried
limited weight the Sub Committee nevertheless took some account of them.

5. The Sub Committee recognised that its findings were a departure from the Council's decision
to grant the license in July 2011 but found that as a differently constituted Sub Committee with
the benefit of evidence concerning the operation of the premises over the last year they were
entitled to reach a different conclusion.

6. The Sub Committee were aware of the human rights considerations as set out in paragraphs 26 and
27 of the Head of Environmental Development's report, but found that the Applicant's right to
protection of his licence was not a right so significant as to override their own calculation of the public
interest.

Decision: The Application is refused on the grounds that a sexual entertainment venue at the Premises
would be inappropriate, having regard to the character of the relevant locality and the use to which
other premises in the vicinity are put.”

The Judicial Review.

In his application for judicial review the appellant sought to challenge the Council's decision of 24
September 2012 on three grounds.

(1) Apparent bias on the part of a member of the Sub-Committee.

14

Page 144



21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

(2) Insufficiency of reasons.

(3) Taking into account irrelevant and/or inaccurate considerations.

The judge dealt with the allegation of apparent bias at the start of the hearing. He dismissed this part of
the application on the ground that the appellant had failed to raise any objection to the composition of
the Sub-Committee prior to or at the meeting on 24 September 2012. (See Locabail (UK) Limited v
Bayfield Properties [2000] QB 451, per Lord Bingham at para 69.) In his reserved judgment the judge
stated (at para 39) that he would in any event have dismissed the apparent bias ground on the merits.
There has been no attempt to challenge this ruling.

On the challenge based on the adequacy of reasons given by the Sub-Committee, the judge considered
that when the reasons were read fairly, as a whole and against the background of the representations
made at the hearing by the parties, the reasons were intelligible, adequate and enabled the informed
reader to understand the principal important controversial issues and why the application for renewal
had been refused when previously a licence had been granted. Furthermore the reasons were "properly
relevant to the ground for refusal”. In this regard he considered that six of the specific matters referred
to by the Sub Committee were new or substantially new matters and that three related to entirely fresh
factors or circumstances, namely the reported effect of the operation of the club on the area in the
previous twelve months. In his judgement, when considered cumulatively, they represented a
reasonable, comprehensive and comprehensible catalogue of reasons explaining objectively a change
of heart from the 2011 decision and a refusal to renew in 2012.

So far as the third ground is concerned, it had been submitted on behalf of the appellant that the Sub-
Committee erred in taking into account an "increasing concentration of student accommodation in the
area" because incomplete developments were not relevant to assessing the present character of the area
and there was insufficient evidence to justify such findings. The judge concluded that the Sub-
Committee was entitled to take into account both the present and future character of the area under
Paragraph 12(3)(d). He considered that prospective licences required a prospective view. The fact that
an area was developing and in a continued state of change was a relevant consideration as to why
renewal might be appropriate. Furthermore he considered that there was ample evidence before it to
justify the conclusion of the Sub Committee.

Ground 1: The learned judge was wrong to hold that the reasoning of the Court
of Appeal in Dunster Properties Ltd v. The First Secretary of State [2007] EWCA
Civ 236 (duty to explain departure from decision of previous planning inspector)
was not applicable to licensing cases.

Ground 2: The judge was wrong to reject the appellant's claim that the licensing
sub-committee refusing him renewal of his licence (granted the previous year
under Schedule 3 to the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982)
had failed to give an adequate and intelligible explanation for departing from the
reasoned decision of the differently constituted sub-committee that granted him
the licence.

Grounds 1 and 2 may conveniently be considered together.

The Schedule 3 regime gives a wide discretion to licensing authorities, in particular in forming
value judgements as to whether the grant or renewal of a licence would be appropriate having
regard to the character of the locality. This is reflected in the provisions of paragraph 27 of Schedule
3 which distinguishes between appeals against refusals on the grounds specified in paragraph 12(3)(a)
and (b) which are subject to appeal to the magistrates' court and the Crown Court, and appeals against
refusals on the grounds specified in paragraph 12(3)(c) and (d) which are subject only to review by the
High Court. As the judge pointed out, this indicates an intention to give local authorities a wide
discretion under sub-paragraphs (c) and (d). Moreover, the fact that the maximum term of an
SEV licence is twelve months indicates that local authorities are to keep these matters under
frequent review.

15

Page 145


http://www.bailii.org/cgi-bin/redirect.cgi?path=/ew/cases/EWCA/Civ/1999/3004.html
http://www.bailii.org/ew/cases/EWCA/Civ/2007/236.html
http://www.bailii.org/ew/cases/EWCA/Civ/2007/236.html

26.

217.

28.

29.

The argument before us centred on the significance of a previous decision in which a differently
constituted Sub-Committee had come to a different conclusion on the question of whether the grant or
renewal of a licence would be appropriate having regard to the character of the locality and the use to
which the premises in the vicinity were put.

In R v Birmingham City Council ex parte Sheptonhurst Limited [1990] 1 All ER 1026 the applicant
sought judicial review of decisions by four local authorities refusing to renew licences for sex shops in
their respective districts under the LG(MP)A 1982, the provisions applicable in the present case. The
main question for consideration was whether the discretion to refuse to renew a licence is different
from the discretion to refuse to grant a licence and, if so, what limitations there are upon the discretion
to renew. The applicant had submitted that the renewable licence could not be refused on ground
3(d)(i) unless there had been some change in the character of the relevant locality since the grant or
renewal of the licence. In two of the cases, Mann LJ, sitting as an additional judge of the Queen's
Bench Division, had rejected this submission:

"It is to be observed that the statute imposes no constraint upon a Local Authority's discretion
when it is considering a renewal. The legislature must be taken to know that a Local Authority is
a body of changing composition and shifting opinion, whose changes and shifts reflect the views
of the local electorate. In my judgement it is not perverse to refuse a renewal where there is no
change in the character of the relevant locality or in the use to which any premises in the locality
are put. What is ""appropriate’ may be the subject of different perceptions by different elected
representatives. In assessing what is ""appropriate™ any particular body of elected
representatives confronted with an application for a renewal should take into account the
previous grant, but in my judgement their obligation is no more than that. In both cases before
me the previous licence was a factor before the decision takers. In both cases the principle
ground of challenge therefore fails."

The Court of Appeal agreed. O'Connor L.J. stated:

"...[Wlhere Parliament, having expressly limited the grounds on which a licence may be refused, has
drawn no distinction between grant and renewal of the licence and provided that a licence shall not last
for more than a year, then it seems to me that to accede to Mr. Tabachnik's submission [that Parliament
cannot have intended that the vagaries of local opinion should be determinative of an existing trader's
rights to continue to trade] would be to introduce a fetter on the discretion of the Local Authority in
cases of renewal which Parliament has not done. However, although the discretion is unfettered, there
is a difference between an application for grant and an application for renewal and that distinction, as
the cases have pointed out, is that when considering an application for renewal the Local Authority has
to give due weight to the fact that a licence was granted in the previous year and indeed for however
many years before that. It is of particular importance that the licensing authority should give due
weight to this fact in this field, for I do not doubt that there is opposition to sex shops on grounds
outside the limits imposed by paragraph 12 of the Schedule. | have come to the conclusion that the
licensing authority were entitled to have a fresh look at the matter... In a case where there has been
no change of circumstances, if the licensing authority refuses to renew on the ground that it
would be inappropriate having regard to the character of the relevant locality, it must give its
reasons for refusal: see paragraph 10(20) of the Schedule. If the reasons given are rational, that is
to say properly relevant to the ground for refusal, then the court cannot interfere. I believe this to
be the true protection for a licence holder applying for renewal against a wayward and irrational
exercise of discretion. The fact that in previous years the licensing authority did not chose to invoke
those reasons for refusing to grant or renew the licence does not make the reasons irrational.”

On behalf of the appellant it is suggested that the judge misinterpreted this passage. The appellant
submits that in the present case the judge concluded that it was sufficient if it could be inferred
objectively why the refusing Sub-Committee came to a different decision. There is no basis for this
criticism. While the judge concluded that there was no reason why the 2012 decision needed to
comment seriatim on the reasons for the 2011 decision, he clearly proceeded on the basis that there was
a need to provide an explanation for the departure. In his view adequate reasons were given.

16

Page 146



30.

3L

32.

33.

34.

Accordingly | can see no distinction between the approach of the judge in the present case and that of
Sales J. in R (KVP ENT Limited) v. South Buckinghamshire District Council [2013] EWHC 926
(Admin).

Another decision to the same effect is that of the Court of Appeal in North Wiltshire DC v. SSE (1992)
P & CR 137 where Mann L.J. emphasised that in such circumstances the decision maker is free to
disagree with the earlier judgment but before doing so he should have regard to the importance of
consistency and give his reasons for departure from the previous decision.

The appellant also relies on Dunster Properties Ltd v. First Secretary of State [2007] EWCA Civ 236.
There, Dunster had sought planning permission for a first floor extension to a residential property in
Chelsea. There were two successive decisions by planning inspectors. The first inspector, Mr. Sargent,
rejected an objection in principle to there being any extension at first floor level but dismissed the
appeal on the basis of the particular designs. Dunster then applied for planning permission on the basis
of different designs. On this occasion, when the matter came on appeal before a different inspector, Mr.
Mead, the inspector rejected the planning authority's objections to the particular design but upheld the
objection in principle. Mr. Mead clearly took an entirely different view on the issue of principle from
that expressed by Mr. Sargent. However the only reference in the second decision to the earlier
decision was this statement:

"1 have no comments on either of those two remarks other than to state that each case is judged on its
own merits and my conclusions on the current scheme are given above."

The Court of Appeal quashed the second decision. It considered that it was for Mr. Mead to exercise
his planning judgement in relation to the application before him. Not only was he not in any sense
bound by the reasoning in the previous decision but it was not even a starting point for his process of
judgement and reasoning. Nevertheless Mr. Sargent's conclusions on the point of principle were a
material consideration which Mr. Mead had to take into account. The Court of Appeal considered that,
although not much may have been called for by way of reasons, those given by Mr. Mead were
inadequate. Lloyd L.J. (at paragraphs 21 — 23) observed that in that case the reader could not tell why
the inspector had disagreed with his predecessor on this issue and that, accordingly, the salutary
safeguard of requiring reasons in order to demonstrate that the decision was based on relevant and
rational grounds had not performed its intended function. In his view it appeared that Mr. Mead had not
faced up to his duty to have regard to the previous decision and had failed to "grasp the intellectual
nettle of the disagreement, which was what was needed if he was to have proper regard to the previous
decision". Either he did not have a proper regard to it, in which case he had failed to fulfil the duty to
do so, or he had done so but had not explained his reasons, in which case he had not discharged the
obligation to give his reasons.

In the present case the judge considered Dunster of limited assistance and sought to distinguish it on
three grounds. First, he considered that Dunster was "a pure planning case" and not a licensing case,
whereas in the present context local authorities were entitled to take a fresh look at the matter and
effectively were entitled to change their mind from one year to the next. Secondly, it was a decision on
its own particular facts, involving a refusal by the second inspector to give reasons for differing from
the previous decision notwithstanding a specific request to do so. Thirdly, Dunster involved a static
matter, namely the aesthetic significance of retaining a gap above a house, whereas the present case
involved consideration of dynamic matters.

To my mind, the principles stated in Dunster are of general application and are not limited to planning
cases. The explanation provided by Lloyd L.J. as to why the reasons provided were inadequate was in
no sense dependent on the planning context; on the contrary it flows from the function of reasons as a
safeguard of sound decision making. Moreover, | do not consider that Dunster turned on its particular
facts or the refusal to give reasons following a request. Accordingly, I consider that while it was open
to the Sub-Committee in the present case to depart from the decision of its predecessor, it was under a
duty to take account of the earlier decision, to grasp the nettle of any disagreement with the earlier
decision and to state its reasons for coming to a different conclusion. That obligation to give reasons
arises at common law but is reinforced in the present case by paragraph 10(2) of Schedule 3. The third
ground of distinction relied on by the judge — that the present case was concerned with dynamic matters
— is better considered in the context of the actual decision.

17

Page 147


http://www.bailii.org/ew/cases/EWCA/Civ/2007/236.html

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

In summary, therefore:

(1) On an application to renew an SEV licence it is not necessary for an objector to
demonstrate that something has changed since the decision granting the licence. Were
the position otherwise, the efficacy of annual reconsideration would be much reduced.

(2) However, the decision maker has to have due regard to the fact that a licence was
previously granted.

(3) If there is no relevant change of circumstances, the decision maker has to give his
reasons for departing from the earlier decision.

Mr. Gouriet placed at the forefront of his oral submissions the 2011 decision which found that the only
buildings sufficiently near the proposed premises to engage the Council's resolution were the Ice Rink
and Oxford and Cherwell College. While neither fell squarely within any of the categories of the
resolution, the Sub-Committee accepted that a College is similar to a school and that the Ice Rink
attracted many children and tourists (paragraphs. 4, 5). However, it was satisfied that the effect of the
amended hours of operation — the application had been amended at the meeting so that the club would
not open until 11.00 pm — would be that the College would be closed and public skating sessions over
well before any sexual entertainment began (paragraph 6). Furthermore, Mr. Gouriet pointed to the
treatment of representations concerning the impact of the club on the character of the locality. Here the
Committee attached considerable weight to the fact that the appellant appeared willing and, from his
track record, able to operate premises discreetly, anonymously and with no external indication as to the
nature of the entertainment taking place (paragraph 9). On this basis, he submitted, the Committee
concluded that while the resolution was engaged at a low level in relation to the Ice Rink and the
College, there were good reasons to believe that the premises would not be inappropriate in the
proposed location and an exception to the general position under the resolution should be made in this
case (paragraph 11).

Turning to the 2012 decision that the renewal of the licence would be inappropriate having regard to
the character of the relevant locality or use to which premises in the locality are put, Mr. Gouriet
submitted that the dominant factors said to support the decision were points 1 -3 in paragraph 4. In
particular, he submitted that point 1 draws attention to the existence of the Ice Rink and the College —
institutions addressed in the 2011 decision — while failing to address at all the solution provided by
opening hours which was accepted by the Committee in 2011. Mr. Gouriet submits that while, in
principle, that conclusion in the 2011 decision might be overcome by other factors, the 2012 decision
fails to identify any such factors. Similarly, he draws attention, as dominant considerations in the
reasoning of the 2012 decision, to points 2 and 3 which relate to the presence in the area of tourists,
visitors and local residents at all hours because of the car and coach park, and the busy pedestrian and
transport link along Oxpens Road. These considerations, the 2012 decision concludes, show that the
operation of a sexual entertainment venue in the locality was not appropriate. In so concluding, Mr.
Gouriet submits, the Committee failed to address the solution accepted in the 2011 decision, namely
the anonymity and discrete character of the premises.

In these circumstances, it is submitted on behalf of the appellant, that the Committee in taking its 2012
decision failed to give due weight to decisive factors in the 2011 decision and failed to grasp the nettle
by explaining its departure from the earlier decision.

To my mind, the answer to this submission is provided by the Committee's statement at paragraph 5 of
the 2012 decision that it recognised that its findings were a departure from the 2011 decision but that it
considered that, as a differently constituted Committee "with the benefit of evidence concerning the
operation of the premises over the last year", they were entitled to reach a different conclusion. When
that passage is read in the light of the preceding discussion of matters relating to the impact of the club
on the nearby area, it is clear that the Committee was persuaded that what had been seen as solutions in
2011 - limitation of opening hours and anonymity of the premises - were insufficient to meet the
perceived mischief.

18

Page 148



40.

41.

42,

43.

44,

Contrary to the submission of Mr. Gouriet, it does not appear that points 1 — 3 are given any primacy in
the decision. They refer in turn to static land use and other land use and provide a description of the
area which is necessary for what follows which relates to changing circumstances of different kinds.
Point 4 finds an increased use of the locality by students as a thoroughfare. Point 5 refers to
representations indicting that there had been a negative change in the character of the vicinity brought
about by the opening of the premises. Point 6 states that many of the representations indicated that the
operation of the premises had created a hostile atmosphere in the locality and heightened fear of the
risk of sexual violence. Point 7 refers to reports of incidents of harassment of members of the public by
users of the club.

Although Mr. Gouriet sought to question the weight and reliability of the evidence on which the
Committee relied in coming to its conclusions in relation to the impact of the club's operation on the
area, there was in fact a considerable body of evidence relating to the impact of the club on the area in
the first year of its operation. The Oxford Feminist Network made written submissions objecting to the
renewal of the licence. This included the results of its survey of local residents to which 108 responses
had been received. There were direct quotations from the responses of four women. The first states
that men coming from the club had jeered and "made horrible comments about my body and way |
dress™ in a manner which made her feel threatened. (I am satisfied that the terms and context of this
quotation make it clear that it does refer to The Lodge and is not a general statement about such clubs.)
A second explains that she has to go past The Lodge every Wednesday as she goes to midnight ice
hockey; she states that she has often felt uncomfortable walking past it and has on two separate
occasions been harassed in the street by individuals who have left the club. The third, who lives in
Oxpens Road, states that she feels threatened when she has to walk or cycle home at night; she feels
isolated when the only other people there are on their way to or from the club. The fourth states that
when walking past The Lodge she has had cars stop and ask if she is a prostitute and has had sexual
expletives shouted at her from other cars. She tries to avoid the area, especially after dark, as she fears
that one day the problem will escalate to something worse than verbal abuse. Doorstep consultations
with other residents had led to reports of men leaving the club shouting sexually explicit epithets whilst
walking down the street, urinating in doorways, ripping drainpipes and other fixtures from their
holdings and, more rarely, climbing fences into gardens whilst drunk, leaving residents feeling unsafe
and being forced to ring the police on more than one occasion. Local businesses reported that their staff
and customers were racially abused by men leaving the club, demanding the use of a payphone to
telephone prostitutes. | accept, as did the Committee, that this evidence is hearsay evidence from
anonymous sources and therefore carries less weight than might otherwise be the case. Nevertheless, |
consider that the Committee was entitled to have regard to this evidence and that it is capable of
sustaining the Committee's conclusions.

On a fair reading of the 2012 decision, it is clear that the Committee concluded on the evidence relating
to the club's operation over the previous year that the limitation of opening times and absence of
external indications as to the nature of the activities taking place had not been sufficient to protect the
character of the area.

I should refer at this point to a further matter concerning points 3 and 4 of paragraph 4 of the 2012
decision. Point 3 draws attention to the fact that Oxpens Road is a busy transport and pedestrian route.
Point 4 states that the increased concentration of student accommodation in the area has given
rise to an increased use of the locality by students as a route to and from accommodation. This
was clearly a matter to which the Committee attached weight. In my view, subject to certain other
objections which are considered subsequently, it was a further new matter to which the Committee was
entitled to have regard and did regard in departing from the 2012 decision.

Both Mr. Gouriet and Mr. Philip Kolvin QC, in his written submissions on behalf of the intervener,
have submitted that before a decision maker may depart from an earlier decision in relation to the same
matter he must address each material consideration in the earlier decision and explain whether and, if
so, why he takes a different view as to its significance. This seems to me to go much too far and to
place an undue burden on the decision maker. | consider that the guidance as to what is required by
way of reasons in a planning context provided by Lord Brown in South Buckinghamshire District
Council v Porter (No. 2) [2004] UKHL 33 (at paragraphs 35-6) applies equally in this context. In the
present case it is sufficient that the 2012 decision makes clear on a fair reading that evidence
concerning the operation of the premises over the preceding twelve months, other changed
circumstances and the features of the matters previously addressed which it considered significant led it
to a different overall conclusion.

19

Page 149


http://www.bailii.org/uk/cases/UKHL/2004/33.html

45,

46.

47.

Finally, in this regard, | should record that, contrary to the submission of Mr. Kolvin QC on behalf of
the intervener, | can see nothing in the statutory scheme for SEV licences, the approach of the Sub-
Committee or in its 2012 decision which conflicts in any way with the Services Directive (2006/123
EC) which is implemented in the United Kingdom by the Provision of Services Regulations (Sl
2009/2999). In particular the nature of the activities licensed is such that there are compelling
justifications for limiting the period of authorisation and for granting to local authorities a wide
discretion on applications to renew.

Ground 3. The judge was wrong to hold that in assessing the "'character of the
relevant locality"* for the purposes of deciding (under paragraph 12(3)(d) of
Schedule 3 to the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982)
whether the renewal of a licence would be appropriate having regard to that
character, a licensing authority was entitled to have regard to proposed future
development; in particular, to applications for planning permission, believed by
the authority to be pending, but not yet lodged at the time of the licensing

hearing.

On behalf of the appellant Mr. Gouriet submits that the Committee in coming to its 2012 decision had
regard to irrelevant considerations namely building developments which had not been completed. The
evidence before the Administrative Court was that the developments of student housing refers to the
following developments:

(1) A development at Luther St. including 82 student study rooms for which planning
permission was granted on 7 November 2012, subject to a legal agreement which at 4
June 2013 had not been completed.

(2) A development at the rear of Mill Street including 55 student study rooms for
which planning permission was granted in February 2012 and which had not been
implemented.

(3) A development at the rear of Park End Street including 44 student study rooms.
This scheme was first submitted to the Council in 2011. Planning permission was
granted on 9 February 2013 and construction began in March 2013.

(4) A development at Pembroke College including 123 student study rooms
construction of which began in 2010 or 2011 and which has been in use since October
2012.

It is only the first three which are referred to in point 4 of paragraph 4 of the 2012
decision.

Mr. Gouriet submits that unless it can be demonstrated that a proposed development will actually be
completed within the time period of a licence, it should not be taken into account. Furthermore, he
submits that if it is shown that a development which would make the grant of a licence inappropriate
will have been completed within a period of twelve months, a Council should grant a licence for a
shorter period. In this regard he draws attention to the following statement in the 2011 decision:

"The Sub Committee also considered the representations concerning incompatibility of the proposed
premises with planning policy aspirations for the west end of Oxford City. However, the Sub
Committee had to base their view on the character of the relevant locality and nearby premises at the
time of application and not as it may develop in the future. If granted any licence would in any event
require annual renewal which would take into account the character of the locality at the relevant time."

20

Page 150



48.

49.

50.

51.

52.

53.

54.

The appellant relies on an observation of Turner J. in R v. Wandsworth LBC, ex parte Darker
Enterprises Ltd. (1999) 1 LGLR 601. There the Council had refused to renew an SEV licence on the
ground that the locality had changed so that the premises were no longer in keeping with the changed
circumstances. The judge observed that on the occasion of the previous renewal it would not have been
open to the Council to have refused the application on this ground because the process of improvement
was, at that time, incomplete.

I have difficulty in accepting that there is room in this context for such a rigid rule limiting
consideration to developments which are complete or which will be completed within the period of the
licence. Under Schedule 3, LG(MP)A 1982, a Council is given a wide discretion in the assessment of
whether the grant or renewal of a licence would be appropriate having regard to the character of the
relevant locality. It seems to me that in making that assessment it should be permitted, at least, to have
regard to an imminent development of which it is aware, even if there can be no certainty that it will be
completed and operational within the period of the licence. In this regard I note that in Sheptonhurst,
in the appeal concerning the decision of Norwich City Council, this court appears to have accepted that
planned or ongoing development was relevant to an assessment of the character of the locality and to
the appropriateness of grant or renewal. (See O'Connor L.J. at pp. 15-16.)

Nevertheless, the ability to take account in this context of forthcoming developments cannot be open-
ended. The fact that SEV licences can be granted for very short periods which may not, in any event,
exceed twelve months has an important bearing on this. Accordingly, | would suggest that it would not
be open to a Council to rely, in refusing to grant an SEV licence, on a Development Plan which
contemplated development say some five years in the future.

However, it is not necessary to decide this issue because | am satisfied that the point being made by the
Committee in point 4 is a very different one. It is not saying that new student accommodation in the
vicinity would per se make the presence of the club inappropriate. (In this regard, | note that the
developments referred to are not in the immediate vicinity of the club.) Rather it is making a point
about the use which is made of Oxpens Road as a pedestrian route to and from student accommodation.
It states that the increasing concentration of student accommodation in the area means an increased use
of the locality by young and possibly vulnerable students as a route to and from their accommodation.
As such it is a development of the point made in point 3 that Oxpens Road is a busy transport link and
pedestrian route for visitors and residents. The references to individual developments may be to
developments still in design or construction, but they are put forward as examples of the general
proposition that student accommodation is increasing. The decision might, instead, have referred to the
development at Pembroke College which was occupied in October 2012, a matter of days after the
decision.

For these reasons | do not consider that the Committee took account of an irrelevant consideration in
referring to the increasing use of Oxpens Road as a route to and from student accommodation.

Ground 4. The learned judge did not address the appellant's complaint that he
had been denied the opportunity at the licensing hearing to respond to the
alleged "future development’, because the matter was not raised then, and
appeared for the first time in the authority's written decision of 18 September
2012."

Mr. Gouriet submits that the appellant was given no advance notice of the point relating to new student
accommodation in the area, no reference having been made to the matter until it appeared in the written
decision of 24 September 2012. Accordingly, he submits that Mr. James Rankin, who represented the
appellant at the meeting, was disadvantaged. Had proper notice of this point been given, Mr. Gouriet
suggests, it would have been possible to make enquiries as to the likely date of completion of the
projects referred to and to demonstrate that the three referred to in the decision lay some way in the
future. Moreover, it is submitted that had the appellant and his advisers been aware that these matters
were considered significant, it would have been possible to seek a licence for a shorter period than
twelve months.

This point, which is really a point on natural justice, does not appear to be addressed by the judge.

21

Page 151



55.

56.

57.

58.

59.

For reasons set out earlier in this judgment, | consider that the point being made in the decision is not
that new student accommodation per se makes the grant of a licence inappropriate. Rather, the point
being made goes to the use of Oxpens Road as a pedestrian route to and from student accommaodation.
The use of Oxpens Road as a busy transport link and pedestrian route was not a new point and cannot
have taken Mr. Rankin by surprise. It was clearly in issue at the meeting of the Committee. Thus, for
example, the report by the Oxford Feminist Group includes a number of references to the use of
Oxpens Road by members of the public who have to pass the club. Indeed the point is made that these
are in very high numbers because of the proximity of the club to major transport hubs.

Notwithstanding the fact that this was a live issue of which the appellant had notice prior to the
meeting, Mr. Rankin's address to the meeting does not appear to have dealt with the point at all. This, |
would suggest, is entirely understandable. His case was that the restriction of opening hours and
advertising had addressed any problem that might otherwise arise from the presence of the club in this
area. The extent of pedestrian use of Oxpens Road was irrelevant to that submission. In these
circumstances, it is unrealistic to suggest that had he been provided with this information about student
accommodation in advance he would have addressed it or that the appellant has been prejudiced in any
way as a result.

Conclusion.

I would dismiss the appeal.

LORD JUSTICE LONGMORE:

| agree.

THE MASTER OF THE ROLLS:

| also agree.

22

Page 152



LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

Information in this table is to be kept strictly confidential

Full name of objector:

Full postal address of
objector:

Contact telephone number:

Email Address if
appropriate:

Detail of application

Name of applicant: Reedbed Ltd, Central Chambers
(Reference: 20/03326/SEV)

Address of premises: 9 - 11 St Stephens Street, Bristol, BS1 1EE

Application date: 25 August 2020

Date by which objections must be received: | 22 September 2020

Please enter the detail of your objection below. Please note however that objections
based on moral grounds cannot be accepted. Objections may be continued overleaf or
on separate sheets of paper.

| strongly object to the granting of this licence on grounds of geographical location and proximity to
locations where children and families will be passing. It is not compatible with the character of the city
centre to have a sexual entertainment venue - where access to women's bodies is exchanged for
money - in the heart of a city which prides itself on adhering to the Sustainable Development Goals
and offering a safe and high quality night time economy.

| would further point out that granting a licence for this activity would appear to be incompatible with
the city council's obligation to act in accordance with the Public Sector Equality Duty in that it
undermines equality between men and women.

| ask the committee to refuse this licence and | await the long overdue review of the SEV policy. It is
time for a nil cap on SEVs in Bristol.

Page 153




Continued from page 1:

Page 154




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS ) ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

Information in this table is to be kept strictly confidential

Full name of objector:

Full postal address of
objector:

Contact telephone number:

Email Address if
appropriate:

Detail of application

Name of applicant: Reedbed Ltd, Central Chambers
(Reference: 20/03326/SEV)

Address of premises: 9 - 11 St Stephens Street, Bristol, BS1 1EE

Application date: 25 August 2020

Date by which objections must be received: | 22 September 2020

Please enter the detail of your objection below. Please note however that objections
based on moral grounds cannot be accepted. Objections may be continued overleaf or
on separate sheets of paper.

| am writing to object to the above application for a sex entertainment venue (SEV)
licence for adult entertainment for the above premises on the basis of inappropriate
location and because of the impact of the club on women and children.

Please prioritise your duties and obligations under Equality law and make your
decision on that basis, which is the right that Parliament gave you under the relevant
legislation. In Bristol we put equality first.

Location
The Council’s policy states that it will consider whether premises in the vicinity are
put to any of the following uses (among others):

residential, in particular homes occupied by families

leisure

educational establishments

churches and other places of worship

family friendly facilities

Page 155




‘Continued from page 1:

- women’s refuges
community centres
parks and other open spaces
public transport

Each year is an opportunity to look with “fresh eyes” at whether a licence should be
granted. The law and case law are clear on this. The Licensing Committee is
exercising its duties entirely properly when it takes a critical look at the grounds and
makes a decision that is rational and based on its own criteria, that the locality is
inappropriate. Policy sets a maximum permitted number, not an “expected number”.

In considering the application, please note that the premises is in fact in the locality
where all of these uses are on the doorstep.

It is situated in a busy area of the city which women and children have to pass by or
make significant efforts to avoid. The city belongs to women just as much as it does
to men and women have told the Council that they do not feel safe, equal or valued
when they see and have to pass by these venues.

Immediate Impact on women and children

Women know that the clientele of these venues are disproportionately sexist men,
who are more likely to verbally harass them. They also know that stag parties often
made up of large groups of men likely to be drinking heavily are a key customer
base. Women self-select away from areas where the sex trade including SEVs have
a presence.

Club security may enforce the code of conduct to protect the performers inside the
club but does not protect the public outside the club, and in effect puts the problem it
has created outside, for the general public to deal with.

Incompatibility with equality aims

Granting such a licence is incompatible with Bristol’s commitment in all its city
statements and policies to prioritise equality - which means that paying ‘due regard’
to its obligations under the Public Sector Equality Duty should be the especially
important for councillors. Granting a licence is also incompatible with the European
charter for equality of men and women in local life which Bristol has signed. It is also
incompatible with Bristol’s “White Ribbon City” status which requires it to work
towards having no SEVs in the city.

In addition, Bristol City Council was awarded White Ribbon status in 2013 which
includes the commitment to having no sex entertainment venues in the city. This is
because White Ribbon recognises that the presence of SEVs results in negative
attitudes towards women and girls. It has been six years since Bristol City Council
signed this commitment and it is no closer to working towards having no SEVs in the
city. The City Council needs to actively demonstrate its commitment by fulfilling this
part of the requirement. White Ribbon UK have confirmed that Bristol is in breach of

Page 156




its undertakings by continuing to grant SEV licences.

Page 157




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

Information in this table is to be kept strictly confidential

Full name of objector:

Full postal address of
objector:

Contact telephone number:

Email Address if
appropriate:

Detail of application

Name of applicant: Reedbed Ltd, Central Chambers
(Reference: 20/03326/SEV)

Address of premises: 9 - 11 St Stephens Street, Bristol, BS1 1EE

Application date: 25 August 2020

Date by which objections must be received: | 22 September 2020

Please enter the detail of your objection below. Please note however that objections
based on moral grounds cannot be accepted. Objections may be continued overleaf or
on separate sheets of paper.

AS XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX | am objecting to this application.
The grounds for the objection are prevention of violence against women through the
normalisation of sexual objectification, and action against entitlement, which need to be
interpreted through the licensing objective ‘prevention of crime and disorder’ and in view of
the obligation of the council to comply with the Public Sector Equality Duty in all its work.

The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 in Schedule 3, paragraph 12
outlines the grounds on which a licence may be refused. We are submitting this objection
pursuant to Schedule 3, paragraph 12(3)(d), by maintaining that the renewal of the licence
would be inappropriate, having regard to:

i The character of the relevant locality; and
ii. The use to which any premises in the vicinity are put.

Your policy states that you will consider whether a particular application is appropriate,
taking into account among other factors:

Page 158




The proximity to places where the public congregate for purposes other than use of the
premises, such as bus stops and taxi ranks

The nature and style of the relevant entertainment that is proposed
The nature of the clientele it is likely to attract and their number
The risk of nuisance to others engaged in legitimate activity

And whether premises in the vicinity are put to any of the following uses:
Residential
Leisure
Educational establishments.

We submit that the premises are too close to all the transport hubs that are found in the
area frequented by xxx students and staff, too close to new residential accommodation
(including University accommodation) in the city centre and too close to our University
establishments in the city centre. Further we are of the view that the presence of this
sexual entertainment venue in Bristol City Centre does not enable the City Council to meet
its obligations under the Public Sector Equality Duty as introduced by the Equality Act 2010,
and impedes our own ability to do so as well.

It is our view that there should be no spaces in the city centre which create an intimidating,
hostile, offensive or degrading environment for any of our students or staff and we find that
there are students and staff who are affected in this way by the presence of this venue.
Further, this impact is gendered: it is students and staff who share the protected
characteristic of being female who are affected disproportionately in this way.

In 2016 Universities UK, the representative body for university leaders in the UK, published
the “Changing the Culture” report which examined violence against women, harassment and
hate crime affecting university students. The investigation into this matter was at the
request of the Minister for Universities and the report was considered by the Women and
Equalities Select Committee in Parliament, which has repeatedly cautioned universities that
sexual harassment “and other violence against women is blighting women’s experiences of
university”. The UUK report stated that universities have a duty to ensure that all students
are able to “enjoy a safe and positive experience at university” and that the potential impact
of any sexual violence on a student is so serious in nature that universities must be equipped
to respond effectively and also to engage in prevention initiatives. A survey carried out by
the End Violence Against Women Coalition in 2016 found that 85 per cent of women aged
18-24 reported that they had experienced unwanted sexual attention in public places and
45% had experienced unwanted sexual touching. The role of universities in tackling these
issues is therefore extremely important.

Since the release of this report, xxxxxxxxxxx has responded proactively to the
recommendations and made significant progress in meeting the requirements set out in that
and subsequent reports. A clear focus of our work is prevention activities and our experts in
understanding sexism and sexual violence lead on this work. The prevention of gender-
based violence against our female students rests on, and cannot be achieved without,

Page 159




fostering positive attitudes among our male students:
against the sexual objectification of women and its normalisation; and

against any sense of entitlement to foist unwanted sexual attention —and violence —
upon women.

It is our position that the continued licensing of a sexual entertainment venue in Bristol City
Centre normalises sexist and misogynistic behaviour. Attitudes and behaviours that in any
other workplace or public environment would be considered to be sexual harassment and
discrimination, are legitimised in sexual entertainment venues. It is naive to believe that
these attitudes and behaviours are not carried beyond the venue into society, and therefore
we assert that the presence of this sexual entertainment venue in Bristol City Centre does
not eliminate discrimination, harassment and violence, it does not advance equality of
opportunity, and it does not foster good relations.

We are committed to cultivating a tolerant, respectful environment for xxx staff and
students, within which violence, harassment and hate crime of any kind has no place. We
have an excellent working relationship with Bristol City Council and have achieved so much
for the regeneration of the city centre together.

Subsequent to the letter we submitted last year, we ask that you take this further objection
into account and that you do not renew this licence.

Page 160




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS ) ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

Information in this table is to be kept strictly confidential

Full name of objector:

Full postal address of
objector:

Contact telephone number:

Email Address if
appropriate:

Detail of application

Name of applicant: Reedbed Ltd, Central Chambers
(Reference: 20/03326/SEV)

Address of premises: 9 - 11 St Stephens Street, Bristol, BS1 1EE

Application date: 25 August 2020

Date by which objections must be received: | 22 September 2020

Please enter the detail of your objection below. Please note however that objections
based on moral grounds cannot be accepted. Objections may be continued overleaf or
on separate sheets of paper.

| believe the application should be refused based upon the Councils obligations under equality
legislation to promote equality and eliminate harassment.

There is substantial evidence that the presence of a nearby lap dancing clubs leads to attitudes which
condone the commodification of women and directly to attitudes which are incompatible with equality

This evidence is widely available , and has been made available to members.

Page 161




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS ) ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

Information in this table is to be kept strictly confidential

Full name of objector:

Full postal address of
objector:

Contact telephone number:

Email Address if
appropriate:

Detail of application

Name of applicant: Reedbed Ltd, Central Chambers
(Reference: 20/03326/SEV)

Address of premises: 9 - 11 St Stephens Street, Bristol, BS1 1EE

Application date: 25 August 2020

Date by which objections must be received: | 22 September 2020

Please enter the detail of your objection below. Please note however that objections
based on moral grounds cannot be accepted. Objections may be continued overleaf or
on separate sheets of paper.

We are opposed to the granting of a license for the SEV for several reasons:
1) Location - linked to Discretionary grounds for refusal C & D

e Central Chambers is located in proximity to premises of sensitive use. It is in
the same street as St Stephen's Church where there are regular services,
concerts and many other activities at all times of the day and evening. These
include hosting groups of school children visiting the church.

e The church premises also contain a public café and therefore customers
including families with children will often walk past Central Chambers on their
way to and from the cafe.

e This city centre locality is a leisure hub for tourists and residents alike with the
varied restaurants, bars and shops in adjacent Corn Street and Colston
Avenue. Colston Hall and The Hippodrome are also within walking distance.
The Harbourside hub filled with bars, restaurants etc is also within walking
distance. We would argue that there is a plethora of positive venues on offer
in our vibrant city centre and that it would be just as valuable to the city
economy without this SEV. Many busses stop nearby and a taxi rank is at the

Page 162




end of the street.

¢ The Council has begun to look at enhancing the entrances to the old city for
tourists -: well, St Stephen’s Street is exactly one of those entrances

¢ The Backpackers hostel in St Stephens Street has a transient clientele many
of whom are young people and many of whom are vulnerable. Some of the
public reviews speak of the late-night noise in the street and the fact that
strangers can enter the hostel.

o Recent development has seen several large student accommodation
buildings being built and adapted; bringing over 3,000 students into this
vicinity. It is not conducive to the positive reputation of Bristol Universities to
have a SEV in the vicinity of these buildings. We are very concerned at the
possibility of young students unfamiliar with city life and looking for a part time
job to support their studies could even be led to apply for a job in this SEV
because of it being so close to their accommodation and where they could
possibly earn more than many other more suitable, safe jobs.

e Although the BCC 2011 decision determined there should be no more than 2
SEVs in the central city area, we note that there has at one point been 3. The
2012 Provisions however make clear that decisions will not be based on map
boundaries. Central Chambers is very close to Urban Tiger so we would
question whether 2 SEVs are acceptable in this central entertainment and
tourist area.

e The BristolLive site on 4/2/19 states that “The maijority of residents said
neither sex shops nor lap-dancing clubs were appropriate in residential
areas or deprived areas, or near schools, parks and play areas, women’s
refuge centres, youth facilities, cinemas, theatres, places of worship,
libraries and museumes. ...... While the majority said strip clubs were
inappropriate near sports centres or historic buildings, ....... ” (my
emphasis). Central Chambers certainly is in a residential area now being
surrounded by student accommodation. xxxxx as a place of worship
could not be closer. Yet this key ground for refusal seems to be
repeatedly ignored. What is the explanation for this?

We bring to the attention of the licensing committee and the licensing officers the
objection provided by Mr Philip Kolvin to the opening of a new SEV opposite Selfridges
in London earlier this month. Selfridges won their case.

"This proposal for a lap dancing club is entirely inimical to the character of this area.
It has no place here... This is not [an application] for a corner store.

"It's a 6am sexual entertainment venue licence and nightclub in a highly sensitive
location. It has attracted a large amount of objections.”
Philip Kolvin, September 2020

We suggest that it is even more inimical to have a lap dancing club near to a church than to
a department store. If the committee decides to grant the license renewal, we would like to
understand why Mr Kolvin and the licensing committee would consider the proximity of a lap
dancing club is more deleterious to a department store than to a community church and a
tourist area.

Page 163




2) Equalities Issues

All SEVs by their nature promote the inequality of women. The applicant
produces women who speak of being happy in the work and freely choosing
to do this. Of course that is their right but they cannot possibly represent all
the workers; many of whom will have no voice or will be afraid to use a voice
to speak of their complete unequal situation of work. How can it be right to
have to pay a house fee before even earning anything, this is catch up,
survival rate on a par with all zero hours contracts.

You will no doubt be aware of the huge concern in recent years about student
suicides. The Council should be considering everything about the
environment that might contribute to positive mental health and to the reality
that a SEV might mitigate against positive mental health and indeed
contribute negatively with its central premise being the objectification of
women. By their activities they normalise the objectification of women.

This normalisation can have repercussions on the behaviour of customers
when in their other relationships with women which could lead to the start or
escalation of domestic abuse in some cases.

For the women it will certainly affect their self-image and for some they may
subconsciously see themselves as available to men in any situation

It could place women employees in a potentially dangerous situation such as
being followed, harassed and stalked.

Bristol City Council's Equality Policy states that the council will 'help to make
equality a reality for all'. It also states: 'Employees are responsible for
ensuring their work creates equality of opportunity as defined in relevant
legislation, codes of practice and policies or strategies.' and that it will 'Use its
standing in the city to help shape public opinion to promote equality within
Bristol.” Yet year after year this seems to have no real impact on the decision
making of counsellors who appear reticent to use the powers they have been
elected to use. What is it that sways them? There are currently far more
important ways to sustain the economy under pressure. The fact that the
nightclubs have been unable to operate during the pandemic provides an
excellent moment in which to stop their license completely.

Page 164




Continued from page 1:

e Modern Slavery
o Some of the women employed may have uncertain legal status in the UK which means the
employer could manipulate and exploit them emotionally, physically, sexually and financially.
¢ In a worst-case scenario; they could be made to work for little or no pay or have a passport
taken from them.
e Some may have been trafficked into the UK precisely in order to make them work in the sex
industry against their will. BCC has an obligation to ensure Human Rights are complied with.
How can a very brief inspection at an early hour of opening once a year provide any reliable
evidence that human rights are being met.
e Bristol City Council's Equality Policy states it will join communities in "Tackling equalities
issues, ensuring those from different backgrounds have similar life opportunities and ending
discrimination are fundamental to creating cohesive communities. All types of harassment,
victimisation and bullying in the workplace and in the community are unacceptable. The council
recognises that harassment can take many forms and can be subtle and insidious in nature. This
policy covers identifying, reporting and supporting victims’. We would question what opportunity
there is for workers in the SEVs to be made aware of and to access the support apparently
offered here.
¢ We wonder what possible effect a one-off monitoring visit can have on ensuring

that none of the workers are in fact trafficked and caught up in this industry

without any access to support regarding their rights.
Hours of operating:
We completely object to the increased hours of the SEV — it will be impossible for the afternoon
‘entertainment’ to be monitored and it is becoming clear that there will little difference of what is
on offer simply a different use of words. This is totally unacceptable for all of the reasons already
stated and it increases the danger to women in all the aspects of equality and opportunity
explained above.

o Finally, we argue that the existence of any SEV impacts negatively on the city
ethos and reputation and indeed the mayor Marvin Rees in his campaign spoke
of the need to eliminate these. Come on White City Bristol — live up to your claims
and move forward into the full acceptance of the equality principles we claim to
stand with. Let’s put energy into more work creation programmes that provide for
flexible working for women but give them a definite contract and rights.

Page 165




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS ) ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

Information in this table is to be kept strictly confidential

Full name of objector:

Full postal address of
objector:

Contact telephone
number:

Email Address if
appropriate:

Detail of application

Name of applicant: Reedbed Ltd, Central Chambers
(Reference: 20/03326/SEV)

Address of premises: 9 - 11 St Stephens Street, Bristol, BS1 1EE
Application date: 25 August 2020

Date by which objections must be 22 September 2020

received:

Please enter the detail of your objection below.

XXXXXXXXXXXX is @ Bristol-based charity that is a powerful voice for making women’s equality
in Bristol a reality. xxxxx is a mandated Voice and Influence organisation to the City Council.
We have 2000+ members. Members are asked to agree to the policies and priorities set out
in our Womanifesto when they join. One of our six main priorities, as part of our Bristol Zero
Tolerance project, is to campaign and lobby to improve policy and services for women and
girls, and to end violence against women and girls in Bristol.

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX Objects to the renewal of the SEV licence to the above applicant on a
number of grounds including the location of the applicant’s premises, the Council’s duties
under Equalities Law and its obligations under Crime and Disorder legislation.

We do not wish this objection to be summarised as we would prefer the Committee to read
a copy of it in its entirety.

Page 1 of 7 Page 166




Why we ask you to refuse the application

Safety and Equality of women in Bristol

1. As a signatory of the European Charter for Equality of Women and Men in Local Life,
Bristol City Council must recognise that “gender-based violence arises from the idea, on the
part of the perpetrator, of the superiority of one sex over the other in... an unequal
relationship of power” (Article 22.2). SEVs reflect and contribute to a popular culture in
which women’s bodies are objectified and seen as available for men’s use, while the
opposite is not the case. This culture perpetuates the notion of “the superiority of one sex
over the other” as identified in the Charter'. The Council’s duty under the Equality Act 2010
and the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) includes the need to have due regard to the need
to eliminate discrimination and harassment of women and advance equality of opportunity
for women, as well as foster good relations between men and women. The claims made by
Sexual Entertainment Venues in Bristol to be champions of equality are not only
extraordinary but irrelevant to SEV applications with regard to the PSED. It is the local
authority which must meet the requirements of the Public Sector Equality Duty.

2. We assert, based on our expertise, that the presence and operation of this club promotes
discrimination against women and harassment of women, stands in the way of the
advancement of equal opportunities for women, and fosters bad relations between men
and women. All of these effects are the very opposite of what Bristol City Council is
required to aim for under our equality laws. Central Chambers promotes harmful attitudes
towards women as a group who share the legally protected characteristic of the female sex.
Research demonstrates that the sexual objectification of women, which is encouraged and
practised within SEVs in the context of our sexist society, acts to reinforce gender inequality
and the attitudes that support and encourage violence against women, which is in itself a
cause and consequence of gender inequality. Gender inequality and violence against women

»

are “two sides of the same coin”.

3. Harmful social norms and practices that permit some women to make a living while
disadvantaging women as a group remain harmful. Our reasons for requesting a refusal of
this licence are based on the impact upon all women and girls in Bristol who we represent,
and who number over 230,000i". By the club’s own account, consideration of the work
created for the women who currently perform in Central Chambers and who may, by their
representations, be said to benefit (in the short term) cannot by any measure compare with
the negative impact upon all women and girls. Nevertheless we want to make it clear that
we do not judge or otherwise seek to patronise or speak for the women who are self-
employed workers in SEVs. We want to see all women employed in good jobs that suit their
circumstances. Those jobs should not be (and are not) confined to the sex trade. For as long
as SEVs were allowed to operate in Bristol we have fought for conditions that would make
the women working there as safe as possible. But there is no evidence that these conditions
work and there is no evidence at all that the trade goes ‘underground’ when licences are
refused.

4. It is not “sex” that is the problem. It is the fact that in our society men as a class are

Page 2 of 7 Page 167




dominant and more powerful than women, and women’s sexuality is seen as existing for,
and being in the service of, men’s desires to do what they want when they want. This self-
proclaimed “Gentlemen’s Club” quite deliberately reinforces this message and perpetuates
the financial and social inequality of women compared to men in our society. It is entirely
irrelevant whether there are also men stripping or showing off their bodies to customers in
the premises: research shows us that it is only the sexual objectification of women that is
related to gender inequality and to violence against women. The context is our unequal
society.

5. The continued licensing of SEVs, in this case specifically Central Chambers, by Bristol City
Council means that the Council fails to meet obligations under the Charter and fails to
engage with the purpose of our national equalities legislation. This diminishes the status of
Bristol as a modern European City where both women and men should be able to lead
fulfilled lives in a safe and fair society. Bristol as a city is committed to the eradication of
violence and abuse of women and girls. In 2012 the city was awarded White Ribbon City
status which requires cities to work towards a status of zero SEVs. Bristol City Council is
supportive of the Bristol Women’s Commission’s Bristol Zero Tolerance initiative and both
previous and current Mayors have also pledged their support. The Bristol Zero Tolerance
initiative seeks to address all forms of gender-based violence, abuse, harassment and
exploitation in the city and achieving a nil cap policy on SEVs is a part of this work. There are
other current approaches to addressing violence and abuse in the city including public
health campaigns, school campaigns and university campaigns all dedicated to changing
social norms around gender inequality, attitudes to women and the acceptability of violence
towards women. The Bristol Against Violence and Abuse Strategy 2015-2020 led by the
Council includes an objective to reduce the opportunities for sexual exploitation and
negative perceptions of women connected to SEVs." These projects are supported by or run
by Bristol City Council. xxxxxxxxxxxx believes that the continued licensing of SEVs directly
undermines this work and is not compatible with the wider outcomes and aims that the city
hopes to achieve in terms of gender equality and gender-based violence. We have
numerous local policies and strategies which highlight the importance of equality, safety and
addressing gender-based violence, however, there are no local policies which see the
presence of SEVs in the city as positive.

6. We know from research that the sexual objectification of women is a feature of the link
between men’s alcohol use and their perpetration of sexual violence. This research was
published in 2014, long after parliament had clamped down on SEVs and passed the
responsibility for whether they should be present in our cities to local councils. SEVs trade
in sexual objectification of women in an environment where alcohol is free-flowing. It is
obvious to us as experts in women’s inequality that the presence of this SEV in Bristol clearly
impacts negatively on the safety as well as the hopes for equality of women and girls. A local
authority which grants the licensing of SEVs contributes to the normalisation of exploitation
and gender-based violence which initiatives such as Bristol Zero Tolerance are trying to
combat.

7. Central Chambers is in the central Cumulative Impact Zone. Bristol’s Statement of
Licensing Policy states that this area “has a significant concentration of alcohol led late night
venues, witnesses a high number of assaults and other related crime and disorder including
public nuisance and risk to public safety”. In 2017 Avon and Somerset Police submitted a

Page 3 of 7 Page 168




report that detailed a number of reports of crime and disorder directly related to the
premises and also reported 40 sexual offences within the area in a 12-month period. How
many sexual crimes are too many? That year, representatives for the club tried to whittle
this number down and tried to downplay our police’s view, but in previous years before the
police had begun to object, you were asked to pay attention to the police’s view as “your
experts on crime and disorder”. Whether you believe that these sexual offences are directly
related to the presence of the club, or that the club happens coincidentally to be situated in
a hotspot for violent and sexual crimes against women, it is clear that this is an
inappropriate location for a SEV.

8. Bristol women themselves express concern over the levels of harassment that are linked
with having an SEV in a central location in Bristol. Our Womanifesto makes clear our position
on SEVs. Similar views can be heard and read in diverse contexts expressed by the diverse
women of Bristol. As one woman put it during a conversation online: “I've had to sit and
listen to male colleagues discussing the body parts of the strippers they saw at the weekend.
| don’t choose to go to them but they’ve impacted on my life in several ways. Friends have
been harassed by men waiting outside the clubs - things like “get your tits out and save us a
fiver” have been shouted out. No matter what controls they put inside the club, they can’t
control what goes on outside.""

9. A number of local authorities in the UK have stopped granting licenses to SEVs. They have
implemented their policy approaches to achieving women’s equality, which includes
acknowledging and acting on the links between SEVs and gender-based violence and
inequality.

10. We find it shocking that every year you hear what we think are irrelevant arguments
such as, there is no “tacky lighting” or “seedy facades”, there are no “dancers skulking
around the entrance chatting away"Vi, which have nothing to do with why we ask you to
refuse this application. Itis also in our view irrelevant to hear lists of people who have not
objected, or to hear times when the venue is not open. What we are concerned with is the
very fact of the presence of the venue in our historic city centre, and the impact of the
activities that go on inside its doors. We are concerned with gender equality. We don’t
believe that you think a list of things that could be worse should be weighed up as though
they are more important or relevant than our city’s progress towards equality between our
women and men, girls and boys.

The sub-committee has a clearly-granted ability or prerogative to make this decision

11. The sub-committee are the representatives of the people, and guidance from the Home
Office 2010 states that the purpose of the legislation is “to give local people a greater say
over the number and location of lap dancing clubs [SEVs] in their area”. The possibility of a
judicial challenge from establishments may be a concern for local authorities but there is no
appeal on the grounds of locality and there is no case law that suggests action that
prioritises gender equality made in good faith and based on the ever-developing advice of
expert local women’s organisations could be considered anything other than entirely
appropriate.

Page 4 of 7 Page 169




12. Case law also notes that licensing authorities can have a ‘fresh look’ at applications for
renewal of an SEV license and may refuse to renew a licence even if there is no change in
circumstances at all. Refusal to renew is also not a breach of human rights. The written
decision in the Court of Appeal agreed by three of the most eminent judges in the land (Lord
The Master of the Rolls, Lord Justice Longmore and Lord Justice Lloyd Jones) in the case of R
(Thompson) v Oxford City Council v Spearmint Rhino"" said: “In a case where there has been
no change of circumstances, if the licensing authority refuses to renew on the ground that it
would be inappropriate having regard to the character of the relevant locality, it must give
its reasons for refusal... If the reasons given are rational, that is to say properly relevant to
the ground for refusal, then the court cannot interfere. | believe this to be the true
protection for a licence holder applying for renewal against a wayward and irrational
exercise of discretion. The fact that in previous years the licensing authority did not choose
to invoke those reasons for refusing to grant or renew the licence does not make the
reasons irrational.” The judges’ summary in the case of Thompson was:

“(1) On an application to renew an SEV licence it is not necessary for an objector to
demonstrate that something has changed since the decision granting the licence. Were the
position otherwise, the efficacy of annual reconsideration would be much reduced.

(2) However, the decision maker has to have due regard to the fact that a licence was
previously granted.

(3) If there is no relevant change of circumstances, the decision maker has to give his
reasons for departing from the earlier decision.”

While case law states one should “have regard to the importance of consistency” it also
makes clear that “the decision maker is free to disagree with the earlier judgment”. And
while having regard to the importance of consistency is an obligation, having “due regard”
to national, international and local obligations to promote gender equality and confront
inequality is a very pressing obligation.

13. In practice, the sub-committee considering this application for renewal will be differently
constituted to the first sub-committee that granted the application when the new legislation
came into force a number of years ago. Meanwhile, further evidence has emerged
confirming the links between sexual objectification, violence and inequality. With every new
residential development and every new policy that puts equality at the heart of what Bristol
strives for, the case for refusal has grown stronger and case law sees that a different
decision can be made based on such “consideration of dynamic matters”.

Unsuitability of premises and location

14. The prime city centre location of Central Chambers is a constant reminder to women and
men, girls and boys, of Bristol’s tolerance of sexism and inequality in the city. The proximity
to bus stops, residences and public buildings, such as churches, as well as public perception
has not to date been taken appropriately into consideration with the location of Central
Chambers in Bristol City Centre. It’s very clear from the City Council’s own policy that the
location is unsuitable given the grounds that sub-committees are directed to take into
account when deciding whether to allow an SEV to operate.

Page 5 of 7 Page 170




We draw the licensing committee’s attention to the case put forward by Philip Kolvin when
acting for Selfridges in September 2020 when it objected to the licence application for a lap
dancing club that had applied to open near to the entrance of the store:

"This proposal for a lap dancing club is entirely inimical to the character of this area. It has
no place here... This is not [an application] for a corner store.

"It's a 6am sexual entertainment venue licence and nightclub in a highly sensitive

location.”

Arguably, the location of Urban Tiger in Bristol is more sensitive than the location of the lap
dancing club applying for a licence opposite a department store.

15. The Council have received various objections in the past to the renewal of SEV licenses
including details of sexual harassment that some women have experienced in the vicinity of
SEVs and specifically that of Central Chambers. Women also report feeling unsafe,
unwelcome and intimidated when near these establishments. As Philip Kolvin QC notes, “the
fears of women using the vicinity of premises may be reflected in decisions as to the
location of such facilities... These concerns are directly reflected in the Royal Town Planning
Institute’s Gender and Spatial Planning Good Practice Note, which states: ‘...ensure that the
views of women are considered. Evidence shows that in certain locations, lap-dancing and
exotic dancing clubs make women feel threatened or uncomfortable.”""

16. Residential Character: The premises are also close to residential homes, inhabited by
families as well as by impressionable young people and by women living alone.

17. Character of the locality including leisure and family friendly facilities and churches:
People visiting Baldwin Street, St Nicholas Market, and other shops and businesses may
have to pass Central Chambers. The premises are not “discreetly located” but are close to
family-friendly restaurants, shops, cafes and on a newly updated public transport route that
are accessed by a huge proportion of people including children. The historic area is also a
“first impression” for many visiting the city. Based on these venues, the street is a highly
inappropriate location for a venue that perpetuates inequality.

18. Further, Bristol women have expressed concern over the levels of harassment that are

linked with having an SEV in a central location in Bristol and they have made it clear that
they avoid the area.

On all these grounds we object to this application.

Page 6 of 7 Page 171




" Bristol Women’s Commission, Sexual Entertainment Venue Policy Statement, Licensing
Special Purposes Sub Committee, 6" November 2014

i https://www.unwomen.org/en/news/stories/2017/10/speech-ed-phumzile-five-days-of-
violence-prevention-conference

1]
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/documents/20182/33904/Population+of+Bristol+August+2019.
pdf/96d16bad-49f6-c535-ba7d-a11f24b8d3b3

v https://www.bava.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/Bristol-Against-Violence-and-Abuse-
Strategy-2015-2020.pdf

¥ Taken from Mumsnet Bristol, during a discussion over SEVs in Central Bristol.

' These are direct guotes from last year’s hearing.

¥ [2014] EWCA Civ 94; 2014 WL 320363 -
http://www.bailii.org/ew/cases/EWCA/Civ/2014/94.html

V" Kolvin, P. (2010) Sex Licensing.

Page 7 of 7 Page 172


http://www.bailii.org/ew/cases/EWCA/Civ/2014/94.html

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS ) ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

Information in this table is to be kept strictly confidential

Full name of objector:

Full postal address of
objector:

Contact telephone
number:

Email Address if
appropriate:

Detail of application

Name of applicant: Reedbed Ltd, Central Chambers
(Reference: 20/03326/SEV)

Address of premises: 9 - 11 St Stephens Street, Bristol, BS1 1EE
Application date: 25" August 2020

Date by which objections must be 22" August 2020

received:

Please enter the detail of your objection below. Please note however that objections
based on moral grounds cannot be accepted. Objections may be continued overleaf or
on separate sheets of paper.

I am chair of XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX. XXXXXXXXXXXXX is @ Bristol-based charity that is a
powerful voice for making women’s equality in Bristol a reality. xxxxxx is a mandated Voice
and Influence organisation to the City Council. We have approximately 3000 members.
Members are asked to agree to the policies and priorities set out in our Womanifesto when
they join. One of our six main priorities, as part of our Bristol Zero Tolerance project, is to
campaign and lobby to improve policy and services for women and girls, and to end violence
against women and girls in Bristol.

| object to the renewal of the SEV licence to the above applicant on a number of grounds
including the location of the applicant’s premises, the Council’s duties under Equalities Law

and its obligations under Crime and Disorder legislation.

| do not wish this objection to be summarised as | would prefer the Committee to read a

Page 1 of 6 Page 173




copy of it in its entirety.

Why we ask you to refuse the application

Safety and Equality of women in Bristol

1. As a signatory of the European Charter for Equality of Women and Men in Local Life,
Bristol City Council must recognise that “gender-based violence arises from the idea, on the
part of the perpetrator, of the superiority of one sex over the other in... an unequal
relationship of power” (Article 22.2). SEVs reflect and contribute to a popular culture in
which women’s bodies are objectified and seen as available for men’s use, while the
opposite is not the case. This culture perpetuates the notion of “the superiority of one sex
over the other” as identified in the Charter'. The Council’s duty under the Equality Act 2010
and the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) includes the need to have due regard to the need
to eliminate discrimination and harassment of women and advance equality of opportunity
for women, as well as foster good relations between men and women. The claims made by
Sexual Entertainment Venues in Bristol to be champions of equality are not only
extraordinary but irrelevant to SEV applications with regard to the PSED. It is the local
authority which must meet the requirements of the Public Sector Equality Duty.

2. The presence and operation of this club promotes discrimination against women and
harassment of women, stands in the way of the advancement of equal opportunities for
women, and fosters bad relations between men and women. All of these effects are the
very opposite of what Bristol City Council is required to aim for under our equality laws.
Central Chambers promotes harmful attitudes towards women as a group who share the
legally protected characteristic of the female sex. Research demonstrates that the sexual
objectification of women, which is encouraged and practised within SEVs in the context of
our sexist society, acts to reinforce gender inequality and the attitudes that support and
encourage violence against women, which is in itself a cause and consequence of gender
inequality. Gender inequality and violence against women are “two sides of the same coin”.”

3. Harmful social norms and practices that permit some women to make a living while
disadvantaging women as a group remain harmful. Our reasons for requesting a refusal of
this licence are based on the impact upon all women and girls in Bristol and who number
over 230,000”1. By the club’s own account, consideration of the work created for the women
who currently perform in Central Chambers and who may, by their representations, be said
to benefit (in the short term) cannot by any measure compare with the negative impact
upon all women and girls We want to see all women employed in good jobs that suit their
circumstances. Those jobs should not be (and are not) confined to the sex trade. For as long
as SEVs were allowed to operate in Bristol many of us have fought for conditions that would
make the women working there as safe as possible. But there is no evidence that these
conditions work and there is no evidence at all that the trade goes ‘underground’ when
licences are refused.

4. It is not “sex” that is the problem. It is the fact that in our society men as a class are
dominant and more powerful than women, and women’s sexuality is seen as existing for,

Page 2 of 6 Page 174




and being in the service of, men’s desires to do what they want when they want. This self-
proclaimed “Gentlemen’s Club” quite deliberately reinforces this message and perpetuates
the financial and social inequality of women compared to men in our society. It is entirely
irrelevant whether there are also men stripping or showing off their bodies to customers in
the premises: research shows us that it is only the sexual objectification of women that is
related to gender inequality and to violence against women. The context is our unequal
society.

5. The continued licensing of SEVs, in this case specifically Central Chambers, by Bristol City
Council means that the Council fails to meet obligations under the Charter and fails to
engage with the purpose of our national equalities legislation. This diminishes the status of
Bristol as a modern European City where both women and men should be able to lead
fulfilled lives in a safe and fair society. Bristol as a city is committed to the eradication of
violence and abuse of women and girls. In 2012 the city was awarded White Ribbon City
status which requires cities to work towards a status of zero SEVs. Bristol City Council is
supportive of the Bristol Women’s Commission’s Bristol Zero Tolerance initiative and both
previous and current Mayors have also pledged their support. The Bristol Zero Tolerance
initiative has sought to address all forms of gender-based violence, abuse, harassment and
exploitation in the city and achieving a nil cap policy on SEVs is a part of this work. There are
other current approaches to addressing violence and abuse in the city including public
health campaigns, school campaigns and university campaigns all dedicated to changing
social norms around gender inequality, attitudes to women and the acceptability of violence
towards women. The Bristol Against Violence and Abuse Strategy 2015-2020 led by the
Council includes an objective to reduce the opportunities for sexual exploitation and
negative perceptions of women connected to SEVs." These projects are supported by or run
by Bristol City Council. | believe that the continued licensing of SEVs directly undermines
this work and is not compatible with the wider outcomes and aims that the city hopes to
achieve in terms of gender equality and gender-based violence. We have numerous local
policies and strategies which highlight the importance of equality, safety and addressing
gender-based violence, however, there are no local policies which see the presence of SEVs
in the city as positive.

6. We know from research that the sexual objectification of women is a feature of the link
between men’s alcohol use and their perpetration of sexual violence. This research was
published in 2014, long after parliament had clamped down on SEVs and passed the
responsibility for whether they should be present in our cities to local councils. SEVs trade
in sexual objectification of women in an environment where alcohol is free-flowing. It is
obvious to those of us who are knowledgeable in this area that the presence of this SEV in
Bristol clearly impacts negatively on the safety as well as the hopes for equality of women
and girls. A local authority which grants the licensing of SEVs contributes to the
normalisation of exploitation and gender-based violence which initiatives such as Bristol
Zero Tolerance have tried to combat.

7. Central Chambers is in the central Cumulative Impact Zone. Bristol’s Statement of
Licensing Policy states that this area “has a significant concentration of alcohol led late night
venues, witnesses a high number of assaults and other related crime and disorder including
public nuisance and risk to public safety”. In 2017 Avon and Somerset Police submitted a
report that detailed a number of reports of crime and disorder directly related to the

Page 3 of 6 Page 175




premises and also reported 40 sexual offences within the area in a 12-month period. How
many sexual crimes are too many? That year, representatives for the club tried to whittle
this number down and tried to downplay our police’s view, but in previous years before the
police had begun to object, you were asked to pay attention to the police’s view as “your
experts on crime and disorder”. Whether you believe that these sexual offences are directly
related to the presence of the club, or that the club happens coincidentally to be situated in
a hotspot for violent and sexual crimes against women, it is clear that this is an
inappropriate location for a SEV.

8. Bristol women themselves express concern over the levels of harassment that are linked
with having an SEV in a central location in Bristol. The xxx Womanifesto makes clear our
position on SEVs. Similar views can be heard and read in diverse contexts expressed by the
diverse women of Bristol. As one woman put it during a conversation online: “I've had to sit
and listen to male colleagues discussing the body parts of the strippers they saw at the
weekend. | don’t choose to go to them but they’ve impacted on my life in several ways.
Friends have been harassed by men waiting outside the clubs - things like “get your tits out
and save us a fiver” have been shouted out. No matter what controls they put inside the
club, they can’t control what goes on outside.""

9. A number of local authorities in the UK have stopped granting licenses to SEVs. They have
implemented their policy approaches to achieving women’s equality, which includes
acknowledging and acting on the links between SEVs and gender-based violence and
inequality.

10. Itis shocking that every year you hear what we think are irrelevant arguments such as,
there is no “tacky lighting” or “seedy facades”, there are no “dancers skulking around the
entrance chatting away""i, which have nothing to do with why we ask you to refuse this
application. It is also in my view irrelevant to hear lists of people who have not objected, or
to hear times when the venue is not open. What | am concerned with is the very fact of the
presence of the venue in our historic city centre, and the impact of the activities that go on
inside its doors. | am concerned with gender equality. | don’t believe that you think a list of
things that could be worse should be weighed up as though they are more important or
relevant than our city’s progress towards equality between our women and men, girls and
boys.

The sub-committee has a clearly-granted ability or prerogative to make this decision

11. The sub-committee are the representatives of the people, and guidance from the Home
Office 2010 states that the purpose of the legislation is “to give local people a greater say
over the number and location of lap dancing clubs [SEVs] in their area”. The possibility of a
judicial challenge from establishments may be a concern for local authorities but there is no
appeal on the grounds of locality and there is no case law that suggests action that
prioritises gender equality made in good faith and based on the ever-developing advice of
expert local women’s organisations could be considered anything other than entirely
appropriate.

12. Case law also notes that licensing authorities can have a “fresh look’ at applications for

Page 4 of 6 Page 176




renewal of an SEV license and may refuse to renew a licence even if there is no change in
circumstances at all. Refusal to renew is also not a breach of human rights.

13. In practice, the sub-committee considering this application for renewal will be differently
constituted to the first sub-committee that granted the application when the new legislation
came into force a number of years ago. Meanwhile, further evidence has emerged
confirming the links between sexual objectification, violence and inequality. With every new
residential development and every new policy that puts equality at the heart of what Bristol
strives for, the case for refusal has grown stronger and case law sees that a different
decision can be made based on such “consideration of dynamic matters”.

Unsuitability of premises and location

14. The prime city centre location of Central Chambers is a constant reminder, to women
and men, girls and boys, of Bristol’s tolerance of sexism and inequality in the city. The
proximity to bus stops, residences and public buildings, such as churches, as well as public
perception has not to date been taken appropriately into consideration with the location of
Central Chambers in Bristol City Centre. It’s very clear from the City Council’s own policy that
the location is unsuitable given the grounds that sub-committees are directed to take into
account when deciding whether to allow an SEV to operate.

15. The Council have received various objections in the past to the renewal of SEV licenses
including details of sexual harassment that some women have experienced in the vicinity of
SEVs and specifically that of Central Chambers. Women also report feeling unsafe,
unwelcome and intimidated when near these establishments. As Philip Kolvin QC notes, “the
fears of women using the vicinity of premises may be reflected in decisions as to the
location of such facilities... These concerns are directly reflected in the Royal Town Planning
Institute’s Gender and Spatial Planning Good Practice Note, which states: ‘...ensure that the
views of women are considered. Evidence shows that in certain locations, lap-dancing and
exotic dancing clubs make women feel threatened or uncomfortable.””""

16. Residential Character: The premises are also close to residential homes, inhabited by
families as well as by impressionable young people and by women living alone.

17. Character of the locality including leisure and family friendly facilities and churches:
People visiting Baldwin Street, St Nicholas Market, and other shops and businesses may
have to pass Central Chambers. The premises are not “discreetly located” but are close to
family-friendly restaurants, shops, cafes and on a public transport route that are accessed by
a huge proportion of people including children. The historic area is also a “first impression”
for many visiting the city. Based on these venues, the street is a highly inappropriate
location for a venue that perpetuates inequality.

18. Further, Bristol women have expressed concern over the levels of harassment that are
linked with having an SEV in a central location in Bristol and they have made it clear that
they avoid the area.

Page 5 of 6 Page 177




On all these grounds | object to this application.

" Bristol Women’s Commission, Sexual Entertainment Venue Policy Statement, Licensing
Special Purposes Sub Committee, 6™ November 2014

i https://www.unwomen.org/en/news/stories/2017/10/speech-ed-phumzile-five-days-of-
violence-prevention-conference

1]
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/documents/20182/33904/Population+of+Bristol+August+2019.
pdf/96d16bad-49f6-c535-ba7d-a11f24b8d3b3

" https://www.bava.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/Bristol-Against-Violence-and-Abuse-
Strategy-2015-2020.pdf

¥ Taken from Mumsnet Bristol, during a discussion over SEVs in Central Bristol.

Vi_'These are direct quotes from last year’s hearing.
""" Kolvin, P. (2010) Sex Licensing.

Page 6 of 6 Page 178




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1982

Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

Information in this table is to be kept strictly confidential

Full name of objector:

Full postal address of
objector:

Contact telephone number:

Email Address if
appropriate:

Detail of application

Name of applicant: Reedbed Ltd, Central Chambers
(Reference: 20/03326/SEV)

Address of premises: 9 - 11 St Stephens Street, Bristol, BS1 1EE

Application date: 25 August 2020

Date by which objections must be received: | 22 September 2020

Please enter the detail of your objection below. Please note however that objections
based on moral grounds cannot be accepted. Objections may be continued overleaf or
on separate sheets of paper.

About us, our focus and our relationship to the City and Council

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX Was established in order to help Bristol to meet its obligations under Article 21
(Safety and Security) and Article 22 (Gender-Based Violence) of the European Charter for Equality of Women
and Men in Local Life, to which the Bristol City Council is a signatory.
(https://www.ccre.org/docs/charte_egalite_en.pdf). Under these Articles the city of Bristol:

Recognizes the right of each woman and man to security of the person, and to liberty of movement, and
that these rights cannot be freely or equally exercised if women or men are unsafe or insecure, whether
in the private or public domain, or if they feel unsafe or insecure.

Further recognizes that women and men, in part due to different obligations or lifestyles, often face
differing problems of safety and security, which need to be addressed.

Commits itself to develop and implement strategies, policies and actions to enhance the practical
security and safety of women and men, and to seek to reduce their respective perceptions of lack of
safety and security.

Recognises that gender-based violence arises from the idea, on the part of the perpetrator, of the

Page 179




superiority of one sex over the other in the context of an unequal relationship of power.

- Commits itself to establish and strengthen policies and actions against gender-based violence including
promoting awareness-raising campaigns and educational programmes aimed at potential and actual
victims and perpetrators.

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX members includes experts by experience and experts in service provision, research,
and policy concerning all forms of gender-based violence.

We urge you to listen to your experts on women’s equality and
women’s safety and not to grant this application.

About the basis and effect on your discretionary power of our objection

You have several discretionary grounds, that is grounds for exercising your discretion and choosing not to renew
this application. Any one of the discretionary grounds or a combination of them can be cited as your reason not
to grant. This should be obvious, but arguments made about how one discretionary ground does not apply are
irrelevant, if you intend to refuse on another different discretionary ground. Two ‘discretionary grounds’ (a and
b) are whether the applicant or manager are suitable. Another (c) is whether the application would take the
number of SEVs beyond the maximum appropriate number. Your fourth discretionary ground (d) covers among
other things the character of the relevant locality and the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put.

You are required by your policy to include and take into account in your consideration:
- The character of the locality
- Impact on crime and disorder

- The proximity to places where the public congregate for purposes other than use of the premises, such
as bus stops and taxi ranks

- The nature of the clientele it is likely to attract.
What we ask you to do is to agree that you are persuaded by and agree with our submission that:

e The character of this city centre locality is supposed to be residential, family-friendly, and welcoming
to women and men equally

e There is an unacceptable negative impact on crime and disorder (violence against women and girls) that
cannot be adequately mitigated by any conditions and that can be eliminated by the decision not to
renew the licence.

If you agree with this submission — and we hope that you do - then the
law says that you are doing your job as a committee by making the
decision not to renew the licence.

This decision cannot be appealed. Case law from judicial review shows us that judges support and uphold
decisions made by local authorities in this way. You should not fear threats of legal action from wealthy
applicants; there is no evidence that such action is possible or would succeed. However, action is possible both
from applicants and from objectors. Twice now there have been successful Judicial Reviews in England
concerning SEVs, that were brought by women, funded through Legal Aid and through crowd-funding,
regarding the failure of decision-makers and policy-makers to do the right thing by Equality law. The fact that
this has now been brought to your attention is enough to completely justify a decision to depart from a previous
history of granting a licence to this venue.

The grounds: Character of the locality (d(i))

Page 180




Local documents tell us that the city centre locality is becoming more residential and that more student
accommodation is in place and being planned there. Local documents tell us that the city wants families to feel
welcome in the centre.

Research has told us that women do not feel safe in our city centre. Women are known to self-select away from
areas where the sex trade is located (how ‘visible’ or ‘tacky’ the premises look has got nothing to do with this).

The presence of this venue impacts upon women in several ways:

- Women know that the clientele are likely to have been drinking alcohol and sexually aroused and
women know through experience, as we know through research, that men who drink alcohol and have
been sexually objectifying women are likely to be more sexist than most men and more dangerous to
women. This means that a number of women who feel this way avoid going near these premises. It is
not relevant that some women do not notice them or avoid them, or even that some women visit them.
The impact is a gendered impact because it is women, rather than men, who stay away from the area as
a direct result of these premises being there. Our duty and your duty as a council is to make public
spaces equally welcoming to women as men, and to take account of women’s perceptions and fears
about their safety. In this case those perceptions and fears are well-grounded, but it would not matter if
they were illogical.

- Women (for example, women members of this xxxx Group) feel let down by the City Council because
it has allowed these premises to be a feature of our city centre. This sends a message to men as well as
women, that sexism and inequality between women and men are not important to the Council.

The grounds: Impact on crime and disorder having regard to the character of the locality.

The “nature and style of the relevant entertainment” is “male and female performers involving full or partial
nudity”. From the legislation, we know that these performances are assumed (ignoring financial gain) “to be
provided solely or principally for the purpose of sexually stimulating any member of the audience”.

As far as we know in the xxx Group, there is no research that suggests women’s attitudes to men become hostile,
negative or violent after paying to see them perform sexually stimulating activity while nude. This is
unsurprising given what is known about gender inequality. Therefore male performers are not relevant to our
objection. What we do know is that:

- Paying to have women perform sex acts reinforces sexist stereotypes

- Observing women perform nude makes the brain see women as objects and as less than fully human
- Men who use the sex trade are more violent to women in their lives

- Men who use the sex trade endorse hostile masculinity more

- Men who use the sex trade have more sexist attitudes to women

- Men who use the sex trade are much more likely to acknowledge they would rape a woman if they
could get away with it.

Bristol city centre is the core of our city and is supposed to reflect the best of the city. It is where the Council
meets. It is where our rape and domestic abuse services for women are based. Our city is supposed to be a leader
in creating safe and equal communities where men and women can thrive.

In Bristol, we have high domestic violence and murder rates, high rape and sexual assault rates, and high sexual
harassment rates, against women by men. We also have low reporting rates (women do not believe that the
authorities will care or take them seriously) and low conviction rates in our courts. It has never been more
important to show as a city that we stand against the sexual objectification of women, sexism and all forms of
violence against women.

The nature of the relevant entertainment being applied for by this city

Page 181




centre venue adversely affects the safety of all women in the city and
we therefore strongly object to this application.

In order to help ensure that your decision-making is transparent to us, and to help us improve our
communications in the future, please note our request to the committee to specifically address in the record of

your decision:
- Did you give weight to your experts in women’s equality and safety

- Did you agree with the (expert) analysis that to issue this licence is harmful to women’s equality and
safety (if not on what basis did you disagree)

- Did you find that other considerations that were put before you should have higher priority or more
weight than the impact on women’s equality and safety? (if so what were they).

If your answers to these three questions are yes, yes and no, then this is the reasoning for your decision not to
grant the application.

Page 182




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 21 September 2020
RE: Central Chambers

xxXxxxxx works closely with women harmed by the strip industry. We have a wealth of
evidence, research, testimonies and information as to the reality (and the law) regarding the
strip trade. Some 10 years ago, our CEO helped ensure law change — to see strip clubs
licensed as part of the sex industry not leisure venues. More recently, we have been involved
in two successful High Court cases against one council for its licensing of the industry.

That is why we object to the relicensing of both these clubs (by the same applicant) and urge
you to refuse both licenses. Instead the council should focus on supporting alternative, equality
law-compliant, businesses. Particularly businesses that can open now. We would point out
that lap dancers, as ‘self employed’ workers, do not have access to the furlough scheme these
2 strip cubs are no doubt enjoying and offering to all other (predominantly male) PAYE staff.

We suggest, the council has an absolute moral obligation to ensure former lap dancers are
employed in these businesses in new roles that do not involve them being bought as sexual
entertainment.

We would further draw your attention to the ‘Kick Start’ scheme’ initiated by the government
in the Autumn, with grants given to businesses and councils specifically to ensure vulnerable
young people are employed. We hope the council has been making use of this to support all
those formerly in the strip/sex industry with employment opportunities and a way out.

We object to the licensing of these clubs on the grounds of:

1. Inappropriate locality

They are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own policy (in the city centre, near
the university, transport hubs, places of worship, family leisure facilities etc). Clubs have no
legal grounds to challenge a refusal to relicense on these grounds:

We urge the committee to read this short document: ‘Strip Clubs and the Law’
https://notbuyingit.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/10/StripLegal.pdf

2. Incompatibility with Equality law and Safeguarding

The council must abide by equality law in all of its licensing decisions. However, it is impossible
to license an SEV and not contravene this as SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and
poor relations between the sexes, as numerous experts have stated. Two High Court cases
against Sheffield City Council (third now pending) again indicate this.

This is also further indicated by the below:
2a) Harm in the Industry as a whole

The industry as a whole has an appalling record of breaches and incidences. We have found
over 150 incidences, many serious, recorded in over half of the UK strip industry. This will

Page 183



https://notbuyingit.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/10/StripLegal.pdf

merely be the tip of the iceberg as the industry works very hard to suppress this information
(as the former head of the Lap Dancing Association has stated on the record).

We urge the committee to read Section 3 of this document on The Documented
Harms of the Strip Industry:
https://notbuyingit.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/10/EIA.pdf

This is directly relevant to Bristol clubs. It shows how the entire industry operates. Your clubs
would have to be miraculous exceptions indeed to be immune to this modus operandi.

2b) The Track Record of Bristol’s Clubs

In fact, there are years of evidence directly related to Bristol’s clubs including the two seeking
relicensing under their current management, exposing how your SEVs are incompatible with
equality law - and even women'’s safety:

Bristol Police [2011] 50m zone around strip clubs a ‘hot spot’ for sexual violence
Bristol strip club manager at licensing hearing [2013]: “We’d need 10 doormen if we were to
intervene immediately”

*Bristol, Temptations [2013] Sexual Contact, club fined. Not Shut

*Bristol, Jack of Diamonds (formerly Temptations) [2017] Sexual Contact. Shut
*Bristol, Urban Tiger [2015] Banned from using school girl images

*Bristol, Urban Tiger [2017] Several reports of assault. Not Shut

Bristol Police App. 1 [2017] 40 sexual offences reported in 1 year near strip clubs
Bristol Police App. 1 [2017] ‘Heightened risk to women in the area’

*Bristol, Urban Tiger [2018] Dancers defend club ‘it saved my life’

*Bristol, Urban Tiger [2019] Prostitution?

*Bristol, Urban Tiger [2019] Dancers defend club as a ‘big happy family’
*Bristol, Urban Tiger [2019] NGOs abused for objecting to strip club

*Bristol [2019] Councillors ‘ashamed’ of new draft strip club policy

2c) Recent Serious Incident?

A man has recently been convicted of a sexual assault in a strip club in Bristol's Crown Court.
He assaulted a lap dance and ejaculated on her, resulting in him being put on the sex offenders
register:

https://www.thewestonmercury.co.uk/news/court/former-weston-man-ejaculated-on-stripper-
1-6283931)”
https://www.thelawpages.com/court-cases/Amranuzzman-Chowdhury-26871-1.law

Was this at one of the Bristol clubs? If so, whatever safeguarding and protection measures
are in place are clearly deeply inadequate. This also begs the question how many other
incidences are occurring? If such a serous incidence was able to take place doesn't it rather
suggest there must be numerous ‘minor’ breaches occurring on a regular basis that are never
detected/brought to the authorities attention?

2d) Inability to create an effective EIA

We would also highlight the ineffectiveness of any EIA, Equality Impact Assessment, in
regards to strip clubs. Even with regard to the best run club in the world, you cannot prevent
the inherent harm of the industry or to wider society (objectification/self objectification) as this
is the entire purpose of the industry.

You also cannot rely on any of the ‘safeguarding’ measures currently in place as these are so
readily circumvented as to be meaningless and you would never know. And there is

Page 184



https://notbuyingit.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/10/EIA.pdf

overwhelming evidence, across the industry that that is exactly what is happening everywhere:

We urge the committee to look at this document :‘How to Write an EIA’
https://notbuyingit.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/10/EIA.pdf

3. Unlicensed Activities?
We also would query the activities that might be taking place in these clubs and the lack of
transparency around this:

3a) 'Permitted Entertainment' Areas

- Naked/sexual entertainment is only supposed to be permitted in identified areas marked in
the floor plans for the venues

- However, there do not appear to be any marked areas on the floor plans for either venue:

https://democracy.bristol.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=217&MId=6101&Ver=4
https://democracy.bristol.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=217&MId=6100&Ver=4

- How can the public object to ‘permitted areas’ if they cannot see the application and plans
before the deadline for objections, and no guarantee that they may include additional
information at the hearing which is only when the full applications are published ?

- Most local authorities publish the content of applications so that objectors have access to all
information, why doesn’t Bristol?

3b) Breach of Licensing Condition B

This states relevant entertainment may only take place in areas identified in the plan.

If these areas have not been identified then there are no permitted areas - aren’t both clubs
therefore breaching their licence?

3c¢) Eating off naked women

https://www.bristolstagandhen.co.uk/body-platters/

This is on offer by Stag and Hen, another company run by the family who owns these strip clubs
- Has this been provided in either strip club?

- At what times?

- If it has been provided, has this only been in the ‘permitted areas’?

- If not, isn’t that a breach of license?

3d). Topless Waitresses

This is also provided by Stag and Hen
https://www.bristolstagandhen.co.uk/topless-waitresses/
https://www.bristolstagandhen.co.uk/afternoon-tease-2/

- Has this taken place in either strip club?

- At what times?

- in which case, isn’t this a breach of license as full/partial nudity of lap dancers and staff is
only allowed, for a short performance, in permitted areas ie not throughout the large sections
of a venue a waitress would need to use and not for the many hours of her shift for which she
would be topless?

Page 185



https://notbuyingit.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/10/EIA.pdf

Central Chambers - CC's

5 February at 21:03 - @
We've teamed up with Bristol Stag and Hen to offer this fantastic
stag night activity! Perfect for Gentlemen that are looking for

something different to do. A whole host of man food with half naked
ladies serving up the beers. It's can't get better than this!

vyYyYyy

Be sure to check out our website and other social media pages for
all booking enquiries, stag packages and table reservations.

% £30

per person

.. See more

This fantastic stag night activity is perfect for Gentlomen that
ave looking for different to do. The height of
sophistication thia activity is ideal for groups that don't want &
heavy meal before hitting the town and are looking for some
fun & Games 10 et the stag night off 10 the perfect start

Our Gentlemen's Aftemnoon Tease is held in our exchusive city
centre verwes and inchudes a full spread of man food with
crusty bagueties filed with Beef & Horseradish, ham & mustard
3nd egg mayonnase. A selection of sausage rolls, scotch eggs.
pasties & pork pies. All served with a bottie of beer or Gin and
Tonic to wath it down. Leave the cupcakes, finger sandwiches
and butlers in the buf to the ladies!

No stag night would be complete without some female
entertainment. To keep the group entertained and put the
“tease’ into Afternoon Tease. Our spread of man food will be
served by our topless waitresses. Our stunning ladies will look
after the group and make sure the stag is suitably entertained.
Ha¥ naked ladies serving up the beers. It can't get better than
this!

The whole event takes place in your own private bar 50 5t back
and tuck into a fine spresd, enjoy a cold beer and let our
‘topless waitresses look after you and your group.

H topless waitresses are not your thing and you would prefer »
more sophisticated Afterncon Tease. Our topless waitress can
Our ladies

stagsandhensbristol

lastnightoffreedom.co.uk/stag-weekends/bristol

Gentleman's Afternoon Teasein ©
Bristol

If delicate finger food isn't exactly your cup of tea, your stag do needs an

Afternoon Tease.
+ ADD

More Information
The dainty, quintessentially Englis ernoon tea Is so last year. '‘Man it up' a
notch, with the Gentleman's Afternoon Tea - set, of course, in a lap club. With
over 14 years' experience, this recently refurbished venue is Bristc

established lap dancing club, and the only club in the city centre witt

What's Included? oS

v Gentleman's Afternoon Tea featuring a selection of 'man food Forget macar fondant fancies and crustless finger sandwi
Features baguettes, sausage rolls, scotch eg sak bakes and pork n of ‘man foods', including baguette:

pies scotch eggs and a bottle 0

Served by your very own topless waitre lebrations even further, how about we add two 15 minute

Incllidas a bottle of bear sach performances from sexy Burlesque dancers? Now we've got your attention.

Hosted in a private bar in a Bristol city centre location

Duration: approx. 2 hours in total

Note: please check dietary requirements with your group before

booking as it may not be possible to cater for all requests

Page 186




3e) Topless Waitresses/Eating off Naked Women is Sexual Entertainment

- Do you know where this has been provided?

- If not, why not?

- Do the venues that provide this have an SEV or similar licenses?

- If not, how are the women involved being protected?

- Does the council acknowledge that topless waitressing/providing a woman’s naked body to
be eaten off is a form of sexual entertainment that needs to be licensed under an SEV or
similar license?

Page 187




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 17" September 2020

RE: Central Chambers

| am a Cental Bristol resident compliant and happy with the relicensing of both of the
city centre strip clubs.

It is wrong to rob women of the choice to work at either of these clubs if they choose to.
These clubs are run well with the safety of the dancers as a top priority. | have worked
in both of these clubs as a dancer and | value my bodily autonomy and having a safe
and regulated place to work.

The front of both of these venues are simple, unassuming and inoffensive.

| refuse to be spoken over by ‘not buying it when they have admitted themselves to not
having even set foot in these clubs. | have been out of work for 6 months now and | do
not regret working in this industry, nor will 1. This industry has done so much for me and
has allowed me so many opportunities. | began investing and stock trading. | had time
to study and live comfortably. | pay my taxes diligently.

It's also worth pointing out that there is so objection to male strippers by this particular
organisation, just unfair targeting of women.

It's clear that sex work IS work and to we should be able to continue working in a job
that | and many others value and enjoy safely. That is why | urge that these venues be
relicensed.

Thankyou

Page 188




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS)
ACT 1982
Objection to application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue

RECEIVED VIA EMAIL AT THE LICENSING OFFICE ON: 23" Sept 2020 (LATE)

RE: Central Chambers

| object to the relicensing of both these clubs (by the same applicant) due to:

Inappropriate locality - they are near many places deemed inappropriate in your own
policy (in the city centre and near the university, transport hubs, places of worship,
family leisure facilities etc).

Incompatibility with Equality law - The council must abide by equality law in all of its
licensing decisions. However it is impossible to license an SEV and not contravene this
as SEVs promote sex inequality, harassment and poor relations between the sexes, as
numerous experts have stated.

Please note: The Court of Appeal has ruled that the committee is fully entitled to look
with fresh eyes at every licensing hearing - that is why these are held annually. It has
also stated there need be no material changes whatsoever in order to refuse a license
that was previously granted.

Please refuse both licenses. Instead the council should focus on supporting alternative,

equality law-compliant, businesses AND ensure former lap dancers are employed there
in new roles that do not involve them being bought as sexual entertainment.

Page 189




Agenda ltem 7

AGENDA ITEM NO.

BRISTOL CITY COUNCIL
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE

16 September 2021

Report of the Service Manager — Regulatory Services

Title: Licensing Act 2003
Application for grant of a premises licence in respect of Feeder Studios
Productions Ltd, 39 - 46 Feeder Road, Bristol, BS2 OSE

Ward: Lawrence Hill
Officer Presenting Report: Sarah Flower
Contact Telephone Number: 0117 3574900

Purpose of the report

To hold a hearing to consider relevant representations made on the application for a
premises licence for Feeder Studios Productions Ltd made by Feeder Studios Productions
Ltd and received on 23rd July 2021

Members have a pack containing the following documents:

€) Copy of the application

(b) Copy of all relevant representations

(c) Points of clarification raised with the parties and their responses
(d)  The Council’s statement of licensing policy

(e)  The Secretary of state’s guidance

)] The Council’s Licensing procedure rules

(9) Regulations governing the conduct of hearings

Context
The detail of the application is as follows:

Licensable activities and times applied for:

Sale of Alcohol Monday to Sunday 10:00 - 00:00
Plays Monday to Sunday 10:00 - 00:00
Films Monday to Sunday 10:00 - 00:00
Live Music Monday to Sunday 10:00 - 00:00
Recorded Music Monday to Sunday 10:00 - 00:00
Performances of Dance Monday to Sunday 10:00 - 00:00
Similar - live/recorded music or Monday to Sunday 10:00 - 00:00
dance

Late Night Refreshment Monday to Sunday 23:00 - 00:00

Page 190



Hours the premises will be open to the public:

Monday to Sunday 08:00 - 00:30

Non Standard Timings

Up to 6 events per year where licensable activities can be
extended indoors to 02:00 in the morning (30 mins thereafter
closing to the public) propyard Bristol with advanced notice
given to Avon and Somerset Police a minimum of 8 weeks in
advance. Each event to last no longer than 24 hours total.

The application was accompanied by an operating schedule setting out the steps the
applicant proposes to take to promote the four licensing objectives. If there had been no
relevant representations (or if all relevant representations are withdrawn) the council would
be bound to grant the application subject only to such conditions as are consistent with the
operating schedule accompanying the application. The draft of a licence that could have
been issued, having regard to guidance and policy and acting with a view to promoting the
four licensing objectives, is appended to this report as Appendix A.

Representations
1. Relevant representations have been received from the following parties, all of whom
have been notified of this hearing and their rights:

Louise Mowbray — Avon and Somerset Constabulary

Recommendations

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE SUB COMMITTEE hold a hearing to consider the
relevant representations (unless the subcommittee, the applicant and each person who
has made such representations agree that a hearing is unnecessary) and, having regard
to the representations, take such of the steps mentioned in paragraph 6 below, if any, as it
considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. In making this (and all
licensing decisions) the subcommittee must have regard to the guidance and policy

Page 191



included in the subcommittee’s pack
2. The steps are —

(@) To grant the licence subject to conditions that are consistent with the operating
schedule

(b) To exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which the
application relates

(c) [To refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor] delete
where not applicable

(d)  To reject the application

3. If a licence is granted any relevant mandatory conditions must be imposed in
addition to any conditions the subcommittee decides to impose after the hearing.
Mandatory conditions are standard conditions imposed by way of legislation and in respect
of which there is no power to vary.

4. If the subcommittee decides to grant the application Notice in line with the statutory
requirements must be given forthwith to that effect to the applicant, all of the people who
made relevant representations and the Chief Constable for Avon and Somerset and must
state the reasons for taking any of the steps set out in paragraph 6 of this report; the
applicant must also be issued with the licence and a summary of it.

5. If the subcommittee decides to reject the application notice must be given forthwith
to that effect to the applicant, all of the people who made relevant representations and the
Chief Constable for Avon and Somerset and must state the reasons for the decision.

APPENDICES
Appendix A Draft premises licence with proposed conditions (if applicable)
which would be issued under Licensing Act 2003, if granted.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
Background papers: Application and supporting documents.

Contact Officer: Emma Lake, Licensing Team Leader, Licensing,

Neighbourhoods and City Development
Telephone: 0117 3574900

Page 192



LICENSING ACT 2003

Schedule 132 Part A Regulation 33, 34
Premises Licence

Bristol City Council

Licensing Team (Temple Street) PO Box 3399, Bristol BS1 9NE

Premises Licence Number

21/02986/PRGRT

Part 1 Premises Details

Postal address of premises, or if no
including Post Town, Post Code:

Feeder Studios Productions Ltd
39 - 46 Feeder Road

Bristol

BS2 OSE

ne, ordnance survey map reference or description,

Telephone number:

Where the licence is time limited the dates Not applicable

Licensable activities authorised by the licence and the times the licence authorises the

carrying out of licensable activities.
Sale of Alcohol

Plays

Films

Live Music

Recorded Music

Performances of Dance

Similar - live/recorded music or
dance

Late Night Refreshment

On the Premises Monday to Sunday 10:00 - 00:00
Both Monday to Sunday 10:00 - 00:00
Both Monday to Sunday 10:00 - 00:00
Both Monday to Sunday 10:00 - 00:00
Both Monday to Sunday 10:00 - 00:00
Both Monday to Sunday 10:00 - 00:00

Both Monday to Sunday 10:00 - 00:00

Indoors Monday to Sunday 23:00 - 00:00

Radedds




Non Standard Timings

Up to 6 events per year where licensable activities can be extended indoors to 02:00 in the
morning (30 mins thereafter closing to the public) propyard Bristol with advanced notice given to
Avon and Somerset Police a minimum of 8 weeks in advance. Each event to last no longer than
24 hours total.

The opening hours of the premises

Monday to Sunday 08:00 - 00:30

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off supplies

Supply of alcohol authorised for On and Off the premises

Part 2

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of
premises licence

Feeder Studios Productions Ltd
40 - 42 Regent Street

Bristol

BS8 4HU

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where
applicable)

sy ot (s Xk




Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the
premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

Kevin John Doody
13 Argyle Avenue, Bristol, BS5 6PG

Personal licence held by designated premises supervisor where the premises licence
authorises for the supply of alcohol

Personal licence number:
6101/1

Issuing Authority:
Birmingham City Council

hadedds




Annex 1 — Mandatory conditions

Mandatory condition Licensing Act 2003 - Supply of Alcohol

1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence-

(a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence,
or

(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his
personal licence is suspended.

2. Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person
who holds a personal licence.

Mandatory Licensing Conditions - Additional conditions imposed by Policing and Crime
Act 2009

Conditions numbered 1 - 4 shall be in force as of the 01 October 2014.

Conditions 1, 2 and 4 shall not apply where the premises licence authorises sale by retail or
supply of alcohol only for consumption off the premises.

1. (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out,
arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities,
or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of
alcohol for consumption on the premises -

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or encourage,
individuals to -

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on the
premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or
supply alcohol), or

(i) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee to
the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a
significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the
purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner which carries
a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the vicinity
of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-
social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner;

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that
other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).

2. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to
customers where it is reasonably available.

3. (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age
verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.
(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the
supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years
of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being
served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either -

(a) a holographic mark, or

(b) an ultraviolet feature.

ihadieddo



4. The responsible person must ensure that -

(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises
(other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or
supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures -

(i) beer or cider: ¥z pint;

(i) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and

(i) still wine in a glass: 125 ml;

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is available
to customers on the premises; and

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to be
sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.

Additional conditions imposed by Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory Conditions) Order 2014
Conditions numbered 1 - 4 shall be in force as of 28 May 2014

1. Arelevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the
premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1 -

(a) "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;

(b) "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula -

P=D+(DxV)

Where -

() P is the permitted price,

(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the
date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(i) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax
were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

(c) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises
licence -

(i) the holder of the premises licence,

(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or

(i) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence;
(d) "relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club
premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which
enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

(e) "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax
Act 1994.

3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be
taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2
on a day ("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the next day ("the second
day") as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol
which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

Mandatory condition Licensing Act 2003 - Exhibition of Films

In this section - "Children" means persons aged under 18."

The admission of persons to the exhibition of any film shall be restricted in accordance with any
recommendations made by the Licensing Authority, Bristol City Council as the relevant film

Radeds7



classification body, save that in those circumstances where the Licensing Authority has made no
recommendation which applies to the particular film, the admission of persons shall be restricted in
accordance with any recommendation made by the British Board of Film Classification. Children
shall not be admitted to any exhibition of films at times where access to the premises by children
has been restricted by the conditions of this licence.

In accordance with section 20 (3) (b) The Licensing Authority for Bristol hereby notifies the
premises licence holder that this licence does not authorise the exhibition of any film categorised
by the Licensing Authority or the Film Classification Body as R18. This restriction shall not apply to
those premises licensed as a sex cinema in accordance with the Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 Schedule 3 Section 2 Control of Sex Establishments.
Mandatory condition Licensing Act 2003 - Door Supervision

1. Where this licence includes a condition that at specified times one or more individuals must be
at the premises to carry out a security activity, each such individual must:

(a) be authorised to carry out that activity by a licence granted under the Private Security Industry
Act 2001; or

(b) be entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of section 4 of that Act.
(As required by s21 Licensing Act 2003 as amended by the Violent Crime Reduction Act)
2. But nothing in subsection (1) requires such a condition to be imposed:

(a) in respect of premises within paragraph 8(3)(a) of Schedule 2 to the Private Security Industry
Act 2001 (c12) (premises with premises licences authorising plays or films); or

(b) in respect of premises in relation to:

(i) any occasion mentioned in paragraph 8(3)(b) or (c) of that Schedule (premises being
used exclusively by club with club premises certificate, under a temporary event notice authorising
plays or films or under a gaming licence), or

(i) any occasion within paragraph 8(3)(d) of that Schedule (occasions prescribed by
regulations under that Act.

3. For the purposes of this section:

(a) "security activity" means an activity to which paragraph 2(1)(a) of that Schedule applies, and,
which is licensable conduct for the purposes of that Act, (see Section 3(2) of that Act) and

(b) paragraph 8(5) of that Schedule (interpretation of references to an occasion) applies as it
applies in relation to paragraph 8 of that Schedule.

Annex 2 — Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule

1. The premises shall primarily be an event space, used for the promotion of creative arts and
culture

2. CA08 The licence holder shall determine the occupant capacity of the premises on the basis of

documented risk assessment(s).
() The risk assessment(s) must take into account all relevant factors including space, means of

iRadedd8



access and egress, toilet provision, load-bearing capacity of floors, ventilation, etc and must be
reviewed regularly, and if circumstances change.

(ilWhere necessary separate occupancy levels must be set for different parts of the premises.

(iif) The premises licence holder shall ensure that they consult the Public Health Services of Bristol
City Council and any other relevant authority (for example the Fire Rescue Service regarding
emergency evacuation limitations) as to the occupancy figure. Confirmation of the consultation
and any outcomes shall form an integral part of the risk assessment on which the capacity figure is
based.

(iv)The capacity figure proposed by the premises licence holder shall be notified to the Licensing
Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the licence.

(v)Measures must be put in place to ensure that the capacity is not exceeded at any time.

(vi) All documentation pertaining to the proposed figure must be kept on the premises and must be
available immediately on request to any authorised officer of the Licensing Authority or a
constable.

3. CA12: Manual and/ or automatic electronic number control systems shall be installed, used and
maintained at the premises at all times the premises is open to the public for regulated
entertainment.

4. CA10: There shall be no entry or re-entry to the premises after 23:00 hours, with the exception
of seasonal non-standard events where last entry shall be midnight. Appropriate signage shall be
clearly displayed at each exit from the premises advising patrons that re-entry to the premises
after 23:00 hours is prohibited.

5. GBO1. The premises licence holder shall ensure that any bottles or glasses are removed from
persons leaving the premises.

6. GB04. The premises licence holder shall ensure that all drinking glasses used within the
premises are of toughened or safety glass or polycarbonate/ plastic to the appropriate safety
standard, in that they shall not produce sharp shards when broken

7. CV13: It shall be the responsibility of the premises license holder, to ensure that an appointed
person shall be in charge of the premises when regulated entertainment is taking place to ensure
the safety of disabled persons on the premises.

8. SA01L: All staff to be trained in the prevention of underage sales to a level commensurate with
their duties. All such training to be updated as necessary, for instance when legislation changes,
and should include training on how to deal with difficult customers. The training should be clearly
documented and signed and dated by both the trainer and the member of staff receiving it. The
documentation shall be available for inspection on request by an authorised officer of the
Licensing Authority or a constable.

9. SA02: (i) An approved proof of age scheme shall be adopted, implemented and advertised
within the premise such as "Challenge 25" whereby an accepted form of photographic
identification shall be requested before any alcohol is sold to any person who appears to be under
25 years of age.

Acceptable proof of age shall include identification bearing the customers photograph, date of birth
and integral holographic mark or security measure. Suitable means of identification would include
PASS approved proof of age card, photo-card driving licence and passport.

(i) Publicity materials notifying customers of the operation of the Challenge 25 scheme shall be
Displayed at the premises, including a Challenge 25 sign of at least A5 size at the entrance to the
premises and where practicable at each point of sale.

10. SA03: The premises licence holder shall require the DPS, or in his/her absence other

Radddd



responsible person, to keep an 'incident/refusals logbook in a bound book in which full details of all
incidents are recorded. This shall include details of any refused sales and shall give details of the
persons involved, incident description, time and date, actions taken and final outcome of the
situation. This shall be completed as soon as possible and in any case no later than the close of
business on the day of the incident. The time and date when the report was completed, and by
whom, is to form part of the entry.

The logbook is to be kept on the premises at all times and shall be produced to an authorised
officer of the Licensing Authority or a constable when required.

11. NP66: There shall be no consumption of beverages purchased from the premises in open
containers in the outside area after 23:00 hours, midnight for seasonal/ non-standard events.

12. SX04: Use of premises by third parties: Where the premises, or parts of the premises may be
hired out by third parties or be used by events promoters, the premises licence holder must ensure
that there are appropriate procedures in place that will ensure that as far as is possible, the third
party is aware of the licensing conditions and has in place their own procedures which will ensure
that the licensing objectives are not compromised.

13. ADO2: In respect of promoted events, that is, any events involving the conduct of licensable
activities at the premises that are organised by persons other than the premises licence holder or
those under his direct control, the premises licence holder shall ensure that a register is
maintained in a bound book kept for that purpose. The register shall be kept at the premises and
shall be produced by the designated premises supervisor (or his nominated deputy in his absence)
to an authorised officer of the Licensing Authority or a constable upon request. The register shall
record the following:

(i) Date and time of event and brief description of it;

(i) Name of the promoter(s), that is, the person(s) responsible for organising the event;

(iif) Where the promoter is a company, its registered number.

(iv) The proper address of the promoter

(v) Contact telephone number for promoter

14. ADO1: The premises licence holder shall take all reasonable precautions and exercise all due
diligence to ensure that no licensable activity shall be advertised in a manner which contravenes
the general law or cause a nuisance to the general public.

15. DCO3: [A] The premises licence holder shall ensure that the following details for each door
supervisor, are contemporaneously entered into a bound register kept for that purpose:

(i) Full name,

(ii) SIA Certificate number and or badge number, or registration number of any accreditation
scheme recognised by the Licensing Authority (including expiry date of that registration or
accreditation),

(iii) The time they began their duty

(iv) The time they completed their duty.

This register is to be kept at the premises at all times and shall be so maintained as to enable an
authorised officer of the Licensing Authority or a constable to establish the particulars of all door
stewards engaged at the premises during the period of not less than 31 days prior to the request
and shall be open to inspection by authorised officers of the Licensing Authority or a constable
upon request.

[B] The premises licence holder shall ensure that the following details for each door supervisor are
entered into a bound register kept for that purpose to include the following details:

(i) Name

(i) Date of birth

(iif) Address

(iv) Contact telephone numbers

ihagkgdo



(iv) SIA Certificate number, or registration number of any accreditation scheme recognised by the
Licensing Authority.

(v) Commencement date of performing duties at the premises.

(vi) The full details of any agency through which they have been allocated to work at the premises
if appropriate

These details should be easily accessible to any authorised officer of the Licensing Authority or a
constable.

16. DCO5: The premises licence holder shall ensure that all door supervisors on duty at the
premises wear a current identification badge, issued by the Security Industry Authority or any
accreditation scheme recognised by the Licensing Authority, in a conspicuous position to the front
of their upper body.

17. CCO1: CCTV shall be in use at the premises.

(i) Where a CCTV system is to be installed, extended or replaced, it shall be to an appropriate
standard as agreed with the Licensing Authority in consultation with the Police. Where a CCTV
system is to be installed it shall be fully operational by (insert date). Where existing CCTV systems
are to be replaced or extended the replacement or extension to the system shall be concluded by
(insert date) and the system be fully operational on that date.

(i) The CCTV equipment shall be maintained in good working order and continually record when
licensable activity takes place and for a period of two hours afterwards.

(iif) The premises licence holder shall ensure images from the CCTV are retained for a period of
31 days. This image retention period may be reviewed as appropriate by the Licensing Authority
(iv) The correct time and date will be generated onto both the recording and the real time image
screen.

(v) If the CCTV equipment (Including any mobile units in use at the premises) breaks down the
Premises Licence Holder shall ensure the designated premises supervisor, or in his/her absence
other responsible person, verbally informs the Licensing Authority and the Police as soon as is
reasonably practicable. This information shall be contemporaneously recorded in the incident
report register and shall include the time, date and means this was done and to whom the
information was reported. Equipment failures shall be repaired or replaced as soon as is
reasonably practicable and without undue delay. The Licensing Authority and the Police shall be
informed when faults are rectified.

(vi) The premises Licence holder shall ensure that there are trained members of staff available
during licensable hours to be able to reproduce and download CCTV images into a removable
format at the request of an authorised officer of the Licensing Authority or a constable.

(vii) There shall be clear signage indicating that CCTV equipment is in use and recording at the
premises during all (Insert hours) hours

18. CC12: The CCTV system shall include all external areas of the premises.

19. CC16: There shall be clear signage indicating that CCTV equipment is in use and recording at
the premises during all (Insert hours) hours.

20. TRO3: The premises license holder shall provide training for all staff to ensure that they are
familiar with all means of ingress and egress and the appropriate procedures in case of any
emergencies that require an immediate evacuation of the premises. A record of the training shall
be maintained and shall be available upon request by officers of the City Council of Bristol.

21. TRO5: A record of all staff training shall be maintained at the premises and made immediately
available upon request to an authorised officer of the Licensing Authority or the Police. The
documentation relating to training should extend back to a period of three years and should
specify the time, date and details of the persons both providing the training and receiving the

training.
iBagddt



22. PS06: The premises licence holder shall ensure that signage is appropriately displayed in the
Exhibition space advising all customers not to leave any belongings unattended.

23. PSO7: The premises licence holder shall ensure that a search policy is implemented at the
premises for events with regulated entertainment. Searches shall only be conducted by same sex
searchers.

24. PS08: Drugs and weapons seized will be placed in a locked receptacle set aside for this
purpose. The means for securing or unlocking the receptacle will be retained by the premises
licence holder or the designated premises supervisor or in their absence any other responsible
person. A record shall be made of the seizure, the time, date and by whom, and to whom the
items were handed on to in a bound book specifically kept for that purpose. Such a book to be
produced to an authorised officer of the Licensing Authority or a constable upon request. The
premises licence holder shall make suitable arrangements with the Police for the collection of any
seized items.

25. PS10: An incident report logbook shall be held at the premises at all times and shall be
produced to an authorised officer of the Licensing Authority or a constable immediately upon
request. It shall contain the details of persons involved, incident description, time and date, actions
taken and final outcome of the situation.

26. DAO1: Where there is reasonable suspicion that drugs, defined as Class A,B or C controlled
substances under the Misuse of Drugs Act, or weapons are being carried, the premises licence
holder shall ensure that the outer clothing, pockets and bags of those entering the premises are
searched by door security personnel. In any event where controlled substances or weapons are
found, the premises licence holder shall ensure that the designated premises supervisor or
nominated person shall immediately inform the Police.

27. DAO3: The premises licence holder shall ensure that documented security arrangements are
implemented at the premises to discourage the sale and consumption of controlled substances.
Security arrangements shall include having a member of staff regularly check toilet areas, the date
and times of all checks to be recorded in a bound book kept for that purpose and to be produced
upon request to an authorised officer of the Licensing Authority or a constable. Signage shall also
be placed in the toilet areas advising patrons that checks are conducted regularly.

28. PW02: Subject to reasonable notice being given which save in an emergency shall be not less
than seven days, the premises licence holder shall ensure attendance at any meeting convened
by the Police to discuss any matters relating to the premises.

29. FAO1: For events where it is anticipated that more than 300 persons will be in attendance the
premises licence holder shall ensure that adequate first aid provision is available at all times that
the license is in force and shall have a suitably qualified first-aider on the premises during the
event.

30. NP0O2: Music shall not be played at a level that will cause unreasonable disturbance to the
occupants of any properties in the vicinity.

31. NPO5: Alarms shall be fitted to (Specify location of external windows/fire doors) to alert staff
when (they are)(it is) opened without authorisation.

32. NP39: (Condition regarding limiter only triggered if nuisance witnessed)
(i) If officers of the council witness noise at a level that causes unreasonable disturbance to the
occupants of any properties in the vicinity then a noise limiting device shall be used in relation to

bademalZ



all sound amplification equipment used in conjunction with the Premises Licence.

(i) The noise limiting device shall be installed and set at a level approved by the Council through
an authorised officer of the Pollution Control Team within 1 month of notification, for its
requirement, from the Licensing section.

(iif) The noise limiting device shall be properly secured so that it cannot be tampered with.

(iv) The noise limiting device shall only be reset with the authority of the Council through an
authorised officer of the Pollution Control Team.

(v) If deemed necessary, the noise limiting device shall be reset to a level approved by the Council
through an authorised officer of the Pollution Control Team within 14 days of notification.

33. NP19: Monitoring

The manager, licence holder or other competent person shall carry out observations in the vicinity
of the nearest boundary of residential properties at the start of each music event in order to
establish whether there is a noise breakout from the premises. If the observation reveals noise
breakout at a level likely to cause disturbance to the occupants of properties in the vicinity then the
volume of music shall be reduced to a level that does not cause disturbance. A record of such
observations shall be kept in a book for that purpose, such a book shall be completed immediately
after the observation detailing the time, location and duration of the observation, the level of noise
breakout and any action taken to reduce noise breakout. Such book to be made available at all
times upon request to an authorised officer of the Licensing Authority or a constable.

34. NP57: Clear notices displayed at all points where customers leave the building must instruct
them to respect the needs of local residents and leave the premises and the area quietly.

35. SXO01: (i) All special effects, equipment and mechanical installations shall be selected,
arranged, stored and used so as to minimise any risk to the safety of the audience, performance
and staff. This must be on the basis of a written risk assessment.

(ii) 'Special effects’ include: dry ice machines, cryogenic fog machines, smoke machines and any
other type of fog generators, pyrotechnics including fireworks, explosives and other highly
flammable substances, real flame, firearms, motor vehicles, strobe lighting, lasers, foam, any other
unusual or novel effect.

(i) Furthermore written permission must be sought from the licensing authority before using any of
the above - for the first time and after any significant changes have been made to the venue,
usage of the effect or the equipment itself.

SXO06: Except where expressly permitted, explosives or highly flammable substances shall not be
brought on to or used in the premises at any time when any licensable activity is taking place

36. SX07: Acts and Performances. No act or performance where there may be a risk of injury from
fire; falling objects or people; impact; moving equipment; animals or any other source should take
place within the venue unless it is done safely and without risk to the public. Control measures
must be decided on the basis of a written risk assessment, which must be submitted to the
licensing authority at least 14 days before the event. Written permission of the licensing authority
must be given before the act or performance can go ahead.

37. GSO01: All doors and fastenings shall at all times be kept in proper working order

38. GS02: Any door not usable by the public shall be marked "PRIVATE", notices bearing the
words "NO

EXIT" or "NO WAY OUT" shall not be used.

39. GS03: A door or gate shall not open immediately upon a step or steps. A landing having a
width of not less than 900 mm shall be provided between the door and gate and the step or steps.

40. GS06: Curtains shall not be hung across gangways or over staircases; where hung over

Rademals



doorways or across corridors they shall draw easily from the centre and slide freely and shall be
clear of the floor.

41. GS09: Stairways, corridors or gangways shall not be used as cloakrooms and no pegs for
hanging hats, cloaks or other articles shall be fitted therein. Where cloakrooms are provided, they
shall be so situated that the persons using them shall not interfere with the free use of any exit
route.

42. GS10: The public shall be permitted to leave by all exit and entrance doors after each
performance, entrances being considered and treated as exits for all purposes, provided that they
are not revolving doors or fitted with turnstiles.

43. GS26: All traffic routes used by members of the public (including entrance ways, gangways,
lobbies, corridors, passages and exit routes and all steps and stairways) should have:

(i) Nosings of the treads of steps in a contrasting colour to the remainder of the tread. The nosings
shall show up clearly under emergency lighting conditions.

(i) Any changes in level clearly visible to members of the public, such as by using contrasting
colours or additional lighting.

(i) Mats more than 1 cm thick sunk to floor level unless of rubber with wide bevelled edges.

(iv) A continuous handrail securely fixed on each side of all staircases, steps and landings at a
height of not less than 840 mm nor more than 1 metre, measured vertically from the pitch line,
except that

only one such handrail need be provided to such staircases, flights of steps or landings which are
less than 1 m wide. Where a staircase is 1.8 metres or more in width, a central handrail shall, in
addition, be provided, properly supported and secured to the steps.

44. ELO6: The premise licence holder shall ensure that a Residual Current Device protection,
sensitive to tripping currents of not more than 30 milli-amps, are fitted to all power circuits
supplying sockets that may be used by entertainers / members of the public for plugging in
electrical equipment. These should be regularly tested to ensure they are still functioning as
required.

45. ELQ9: Electrical installation in areas used by members of the public shall be subject to the
following:

(i) Any alterations made to electrical installations, including the use of temporary wiring and
distribution systems, shall comply with the relevant edition of the Regulations for the Electrical
Equipment of Buildings issued by the Institution of Electrical Engineers (BS 7671 or any British
Standard replacing or amending the same).

(i) All electrical equipment and installations shall be subject to regular visual checks to ensure that
they are safe and in good working order, as well as formal routine tests by a competent person as
advised in the aforementioned BS 7671 guidance.

(iif) A Residual Current Device protection sensitive to tripping currents of not more than 30 milli-
amps, must be fitted to power circuits supplying outdoor sockets and also indoor sockets that
might be expected, with the use of plug-in extension leads, to power outdoor circuits.

46. SF02: Adequate sanitary accommodation shall be provided at the premises in accordance with
either the District Surveyors Technical Standards for places of entertainment or the BS6465
standard for sanitary provisions or any British Standard replacing or amending the same.

47. WM1: No accumulation of combustible rubbish, dirt, surplus material or stored goods shall be
permitted to remain in any part of the premises except in an appropriate place and of such
guantities so as not to cause a nuisance, obstruction or other safety hazard.

48. WM8: The collection of refuse, bottles and recyclable materials relating to licensable activities

RademalE



at the premises shall only take place 06:00 and 22:00 hours
49. WM9: Deliveries of alcohol shall only take place between 06:00 and 22:00 hours

50. NP63: The premises supervisor, manager or other competent person shall manage any
outdoor area to ensure that customers do not behave in a noisy, rowdy or offensive manner.

51. A traffic/ dispersal management plan (‘'TDMP") shall be drawn up and implemented at the
premises.

The TDMP shall cover, as a minimum, the following:

a. Parking on and off site

b. Ensuring that customers staff and suppliers understand that Feeder Road must be kept clear for
emergency vehicles (blue route) at all times

c. Ensuring that for events involving regulated entertainment and where the majority of the
audience is expected to leave en-mass, all customers are routed via the Chapel Street exit

d. General dispersal of customers to ensure that neighbours are not unreasonably disturbed.
The TDMP will be revisited and revised at regular intervals, at least once a year and in line with
best practice. The TDMP shall be made available to Avon and Somerset Police and Bristol
Licensing Authority on request.

52. An assessment shall be submitted to the Licensing Authority detailing the potential for noise
from music and customers at the premises affecting adjoining residential properties.

If the assessment indicates that noise from the premises is likely to affect neighbouring residential
properties then a scheme of noise mitigation measures shall be submitted. The noise mitigation
measures shall be designed so that nuisance will not be caused to the occupiers of neighbouring
noise sensitive premises by noise from these premises.

The assessment and any scheme of noise mitigation measures shall be made by a suitably
gualified acoustic consultant/engineer and

The approved details shall be implemented in full prior to the performance of any live or recorded
music as regulated entertainment under the terms of this licence.

53. When used, door supervisors who have been approved by the Security Industry Authority or
any accreditation scheme recognised by the Licensing Authority, shall be used to vet customers
and maintain public order. The vetting process must include implementation of the premises' proof
of age policy. All door supervisors must ensure that identification bearing the customers
photograph, date of birth and integral holographic mark or security measure is produced before
allowing entry and where it is not, entry shall be refused. Suitable means of identification would
include PASS approved proof of age card, photo-card driving licences and passports or any other
government approved ID.

54. The number of door supervisors shall be risk assessed for any event being held at the
premises. The risk assessment will be documented and will detail the following:

a. The name of the event

b. Details of activities taking place

c. Hours (start and end)

d. Expected audience numbers

e. Any specific risks identified with either the performance, or likely audience

f. Number of door supervisors to be employed and start and finish times.

Where the risk assessment identifies door supervisors are required, they shall be employed in the
numbers and at the times identified. A copy of each risk assessment will be retained for a
minimum of

12 months and shall be made available to Avon and Somerset Police on request.

55. All door supervisors shall be capable of communicating instantly with one another by way of

iRadeals



radio or other simultaneous system of communication.

56. The premises shall not be permitted to be used for any adult entertainment or services,
activities, other entertainment or matters ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to
concern in respect of children, which prohibited uses include, among other things, nudity or semi-
nudity, films for restricted age groups or any relevant entertainment (with the meaning of the third
schedule to the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 except where that is
expressly permitted under a licence or waiver granted or given under that legislation.

Annex 3 — Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority
Conditions proposed by Avon and Somerset Constabulary, as agreed with the applicant:
1. Until planning is granted, no licensable activities are permitted.

2. A Water Management Plan is submitted to support this application.

3. A Traffic Management Plan is submitted to support this application.

4. When the warehouse is subdivided and is being used and when SIA security staff are
employed, SIA badged staff are to be highly visible in the sub-divide whether in a static position or
mobile.

5. All door supervisors shall wear distinctive clothing or insignia to clearly identify them as door
supervisors. Door supervisors on duty at the front door shall wear some form of 'high visibility
clothing (such as a jacket or waistcoat).

6. Iltems of glasswear (such as bottles etc) shall not be permitted in the outdoor area.

7. Except for access and egress all external doors and windows shall be kept closed when
regulated entertainment is being held.

8. No more than 2 outdoor regulated entertainment events will be permitted within each calendar
month.

9. The licensee will maintain a comprehensive policy for the protection of children.

10. The smoking area shall be monitored by SIA registered door staff (when engaged) during
opening hours.

11. For under 18 years of age only events the following conditions shall apply:-

a) No one under the age of 14 will be permitted entry without an appropriate adult.

b) No alcohol available for sale (or consumption) at all.

c) No one under the age of 18 is permitted to be in the premises after 11pm.

d) All under 18 events to be subject to a documented risk assessment.

e) No person under 18 shall be permitted entry if it is believed they have consumed alcohol or
drugs.

f) Whenever staff have to deal with a person under 18 years of age, in respect of security medical
or welfare issues, there will be a member of suitably trained management, of the same gender,
required to be in attendance.

g) All staff must be briefed prior to every such event, regarding issues relating to child safety.

12. There shall be no entry or re-entry to the premises after 2300hrs (except to smoke).

ibadealb



Appropriate signage shall be clearly displayed advising as such.
Annex 4 — Plans

Plans as submitted to the Licensing Authority on 23.07.2021, drawn by APG Architecture, project
1073 - Feeder Studios dated 23.07.2021.

Rademal7



O\ "\RV\
oU¢ 9Vtd

TENT STRUCTURE BAR

ENT STRUCTURE

a; ;J—D:'==D=D:ID =
b
MEZZANINE i
KITCHEN
]

KEY:

*Position of fire safety equipment indicative only*

Red line denotes areas for licensable activities

FIRE EXIT
SITE EXIT
ESCAPE SIGN
® FIRE EXTINGUISHER
SMOKE DETECTOR

TOK

T

ETS

GENERALNOTES:
1. CONTRACTOR TO CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE. FIGURED DIMENSIONS ARE TO BE USED. DISCREPANCIES TO
BE REPORTED TO THE ARCHITECT BEFORE PROCEEDING.

2. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT

FILE NAME: /Users/rosemarybradley/Documents/1073-Feeder Studios/Working Files/1073 - Feeder Studios Licensing.vwx

REVISION LOG:

REV:

BY/CHECKED: DATE: COMMENT

APG

www.apg-architecture.co.uk

APG ARCHITECTURE
STUDIO 5 YORK COURT
WILDER STREET . BRISTOL . BS2 8QH
0117 929 3372

PROJECT:

1073 - FEEDER STUDIOS

LICENSING PLAN

PROJECT ID: ORIGINATOR: ZONE: LEVEL:

FDS - APG - XX -2Z

TYPE: ROLE:

-DR -A

SHEET SCALE: STATUS
1:500 @ A2 SO
STATUS DESCRIPTION:

DRAFT

SHEETNO: REVISION NO:

0001 -23/07/21




9 Mail Handling
International {(MHI)

z Mm\-“
S Brandon Hire Station
Feeder Commercials Bristol - Feeder Rd
Mot Vefile st Bristol Mitsubishi
~ Car dealer
ristol) 9 Manor Scrap
) 39-46 Feeder Rd, Qsse
‘\ Bristol .Bsz 0SE
9 Master Plastics SW@
" = o 9 Manor Auto Salvage °Avon Marble
- Wessex Garages & R lini
Q Kia Bristol e Chi Foods opandier Motor =24 L 9 =
, K dealer
County Tyres: " g Chaunceys atsst \A{es:lern Power
J Bristol (St Philips) Timber Flooring ° X Theifty Car and Van Distribution
) Sy Venical Aeospace | % Rental Brstol City Wit fvonsenc©)
/ vonbal
/ Matter . AAH roup Lt % Q
The Fox Café/Bar Howdens - Bristol &
Takeaway « Delivery TL&&':;H: oul’: Delivery Meriton Foundry 9 -~
. St Philips Marsh Nursery
Motorcorner Avanti Aulomollve@
eale
§ Used cor dealer BRISTOL
|3 AMBULANCE EMS
E Grundon Waste 9 Fox Self Storage Bristol
Wholesaleg 98ci e Ciaites Management - Bristol
‘ (o) ST @) Creative Glass Gulld  Bolon Gate Services

Page 209

+@



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 210



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 234



	Agenda
	1 Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information
	5 Procedure for a hearing
	item 5 - PROCEDURE TO BE FOLLOWED AT HEARING
	AGENDA ITEM NO. 4 
	 
	PROCEDURE TO BE FOLLOWED AT HEARING 
	Outlining the procedure 
	Administrative announcements 
	 
	Identification of persons participating in the hearing 
	 
	Withdrawal of Representations [Regulation 10.] 
	 
	Non appearance of parties 
	Appearance of other persons at the hearing 
	 
	Additional material 
	Exercise of other rights/other preliminary business 
	Maximum time for parties to exercise their rights under section 16 
	Points of clarification 

	APPENDIX A - RIGHTS OF PARTIES AT HEARING 
	 
	Rights of a party at the hearing. [Regulation 15] 
	Representations and supporting information. [Regulation 16] 
	Consequences of not attending or not being represented. [Regulation 20] 
	Withdrawal of Representations [Regulation 10.] 
	Behaviour during Hearing [Regulation 25] 
	The Authority may require any person attending the hearing who in their opinion is behaving in a disruptive manner to leave the hearing and may- 
	 
	  
	APPENDIX  B 
	POINTS FOR CLARIFICATION 



	 



	6 Central Chambers, 9 - 11 St Stephen's Street - Application for the renewal of a Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence
	06.1 Appendices - Central Chambers 2021 - Final
	Appendix A - Central Chambers 2019 SEV Licence
	Appendix B - G Central Chambers 2021
	Appendix H - objections
	1 RP
	2 RP
	3 RP
	4 RP
	5 RP
	6 RP
	7 RP
	8 RP
	9 RP
	10 RP
	11 RP
	12 RP
	13 RP
	14 RP
	15 RP
	16 RP
	17 RP
	18 RP
	19 RP
	20 RP
	21 RP
	22 RP
	23 RP
	24 RP
	25 RP
	26 RP
	27 RP
	28 RP
	29 RP
	30 RP
	31 RP
	32 RP
	33 RP
	34 RP
	35 RP
	36 RP
	37 RP
	38 RP
	39 RP
	40 RP
	41 RP
	42 RP
	43 RP
	44 RP
	45 RP
	46 RP
	47 RP
	48 RP
	49 RP
	50 RP
	51 RP
	52 RP
	53 RP
	54 RP
	55 RP
	56 RP
	57 RP
	58 RP
	59 RP
	60 RP
	61 RP
	62 RP
	63 RP
	64 RP
	65 RP
	66 RP
	69 RP

	Appendix I - Comment in support
	Appendix J - Late Objection


	7 Feeder Studios Productions Ltd,  39 - 46 Feeder Road - Application for the grant of a Premises Licence
	07.1 Part A Licence
	07.2 PLANS
	0001-LICENSING PLAN

	07.3 MAP
	07.4 Application Form
	07.5 Police Representation




